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Volt at-a-Glance

Volt Serviees Group

Full spectrum of managed
staffing, temporary/alternative
personnel employment and
direct hire placement services.

Volt Delta
Enhanced and traditional
directory assistance information
services and systems for

‘ telephone Eompany and
enterprise clients.

Maintech

IT and network support services
on a 24x365 basis for mission-
critical and multi-platform
operating environments.

Fidelity National
Credit Serviges

Full service and third party
collection agency services,
including litigation
management.

VMC Consulting
Project-based professional
solutions for product develop-
ment, IT infrastructure and
customer support operations.

Volt Directory Systems
and Services

Independent publishing of
community directories as
well as production, database,
contract and ticensing services.

ProcureStaff

Global solutions provider of
human capital e-procurement
technology and services.

Volt Telecom Group

Full service, wireless and
wireline, telecommunications
engineering, construction and
field services turnkey solutions.




Financial Highlights

(In thousands, except per share duta)

Fiscal Year Ended TOct. 30, 2005 ¢ Oct. 31,2004  Nov. 2, 2003 .
Net sales L $2,177,618 . $1,924,777  $1,600491
Income from continuing operations ©§ 17,040 $ 24,196 $ 4,205
Discontinued operations : - . 9,520 —

$ 33,716 8 4205

Net income T § 17,040

Per Share Data—Diluted

Income from continuing operations ;8 111 8 1.58 3 0.28
Discontinued operations - 0.62 —
Net income $ 1.11 8 2.20 $ 0.28

Weighted average number of shares g 15,417 15,354 15,225

This data should be read in conjunction with the full financial statements and accompanying notes
included in the Form 10-K for the Company’s fiscal year ended October 30, 2003.

Volt Infermation Sciences, :
Inc., a "FORTUNE 1000”

© Company, is a United States .
corporation with major '
cperations in the U.S. and
overseas. Volt is a leader

i in the Staffing Services and :

the Telecommunications
¢ and Information Solutions
- marketplaces. Through these :

" businesses, Volt operates in
markets serving the needs

of business, industry and

: government. Volt's global

© capabilities and expertise

[

OO

in comprehensive solutions
across its businesses gener-

!
1 1
[0 I -

ate added value for domestic

and multinational clients.

{in billions of dollus)
(in meilliviax of dotlirs)
Stockholders’ Equity

Net Sales
Segment Profit




To Our Shareholders
|

William Shaw Fiscal 2005 was a year of inajor achievements that continued to build upon and reinforce Volt's
President and Chairnan of business framework for ongoing success. We had a profitable year, increased segment operating

the Board of Directors

profit to an all-time high, produced record sales, expanded business globally and positioned Volt

Jerome Shaw for greater accomplishments.

Euecutive Vice Prosident Over the years there have been many companies that started out with great promise, but only a

and Secretar . . . -z .
5 " small percentage achieved what Volt has achieved in the past 55 years. Two entrepreneurs with a

Steven A. Shaw small amount of money créated the dynamic and enduring framework for a successful business.

Ezecutive Vice President We have grown to a Fortune 1000 company, publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange with

. ! . . . v .
more than $2 billion in sales, 48,000 employees and international operations in major markets

r . .
H of the world. Our progress|is nurtured by people and technology. It is upon this framework of
I

b experience and success that we build for our future.
i

In fiscal 2003, we inereased our focus on enhancing core capabilities through strategie acquisi-
1

tions and divesting non-core businesses. We expanded our international presence. We made key
'

management and strucmrél organization changes to increase our effectiveness and competitive-
ness. Volt’s Six Sigma Program continued to expand and gain increased recognition from our
customers, who now part»nier with us in joint Six Sigma projects that focus on staffing process
efficiencies. Also, we delivered enterprise-wide improvements in our networks, operating systems

and business continuity pl?.ns.
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In fiscal 2005, Volt increased its focus on enhancing core capabilities through strategic
acquisitions and divesting non-core businesses. We expanded our international
presence. We made key management and structural organization changes to increase
our effectiveness and competitiveness. Volt's Six Sigma Program continued to expand
and gain increased recognition from our customers.

Core Capabilities Enhancements

Volt made significant progress toward our goal of becoming the premier global provider of directory
assistance and enhanced operator information services. The Nortel Networks directory operator
services business acquired in late fiscal 2004 was smoothly integrated into our Volt Delta operations,
resulting in contributions to both sales and profits. Volt's position further improved in December 2005
with our purchase of Nortel's minority ownership in Volt Delta. This was followed by another
acquisition, Varetis Solutions GmbH from the Munich-based varetis AG. These enhance our
delivery of database and automation solutions for the operator services market worldwide. The
Nortel acquisition enabled us to expand within the Western Hemisphere, giving us access to
markets in Canada and South America, while the purchase of Varetis Solutions enables us to

grow in Europe and other markets.

In Staffing Services, we placed strategic focus on direct placement and the launch of Recruitment
Process Outsourcing (RPO) services to leverage our core competency in recruiting and associated
processes. Our Telephone Directory segment increased its emphasis on domestic community
directories and operations in South America. To further concentrate on our core capabilities, we
disposed of our utilities services unit and our professional employer serviees organization operations.

International Expansion

Our directory assistance acquisitions are milestones in our plans for international expansion. In
addition, we are extending our presence globally by working with our major customers in support

of their near-shore and off-shore operations. To this end, VMC Consulting opened a large technical

Volt 2005 annual report

Volt was named to the
Information Week 500,
a prestigious listing of
the most innovative users
of wformation technology
in the United States, for

the fifth consecutive year.




Volt, through a joint
effort of Volt Europe and
ProcureStaff, was named
Best Managed Service

Provider in the 2003

Recruiter magazine

e Awards for Excellence.

f
|
1
|
|
|
r

support and call center in Toronto, Canada. ProcureStatf established operations in Slovakia and
Singapore. The Staffing S{egmem expanded into Taiwan and Malaysia. This model of leveraging
existing customer relationéhips provides a strong foundation and framework for overseas growth
while reducing business riék.

{
}
t
|

Organizational Improvem:eNts

Key management and structural organization changes oceurred at the corporate level and within
our telecommunications business. Steven Shaw was appointed Chiet Operating Officer in June
and Co-Chief Executive Officer in September. These moves etable the devotion of more executive
management attention to cs)perations as well as increase concentration on longer-term strategic
initiatives and relati011shiﬁs. In the Telecommunications Services segment, to further improve our
organizational frame\\-'ox'k§ we implemented a restructuring and reorganization of the segment.
The changes provide a mére foeused, efficient and productive structure which we believe will
improve results. :
E

Directions for Success afd “Thank You”

We continue to demonstra;te our market leadership and receive recognition from industry groups
and customers. Our marke;:tplace is ever-changing. Customers and technology will eontinue to drive
our agenda for growth, collaboration and innovation. Volt comprises a workforee of bright and
dedicated people who unde:rstand the marketplaee and have an entrepreneurial drive that permeates
our framework. With the critical assets of people, process and technology, we look forward to meeting

T

|

We owe a great deal to our emplovees for their efforts, dedication and contributions. To all of them,

the new challenges of our business and building on our company framework for ongoing suceess.

{
T express a special “Thank You”! Of course, to our customers, we are grateful for vour business and
your loyalty. Last but notileast, to our shareholders, thank you for your support and confidence.

l
William Shaw
President and Chairman of the Board of Directors
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Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1334
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or

[0 Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 1-9232

YOLY INFORMATION SCIENCES, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

New York 13-555812%
(State or other jurisdiction of (IR.3. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

560 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York 10022
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{212) 704-2400

Registrant's telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock, $.10 par value New York Stock Exchange, Ine.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.
Yes 1 No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
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erence in Part IIT of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. []

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2). Yes X] No []
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes[] No

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately $149 million,
based on the closing price of $19.78 per share on the New York Stock Exchange on May 1, 2005 (the last business day of the
Registrant’s fiscal second quarter). Shares of common stock held beneficially by executive officers and directors and their
spouses and the Registrant’s Savings Plan, have been excluded, without conceding that ali such persons or plans are “affili-
ates” of the Registrant).

The number of shares of common stock outstanding as of January 6, 2006 was 15,341,505.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Company’s Proxy Statement for its 2006 Annual Meeting are incorporated by reference into Part III of
this Report.
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PARY I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. is a New York corporation, incorporated in 1957. We sometimes refer to Volt Information
Sciences, Ine. and its subsidiaries collectively as “Volt” or the “Company,” unless the context otherwise requires.

Volt operates in the following two businesses which have four operating segments:

o SYAFFING SERVICES
(1) Staffing Services—This segment provides a broad range of employee staffing services to a wide range of customers

throughout the United States, Canada and Europe and has commenced operations in Asia. These services fall

within three major functional areas:

o Staffing Solutions—provides a full spectrum of managed staffing, temporary/alternatwe personnel employment
and direct hire placement. :

° Information Technology Solutions—provides a wide range of services including eonsulting, outsourcing and
turnkey project management in the product development lifecycle, IT and customer contact arenas.

° B-Procurement Solutions—provides global vendor neutral procurement and human capital management solutions .
by combining web-based tools and business process outsourcing services.

© TELECOMMUNICATIONS ARND INFORMATION SOLUTIONS

(2) Telephone Directory—This segment publishes independent telephone directories in the United States and publishes
telephone directories in Uruguay; provides telephone directory production, commercial printing, database manage-
ment, sales and marketing services; and hcenses directory production and contract management software systems
to directory publishers and others.

(3) Telecommunications Services—This segment provides telecommunications services, including design, engineering,
construction, installation, maintenance and removals in the outside plant and central offices of telecommunications
and cable companies and within their customers’ premises, as well as for large commercial and governmental entities
requiring telecommunications services; and also provides complete turnkey services for wireless and wireline tele-
communications companies. '

(4) Computer Systems—This segment provides directory and operator services, both traditional and enhanced, to
wireline and wireless telecommunications companies; provides directory assistance content and data services;
designs, develops, integrates, markets, sells and maintains computer-based directory assistance systems and other
database management and telecommunications systems, primarily for the telecommunications industry; and pro-
vides IT services to the Company’s other businesses and to third parties.

INFORMATION AS TO OPERATING SEGMENTS

The following tables set forth the contribution of each operating segment to the Company’s consolidated sales and operating
profit for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended October 30, 2005, and those assets identifiable within each seg-
ment at the end of each of those fiscal years. This information should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Finaneial Statements in Items 7 and 8,
respectively, of this Report.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




Cetober 30, Qctober 31, November 2,

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
NET SALES |
Staffing Services: ﬁ
Staffing i $1,759,683 $1,580,225  $1,266,875
Managed Services : 1,157,168 1,148,116 1,043,572
Total gross sales : 2,916,851 2,728,341 2,310,447
Less Non-recourse Managed Services—Note 1 . (1,121,196) (1,120,079) (967,379)
Intersegment sales : 6,155 3,839 2,367
1,801,810 1,612,101 1,345,435
Telephone Directory: ‘
Sales to unaffiliated customers l 82,298 72,194 69,750
Intersegment sales , — 1 43
' 82,298 72,195 69,793
Telecommunications Services:
Sales to unaffiliated customers ' 137,799 134,266 112,201
Intersegment sales ﬁ 1,212 1,132 538
: 139,011 135,398 112,839
Computer Systems: ;
Sales to unaffiliated customers _ 161,867 110,055 84,472
Intersegment sales 11,2562 9,962 9,167
‘ 173,119 120,017 93,638
Elimination of intersegment sales (18,619) (14,934) (12,215)
Total Net Sales , $2,177,619 $1,924,777  $1,609,491
SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS) :
Staffing Services ' , $ 31,179 $ 36,718 $§ 21,072
Telephone Directory ! 14,895 10,115 6,748
Telecommunications Services (2,429 (2,838) (3,986)
Computer Systems 35,801 30,846 14,679
Total segment profit 79,448 74,841 38,513
4 General corporate expenses : (38,839) (30,812) (27,668)
{ Total Operating Profit 40,607 44,029 10,845
" Interest and other (expense) income (2,234) (3,471) (1,953)
priae (ain on sale of real estate j — 3,295 —_
- Interest expense (1,825) (1,817) (2,070)
E 3 Foreign exchange (loss) gain i (255) 97 293
Income from continuing operations before :
A income taxes and minority interest j $ 36293 $ 42,133 § 7,121
£ IDENTIFIABLE ASSETS |
Staffing Services : $ 446,950 $ 422658 $ 350,796
i Telephone Directory i 55,238 55,740 61,942
{' Telecommunications Services : 53,173 52,770 49,053
N Computer Systems i 103,720 102,487 39,006
3 | 659,121 633,655 500,797
; Cash, investments and other corporate assets ! 29,591 56,381 39,686
E®  Total assets ﬁ $ 683,712 § 680,036 § 540,483

24 Note 1—Under certain contracts with customers, the Company manages the customers’ alternative staffing requirements, including transactions between
the customer and other staffing vendors (“associate vendors”). When payments to associate vendors are subject to receipt of the customers’ payment to the
Company, the arrangements are considered non-recourse against the Corpany and revenue, other than management fees to the Company, is excluded from
the net sales in the above table. ‘

e
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STAFFING SERVICES SEGMENT

Volt’s Staffing Services segment, through two divisions, the Technical Placement division and the Administrative and
Industrial division, provides a broad spectrum of staffing services in three major functional areas: Staffing Solutions,
Information Technology (“IT”) Solutions and E-Procurement Solutions, to a wide range of customers throughout the
world. The Technical Placement division provides Staffing Solutions, IT Solutions and E-Procurement Selutions, while
the Administrative and Industrial division provides Staffing Solutions.

STAFFING SOLUTIONS

Volt markets a full spectrum of staffing solutions, such as managed services, alternative staffing services and direet hire
services, through its Volt Services Group, Volt Technical Services, Volt Human Resources and Volt Europe divisions.

Yelt Services Group/Volt Technical Services/Volt Eurepe/Volt Human Resources {Staffing Solutions Group)

Staffing solutions provided by this segment are generally identified and marketed throughout the United States as
“Volt Services Group,” and “Volt Technical Services,” throughout Europe as “Volt IZurope,” throughout Canada as
“Volt Human Resources” and throughout Asia as “Volt Asia Enterprises” (the “Staffing Solutions Group™). The Staffing
Solutions Group provides a broad range of employee staffing and professional services, from over 300 branches, includ-
ing dedicated on-site offices located on eustomer premises. The Staffing Solutions Group is a single-source provider of
all levels of staffing, offering to customers an extensive range of alternative employment services. Offerings include man-
aged staffing programs, known as VoltSource, in which the segment is responsible for fulfilling a customer’s entire alter-
native staffing requirements and engages subcontractors to assist in satisfying those requirements; alternative staffing
of clerical, administrative, Jight industrial, technical, professional and information technology personnel; employment,
direet hire and professional personnel placement services; referred employee management services; human resources
outsourcing; and specifically tailored recruitment services.

The Staffing Solutions Group provides skilled employees, such as computer and other IT specialties, engineering,
design, scientific and technical support, in its Technieal Placement division. This group also provides lesser skilled
employees, such as administrative, clerical, office automation and accounting and financial personnel, call center, light
industrial and other personnel, in its Administrative and Industrial division. The Staffing Solutions Group matches
available workers to employer assignments and, as a result, competes both fo reeruiv and maintain a database of poten-
tial employees and to attract customers to employ contingent workers. Assignments are provided for varying periods of
time to companies and other organizations (including government agencies and non-profit entities) in a broad range of
industries that have a need for such personnel, but are unable, or choose not to, engage certain personne!l as their own
employees. Customers range from those that require one or two temporary employees at a time to national accounts that
require as many as several thousand temporary emaployees at one time.

The Staffing Solutions Group furnishes eontingent employees to meet specific customer requirements, such as to com-
plete a specific project (with employvees typically being retained until its completion), to enable customers to scale their
workforee according to business conditions, meet a particular need that has arisen, substitute for regular employees
during vacation or sick leave, staff high turnover positions, fill in during the full-time hiring process or during a hiring
freeze, and staff seasonal peaks, conversions, inventory taking and offices that are downsizing. Many large organiza-
tions utilize contingent labor as a strategic element of their overall workforce, allowing them to more efficiently meet
their fluctuating staffing requirements. In certain instances, the Staffing Solutions Group also provides management
personnel to coordinate and manage special projects and to supervise temporary employees.

Many customers use more than one staffing services provider; however, in recent years, the practice of using a limited
number of temporary suppliers, a sole temporary supplier or a primary supplier has become increasingly important
among the larger companies. The Staffing Solutions Group has been successful in obtaining a number of large national
contracts, that typically require on-site Volt representation and fulfilling requirements at multiple customer facilities.
In addition to contracting for traditional temporary staffing, many of the Company’s larger customers, particularly
those with national agreements, have contracted for managed services programs under which the Company, in addition
to itself providing staffing services, performs various administrative functions. These inclade centralized and coordinated
order processing and procurement of other qualified staffing providers as subcontractors, commonly referred to as
“associate vendors,” to provide service in areas where the Company does not maintain an office or cannot reeruit suffi-
cient qualified personnel and to supply secondary source back-up recruiting or provide assistance in meeting the custom-
er’s stated diversity and/or subcontracting goals. In other managed programs, requisitions are sent simultaneously to a
number of approved staffing firms, and Volt must compete for each placement. Other features of managed services pro-
grams include customized and consolidated billing to the customer for all of Volt’s and associate vendors’ services, and

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




detailed management reports on staffing usage and costs. Some managed services programs are tailored to the customer’s
unique needs for single source consolidated billing, reporting and payment. In most cases, Volt is required to pay the
associate vendor only after Volt receives payment from its customer. Volt also acts as an associate vendor to other
national providers in their managed services programs to assist them in meeting their obligations to their customers.
The bidding process for these managed serviee and national contracts, in general, is very competitive. Many contracts
are for a cne-to-three year time period, at which time they are typically re-bid. Others are for shorter periods or may be
for the duration of a particular project or subproject or a particular need that has arisen, which requires additional or
substitute personnel. These contraets expire upon completion of the projeet or when the particular need ends. Many of
these contracts typically require considerable start-{up costs and usually take from six to twelve months to reach antici-
pated revenue levels and reaching those levels is dependent on the customer’s requirements at that time. The Staffing
Solutions Group maintains a group dedicated to the acquisition, implementation and service of national accounts; how-
ever, there can be no assurance that Volt will be able to retain accounts that it currently serves, or that Volt can obtain
additional national accounts on satisfactory terms.

Branch offices that have developed a specialty in one or more disciplines often use the name “Volt” followed by their spe-
cialty disciplines to identify themselves, e.g. “Volt Computer Services,” “Volt Engineering and Technical Services” and
“Volt, Scientific Services.” Other branch offices have adopted other names to differentiate themselves from traditional
temporary staffing when their focus is more project. oriented.

- = The Staffing Solutions Group maintains centralized databases, containing resumes of candidates from which it fills

; customers’ job requirements. Other candidates are referred by the customer itself for assignment as Volt employees,
basue Volt Europe maintains similar computerized databases containing resumes of candidates from the United Kingdom

b and continental Europe. Higher skilled individuals employed by the Staffing Solutions Group are frequently willing to
pr relocate to fill assignments while lesser skilled employees are generally recruited and assigned locally. In addition to
- maintaining its proprietary Internet recruiting sites, the segment has numerous contracts with independent web-baged
job search companies.

= Individuals hired by the Staffing Solutions Group ty';pically become Volt employees or contractors only during the period
' -of their assignment. As employer of record, Volt is responsible for the payment of wages, payroll taxes, workers’ compen-
sation and unemployment insurance and other benefits, which may include paid sick days, holidays, vacations and medi-
cal insurance. Increases in payroll taxes and costs of workers’ compensation and unemployment insurance and other
benefits have and could continue to have an adverse effect on the Company’s competitiveness and financial performance.
Class action lawsuits have been instituted in the United States against some users of temporary serviees, including some
customers of the Company, by certain temporary employees assigned to the customers, and a few have been threatened
or commenced against providers of temporary services, ineluding one case instituted against the Company and other
temporary agencies. In general, these lawsuits claim that certain temporary employees should be classified as the cus-
i tomers’ employees and are entitled to participate in certain of the customers’ henefit programs. In the Company’s
. European markets, temporary services are more heavily regulated than in the United States and litigation and govern-
R mental activity (at European Union and national levels) directed at the way the industry does business is also being con-
ducted or considered. Volt does not know the effect, if any, the resolution of these cases or the outcome of governmental
activity will have on the industry in general or upon the Staffing Solutions Group's business,

The Staffing Solutions Group also provides direct placement services. In the United States, these services are provided
through Volt Professional Placement, an employment search organization specializing in the recruitment and direct hire
of individuals, inclading in information technology, engineering, technical, accounting, finance and administrative support
disciplines. The direct placement recruiters operate within Volt’s existing United States and European branch system.

Volt has made and will continue to make substantial investments in technological solutions that focus on core recruiting
competencies, improving preductivity and reducing administrative burdens for field operations, including new efficien-
cies for the onboarding process by the elimination of most paper forms. There can be no assurance that these solutions
will be competitive, that the segment will continue to develop new solutions or that they will be suceessful.

-’__-;] INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS

= VHC Consulting

‘lg VMC Consulting (VMC) offers a varied portfolio of project-based professional services, often utilizing the pool of contin-
_' ﬁ gent employees of the other divisions of the Staffing Services segment. Projects range from product development and IT
_ ;}f infrastrueture to customer support in outsource, insource or blended environments. VMC’s customers are located in

s North America, Asia and Europe. -
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This business unit, as part of the Technical Placement division, performs outsource services in the form of project-based
work, in which the Company assumes responsibility for project milestones and deliverables. Services include electronic
games testing, hardware and software testing, software development, data and/or call center management, project man-
agement, information technology services, technical communications, extended sales, technical support and technical
communications. State-of-the-art technology solutions are delivered to clients on a project basis, with the work per-

- formed either on Volt’s premises or at the elient’s location.

Although VMC Consulting continues its efforts to increase its customer base and to broaden its services, there is no
assurance that its present or future services will be competitive, that it will continue to obtain new customers or renew
and/or extend existing customer contracts or develop new services or that its present services or new services will con-
tinue to be successfully marketed.

E-PROCUREMENT SOQLUTICNS
ProcureStaff

Inereasingly, corporations, industry consortia and other buying communities are leveraging the efficiencies of the internet
to maximize their buying power. To take advantage of this e-commerce market, a wholly-owned subsidiary, ProcureStaff,
Litd., provides managed service programs by means of a web-based, vendor neutral procurement and management solution,

A vendor neutral program enabies a customer to meet its requirements by seleeting a candidate from a number of com-
peting firms, including Volt (if a selected vendor), based wpon the customer requirements and the skills of the candi-
dates. At the core of the ProcureStaff model are Consol and HRP, patent pending husiness-to-business e-commerce
procurement applications that are designed to streamline client and vendor functions with increased workflow efficien-
cies while significantly reducing costs and the risks of non-compliance with client policies.

Utilizing proprietary technologies and management methodologies, ProcureStaff provides procurement, management
and consulting solutions for supplemental or alternative staffing, ProcureStaff, as part of the Technical Placement
division, provides global services with operations in North America, Burope and Asia.

Consol also automates and manages the source-to-settle process (from identification of initial requirement through
billing for final deliverable) for resource-based services to provide visibility and eentralized control over all categories
of enterprise-wide services expenditures, including staterent of work, project work and deliverable-based services.
ProcureStaff provides this source-to-settle process to its customers with web-based access, the creation of project bid
requests, requisition management, electronic procurement, relationship management, vendor management, time keep-
ing, consolidated invoicing, consolidated billing and payment, resource redeployment and sophisticated on-line manage-
ment reporting.

By adhering to open standards, ProcureStaff enables both customers and vendors to facilitate solution implementation
with minimal cost and resources. Implementation of these programs typically requires considerable start up costs by
ProcureStaff and usually takes up to four months.

" ProcureStaff competes with other companies which provide similar vendor neutral solutions, some of which are affiliated
with competitive staffing companies.

Although ProcureStaff continues its efforts to obtain new customers and to develop and enhance its services and systers,
there is no assurance that its present or future services will be competitive, that it will continue to obtain new customers
or renew existing customer contracts or develop new services or that present services or new services will continue to be
suceessfully marketed.

During the week ended October 30, 2005, the entire Staffing Services segment provided approximately 43,000 (40,000 in 2004)
of its own tempoerary employees to its customers, in addition to employees provided by subcontractors and associate vendors.

While the markets for the entire Staffing Services segment’s services include a broad range of industries throughout the
United States, Europe and Asia, general economic eonditions in specific geographic areas or industrial sectors affect the
profitability of the segment. The segment has also experienced margin erosion caused by increased competition, increased
unemployment insurance and workers compensation rates, electronic auctions and customers leveraging their buying power
by consolidating the number of vendors with whom they deal. The segment is committed to further efficiencies designed to
increase profitability; however, there can be no assurances that profitability will increase. In addition, this segment could be
adversely affected by changes in laws, regulations and government policies, including the results of pending litigation and

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




governmental activity regarding the staffing services industry, and related litigation expenses, customers’ attitudes toward
outsourcing and temporary personnel, any decreases in rates of unemployment in the future and higher wages sought by
temporary workers, especially those in certain technical fields often characterized by labor shortages.

Through VMC, the segment has increased the number of higher margin project-oriented services to its customers and thus
assumed greater responsibility for the finished produet in contrast to traditional staffing services. The risks of unsuccessful
performance, including claims by customers and the potential for uncompensated rework and other liabilities are greater in
this division. While the Company believes that it can successfully implement its project-based contracts, there can be no
assurance that such claims and costs of rework will not increase,

The ability of the entire Staffing Services segment to compete suceessfully for customers depends on its reputation, pricing
and quality of service provided and its ability to engage, in a timely manner, personnel meeting customer requirements.
Competition varies from market to market and country to country. In most areas there are few significant barriers to entry
and no single provider has a dominant share of the market. The staffing services market is highly competitive. Pricing pres-
sure from customers and competitors continues to be significant and high state unemployment insurance and workers compen-
sation rates continue to impact margins. Many of the contracts entered into by this segment are of a relatively short duration,
and awarded on the basis of competitive proposals that are periodically re-bid by the customer. Under many of these contracts,
there is no assurance of any minimum amount of work that will actually be available and the Company is frequently required
to compete for each placement. Although the Company has been successful in obtaining various short- and long-term contracts
in the past, in many instances margins under these contracts have decreased. There can be no assurance that existing con-
tracts will be renewed on satisfactory terms or that additional or replacement contracts will be awarded to the Company, or
that revenues or profitability from an expired contract will be replaced. Some of this segment’s national contracts are large,
and the loss of any large contract eould have a significantly negative effect on this segment’s business unless, and until, the
business is replaced. The segment competes with many staffing firms, some of which are larger and have substantially
greater financial resources than Volt, as well as with mdmdua]s seeking direct employment with the Company’s existing and
potential enstomers.

TELEPHONE DIRECTORY SEGMENT

Volt's Telephone Directory segment publishes independent telephone directories in the United States and publishes telephone
directories in Uruguay; provides telephone directory production, commercial printing, database management, sales and mar-
keting services; and licenses directory production and contract management software systems to directory publishers and
others. This segment has transitioned in the United States from the production of telephone directories for others to primar-
ily publishing its own independent telephone directories and in 2005 commenced doing the same in Uruguay. This segment
consists of DataNational, Directory Systems/Services and the Uruguay division.

DataNational

DataNational, Volt's independent telephone dxrectory publisher, principally publishes community-based directories,
primarily in the mid-Atlantic and southeastern portions of the United States, DataNational’s community-based direc-
tories provide consumers with information concerning businesses that provide services within their local geographic
area. The directories may also include features that are unique to the community, such as school information, maps
and a calendar of events. All of the DataNational directories are also available on the internet at www.community-
book.info. The division identifies markets where demographics and local shopping patterns are favorable to the divi-
sion’s community-oriented product and adjusts accordingly. During fiscal 2005, the division published 133 community,
county and regional directories. DataNational's principal competitors are regional telephone companies, whose directo-
ries typically cover a mueh wider geographic area than the DataNational directories, as well as other independent tele-
phone directory companies, which compete on the local level. DataNational’s revenues are generated from yellow page
advertising sold in its directories. The Company believes that advertisers are attracted to DataNational's community
directories because the directories enable them to spec1ﬁcallv target their local markets at a much lower cost than
directories covering larger markets.

Directory Systems/Services

Directory Systems/Services develops and markets telephone directory systems and services to directory publishers,
using computer systems manufactured by others, combined with proprietary software developed by the Company and
by third parties specifically for the division. These systems manage the production and control of databases principally
for directory and other advertising media publishers and produce digitized display advertisements and photocomposed
pages, with integrated graphics for hoth printed and electronic yellow and white pages directories. These systems
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incorporate “workflow management,” by which ads are automatically routed between workstations, increasing throughput
and control, including management of additions and deletions of listings. These systems are licensed to, and the services
are performed for, publishers and others worldwide, including the segment’s DataNational division.

Uruguay

In 2005, Voit's Uruguay division published yellow pages telephone directories as an independent publisher. Revenues are
generated from the sale of yellow pages advertising.

In addition to the directory business, Volt's Uruguay division owns and operates an advanced directory printing facility,
which includes, among other presses, a high-speed, four-color, heat set printing press that is used to print not only its
own telephone directories, but also directories for publishers in other South American countries. In addition, this facility
does commercial printing, including magazines and periodicals, for various castomers in Uruguay and elsewhere in
South and Central America.

The Telephone Directory segment’s ability to compete depends on its reputation, technical capabilities, price, quality of service
and ability to meet customer reguirements in a timely manner. The segment faces intense competition for all of its services and
products from other suppliers and from in-house facilities of potential customers. Some of this segment’s significant competi-
tors are companies that are larger and have substantially greater financial resources than the Company. This segment’s sales
and profitability are highly dependent on advertising revenue, which has been and continues to be affected by general and local
economic conditions. Economic conditions in Uruguay and neighboring eountries eontinue to have a significant adverse impact
on advertising and printing reverme and operating profits of the Uruguay operation.

Other than DataNational, a substantial portion of this segment’s business is obtained through submission of competitive pro-
posals for contracts. These short- and long-term contracts are re-bid after expiration. While the Company has historically
secured new contracts and believes it can secure renewals and/or extensions of some of these contracts, some of which are
material to this segment, and obtain new business and customers, there can be no assurance that contracts will be renewed
or extended, that the segment can successfully obtain new business and customers or that additional or replacement contracts
will be awarded to the Company on satisfactory terms.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES SEGMENT

Volt's Telecornmunications Services segment provides telecommunications and other services, including design, engineering,
construction, installation, maintenance and removal of telecommunications equipment for the outside plant and central offices
of telecommunications and cable companies, and within end-user premises, in the United States. This segment also provides
complete turnkey services for wireless telecommunications carriers and wireless infrastructure suppliers, provides limited
distribution of produets and provides some non-telecommunications engineering and construction services,

The Telecormmunications Services segment is a full-service provider of turnkey solutions to the telecommunications, cable
and related industries, as well as for large corporations and governmental entities. The segment’s services include:

o Engineering services, including feasibility studies, right-of-way acquisition, network design and detailed engineering for
copper, coaxial and fiber systems, earrier systems design, conduit design, computer-aided design drafting, digitizing
records, building industry consultant engineering (BICSI), turnkey design, program management, air pressure design
and record verification. ‘

o Construction services, including both aerial and underground construction services, using the Company’s owned and
leased vehicles and equipment. These services include jack and bore, directional boring, trenching and excavation, conduit
and manhole systems, cable placerment and splicing, pole placement and wrecking, copper, coaxial and long- and short-
hau! fiber optic cable installation, splicing, termination and testing, project management and inspection services.

o Enterprise infrastructure solutions, including structured cabling and wiring and field installation and repair services
involving the design, engineering, installation and maintenance of various types of local and wide-area networks, utilizing
copper wiring, coaxial and fiber opties, for voice, data and video, and digital subseriber lines (DSL) and other breadband
installation and maintenance services to operating telephone companies, telecommunications equipment manufacturers,
cable companies and large end-users, in both the government and private sectors.

¢ (Central Office services, including engineering, furnishing and installing (EF&I) services, maintenance and removal of
transmission systems, distribution frame systems, AC/DC power systems, wiring and cabling, switch peripheral systems,
equipment assembly and system integration and eontrolled environment structures, and other network support services,
such as grounding surveys and asset management. '
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o Wireless services, including complete turnkey services to both fixed and mohile wireless providers. This includes
establishing or enhancing network infrastructure, design, engineering and construction/installation services, site
selection, RF engineering, tower erection, antenna installation and inside cabling and wiring serviees. In performing
these services, the segment employs the latest technologies, such as GPS mapping of facilities.

This segment also accommodates customers in the telecommunications industry that require a full range of services from
multiple Volt business segments, such as human resources, systems analysis, network integration, software development and
turnkey applications. This segment also resells telecommunications equipment to customers. In addition, this segment offers
the added value of being able to provide total management of multi-discipline projects because of its ability to integrate
efforts on a single project and to assume responsibility for programs that require a single point of contact and uniform qual-
ity. The segment performs these services on a project and/or contract personnel placement basis in the outside plant, central
offices, wireless sector and within end-user premises. Customers include telephone operating companies, local exchange carri-
ers, wireless earriers, telecornmunications equipment manufacturers, cable television providers, electrie, gas, water and
water-services utilities, federal, state and municipal government units and private industry.

This segment faces substantial competition with respect to all of its telecommunications services from other suppliers and
many customers provide the same type of services as the segment, which means that the segment faces competition from its
own customers as well as from third parties. Construetion services have been, and could be in the future, adversely affected
by weather conditions, because much of the business is performed outdoors. Some of this segment’s significant competitors
are larger and have substantially greater financial resources than the Company. There are few significant barriers to entry
into certain of the markets in which the segrment operates, and many competitors are small, local companies that generally
have lower overhead. The Company’s ability to compete in this segment depends upon its reputation, technical capabilities,
pricing, quality of service and ability to meet customer requirements in a timely manner. The Company believes that its com-
petitive position in this segment is augmented by its ability to draw upon the expertise and resources of other Volt segments.

A portion of the Company’s business in this segment is obtained through the submission of competitive proposals for con- .
tracts that typically expire within one to three years and upon expiration are re-bid and price is often an important factor in

. the award of such agreements. Many of this segment’s long-term contracts contain cancellation provisions under which the

customer can cancel the contract, even if the segment is not in default under the contract. Under many of these contracts,
including master service contracts, there is no assurance of any minimum amount of work that will actually be available,
Therefore, these contracts do not give the assurance that long-term contracts typically provide. While the Company believes
it can secure rerewals and/or extensions of some of these contracts, some of which are material to this segment, and obtain
new business and customers, there can be no assurance that contracts will be renewed or extended or that additional or
replacement contracts will be awarded to the Company on satisfactory terms or that the Company ean obtain new business
and customers. "

COMPUTER SYSTEMS SEGMENT

Volt’s Computer Systems segment provides its customers with telephone directory services, information services and other
operator services, and designs, develops, sells, leases and maintains computer-based directory assistance services along with
other database management and related services, primarily to the telecommunications industry. It also provides third party
IT and data services to others. This segment is comprised of three synergistic business units: Volt Delta Resources
{“VoltDelta”), DataServ and Maintech.

YoltDelta

VoltDelta markets information services to telephone companies and inter-exchange carriers worldwide. The unit sells
information service systems to its customers and in addition, provides an Application Service Provider (“ASP”) model
which also provides information services, including infrastructure and database content, on a transactional use fee
basis. VoltDelta has service agreements with major telecommunications carriers in North America, South America
and Burope.

To meet the needs of customers who desire to upgrade their operator services capabilities by procuring services as an
alternative to making a capital investment, the unit has deployed and is marketing enhanced directory assistance and .
aother information service capabilities as a transaction-based ASP service, charging a fee per transaction. One ASP ser-
vice is marketed as DirectoryExpress, which provides access to over 180 million United States and Canadian business,
residential and government listings to directory assistance operators worldwide. Another ASP service is Directory
Assistance Automation (“DAA”), which is currently deployed by major wireline and wireless carriers. VoltDelta owns and
operates 1ts own proprietary systems and provides its ¢ustomers aceess to a national database sourced from listings
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obtained by VoltDelta from various telephone companies and other independent sources. In addition, VoltDelta continues
to provide customers with new systems, as well as enhancements to existing systems, equipment and software. The ASP
model generally requires significant capital expenditure before any revenue is realized, usually on a transaction basis.

VoltDelta’s InfoExpress suite of services includes iExpress, a service that enables its transaction-based customers to
offer, for example, operator-assisted yellow pages, driving directions and location-based information services. For con- -
sumers {the end-users), especially cellular and PCS users, InfoExpress provides a more convenient and efficient level of”
- directory assistance service since, among other things, consumers may obtain enhanced directory and vellow pages

information without having to know the correct area code or even the name of the business. Enhanced information ser- -

"+ vices are particularly attractive in the wireless market, where there is no access to printed telephone directories. The
unit’s ASP services are being delivered over the switched telephone and VoIP networks to live operators, and recently,
through DAA voice portals using speech recognition technologies.

BataServ

DataServ was established in fiscal year 2002 as a separate division of Volt Delta to target non-teleo enterprise custom-
ers with enhanced directory assistance and information services. The division's services utilize the most aceurate con-
sumer and business databases to allow companies to improve their operations and marketing capabilities. Working with
Volt Delta and other data aggregators, DataServ’s information is updated daily and is substantially augmented with
specialized information unique to the non-telco enterprise customer. DataServ integrates customer applications aceess
via XML and other advanced technologies with its various databases. DataServ has agreements with several agents and
resellers to distribute its services into targeted industries.

In order to fulfill its commitments under its contracts, VoltDelta and DataServ are required to develop advanced computer
software programs and purchase substantial amounts of eomputer equipment, as well as license data content, from several
suppliers. Most of the equipment and data content required for these contracts is purchased as needed and is readily available
from a number of suppliers.

Although the VoltDelta unit was successful during fiscal year 2004 in obtaining new customers for these services, including
major telephone companies serving the long distance and cellular markets, and DataServ expanded its customer base and
achieved significant revenue growth, there can be no assurance that it will continue to be successful in marketing these ser-
vices to additional customers, or that the customers’ volume of transactions will be at a level sufficient to enable the segment
to maintain profitability, nor that it will be able to successfully integrate Varetis Solutions (see below) into its operations.

Maintech

Maintech, a division of Volt Delta Resources, LLC, provides managed IT service solutions to mid-size and large corpo-
rate clients across the United States and Canada, including many of those who have purchased systems from VoltDelta.
Its service offerings are tailored to mission-eritical, multi-platform operating environments where standards of system
availability of 99+% are the norm. Maintech’s target markets include banking and brokerage, telecommumcatmns, aero-
space, healthcare and higher education.

Clients may engage Maintech for an enterprise-wide, single source IT Qutsourcing Solutions (“ITOS”) commitment that
includes program management, technology planning, transition management, Wintel/UNIX system administration, net-
work administration, Network Operations Center (“NOC”) services, hardware maintenance and LAN/WAN/Voice ser-
vices. Clients may also choose Maintech for any subset of services including hardware maintenance of large
Wintel/UNIX server farms and corporate Desktop/Deskside support.

This segment operates in a business environment which is highly competitive. Some of this segment’s principal competitors
are larger and have substantially greater financial resources than the Company. This segment’s results are highly dependent
on the volume of transactions which are processed by the segment under existing contracts, the segment’s ability to continue to
secure comprehensive listings from others, its ability to obtain additional customers for these services and on its continued
ability to sell products and services to new and existing custorners. This segment’s position in its market depends largely upon
its reputation, quality of service and ability to develop, maintain and implement information systems on a cost competitive
basis. Although the segment continues its investment in research and development, there is no assurance that this segment’s
present or future products will be competitive, that the segment will continue to develop new products or that present products
or new products can be successfully marketed.

Some of this segment’s contracts expired in 2005, while others were renewed and new contracts were awarded to the segment.
Other contracts are scheduled to expire in 2006 through 2008, Many of this segment’s long-term contracts contain cancella-
tion provisions under which the customer can cancel the contract, even if the segment is not in default under the contract.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Therefore, these contracts do not give the assurances that long-term contracts typically provide. While the Company believes it
can secure renewals and/or extensions of some of these contracts, some of which are material to this segment, and obtain new
business and customers, there can be no assurance that contracts will be renewed or extended or that additional or replacement
contracts will be awarded to the Company on satisfactory terms or that new business and customers can be obtained.

The Cormpany’s Computer Systems segment consists of Volt Delta Resourees, LLC, and its subsidiaries. As of October 30,
2005, Volt Delta Resources, LLC was 76% owned by the Company and 24% owned by Nortel Networks, which resulted from
a transaction on August 2, 2004, when Volt Delta Resources, LLC, which previously was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, consummated a contribution agreement with Nortel Networks. Under the contribution agreement Nortel Networks
contributed substantially all of the assets (consisting principally of customer base and contracts, intellectual property and
inventory) and certain specified liabilities of its directory and operator services (“DOS”) business to Volt Delta Resources,
LLC in exchange for a 24% minority interest in Volt Delta Resources, LLC. The Company and Nortel Networks also entered
into agreements which provided for the management of Volt Delta Resources, LLC and the respective rights and obligations
of the interest holders thereof. On December 29, 2005, Volt Delta Resources, LL/C purchased that 24% minority interest
from Nortel Networks for $56.4 million.

On December 30, 2005, Volt Delta Resources, LLC, purchased Varetis Solutions GmbH, headquartered in Munich, Germany.
The acquisition allows the company to focus on the evolving global market for directory information systems and services,
Varetis Solutions adds technology in the area of wireless and wireline database management, directory ass1stance/enqu1ry
automation, and wireless handset information delivery to \Volt Delta’s significant technology portfolio.

RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND ENGINEERING

During fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company éxpended approximately $1.1 million, $4.7 million and $2.1 million,
respectively, on research, development and engineering for product and service development and improvement, substantially
all of which is Company sponsored, and none of which was eapitalized. The major portion of research and development expen
ditures was incurred by the Computer Systems segment. |

In addition, the Company invests in software for internal:use, including planning, coding, testing, deployment, training and
maintenance. In fiscal 2005, expenditures for internal-use software were $21.1 million of which $4.4 million was capitalized,

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

“Volt” is a registered trademark of the Company under a number of registrations. The Company also holds a number of other
trademarks and patents related to certain of its products and services; however, it does not believe that any of these are mate-
rial to the Company’s business or that of any segment. The Company is also a licensee of technology from many of its suppli-
ers, none of which individually is considered material to the Company’s business or the business of any segment.

CUSTOMERS

In fiscal 2005, the Telecommunications Services segment’s sales to two customers accounted for approximately 30% and
14% of the total sales of that segment; the Computer Systems segment’s sales to two customers accounted for approxi-
mately 31% and 13% of the total sales of that segment and the Staffing Services segment’s sales to one ecustomer aceounted
for approximately 13% of the total sales of that segment. In fiscal 2005, the sales to seven operating units of one customer,
Microsoft Corporation, accounted for 11% of the Company'’s consolidated net sales of $2.2 biltion and 7% of the Company’s
consolidated gross billings of $3.3 billion. The difference between net sales and gross billings is the Company’s associate
vendor costs, which are excluded from sales due to the Company’s relationship with the customers and the Company’s associ-
ate vendors, who have agreed to be paid subject to receipt of the customers’ payment to the Company. Generally accepted
accounting principles require these sales to be reported net. The Company believes that gross billing is a meaningful mea-
sure, which reflects actual volume by the customers.

In fiscal 2004, the Telecommunications Services segment’$ sales to four customers accounted for approximately 17%, 15%,
12% and 11% of the total sales of that segment; the Computer Systems segment’s sales to one customer accounted for
approximately 28% of the total sales of that segment; the Staffing Services segment’s sales to one customer accounted for
approximately 14% of the total sales of that segment; and the Telephone Directory segment’s sales to one customer acecounted
for approximately 10% of the total sales of that segment. In fiscal 2004, the sales to seven operating units of one customer,

Microsoft Corporation, accounted for 12% of the Company s consolidated net sales of $1.9 billion and 7.6% of the Company’s
consolidated gross billings of $3.0 billion.
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In fiseal 2003, the Telecommunications Services segment’s sales to three customers aceounted for approximately 23%, 18%
and 12% of the total sales of that segment; and the Computer Systems segment’s sales to two customers accounted for approx-
imately 27% and 13% of the total sales of that segment; the Staffing Services segment’s sales to one customer accounted for
approximately 13% of the total sales of that segment; and the Telephone Directory segment’s sales to one customer aceounted
for approximately 10% of the total sales of that segment. In fiscal 2003, the sales to seven operating units of one customer,
Mierosoft Corporation, accounted for 10.6% of the Company’s consolidated net sales of $1.6 billion and 6.7% of the Company's
consolidated gross billings of $2.6 billion.

The loss of one or more of these customers, unless the business is replaced by the segment, could result in an adverse effect
on the results for that segment’s business.

SEASONALIVY

Historically, the Company’s results of operations have been lowest in its first fiscal quarter as a result of reduced require-
ments for the Staffing Services segment’s personnel due to the Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Year holidays as well as
certain customer facilities closing for one to two weeks. In addition, the Telephone Directory segment's DataNational division
publishes more directories during the second half of the fiscal year. During the third and fourth quarter of the fiscal year,
the Staffing Services segment benefits from a reduction of payroll taxes and increased use of Administrative and Industrial
services during the summer vacation period.

EMPLOYEES

During the week ended October 30, 2005, Volt employed approximately 48,000 persons, including approximately 43,000 per-
sons who were on temporary assignment for the Staffing Services segment. Volt is a party to two collective bargaining agree-
ments, which cover a small number of its employees. The Company believes that its relations with its employees are satisfactory.

Certain services rendered by Volt's operating segments require highly trained techniceal personnel in specialized fields, some
of whom are eurrently in short supply and, while the Company currently has a sufficient number of such technical personnel
in its employ, there can be no assurance that in the future, these segments can continue to employ sufficient technical person-
nel necessary for the successful conduct of their services without significantly higher costs.

REGULATION

Some states in the United States license and regulate temporary service firms, employment agencies and construction com-
panies. In Europe, the temporary service business and employment agencies are subject to regulation at both ecountry and
European levels. In connection with foreign sales by the Telephone Directory and Computer Systems segments, the Company
is sulbject to export controls, including restrictions on the export of certain technologies, With respect to conntries in which
the Company’s Telephone Directory and Computer Systems segments presently sell certain of their current products, the sale
of their current products, both hardware and software, are permitted pursuant to a general export license. If the Company
began selling to countries designated by the United States as sensitive or developed products subject to restriction, sales
would be subject to more restrictive export regulations.

Compliance with applicable present federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations has not had, and the Company
believes that compliance with those laws and regulations in the future will not have, a material effect on the Company’s earn-
ings, capital expenditures or competitive position.

ACCESS TQ COMPANY INFORMATION

The Company electronically files its Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). These and other
SEC filings by the Company are available to the public over the internet at the SEC’s website at http:/www.sec.gov and at
the Company's website at http:/www.volt.com in the Investor Information section as scon as reasonably practicable after
they are electronically filed with the SEC. Copies of the Company’s Code of Ethics and other significant corporate docu-
ments are also available at the Company’s website in the Investor Information section. Copies are also available without
charge upon request to Volt Information Sciences, Ine., 560 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York 10022, 212-704-2400,
Attention: Shareholder Relations.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and other reports and statements issued by the Company and its officers from time to time contain certain
“forward-looking statements.” Words such as “may,” “should,” “likely,” “could,” “seek,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“estimate,” “project,” “intend,” “strategy,” “design to,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements about the Company’s future plans, objectives,:performance, intentions and expectations. These forward-looking
statements are subject to a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties ineluding, but are not limited to, those
set forth below under “Factors That May Affect Future Results.” Such risks and uncertainties could cause the Company’s
actual results, performance and achievements to differ materially from those described in or implied by the forward-looking
statements. Accordingly, readers should not place undue 'relia.nce on any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of
the Company. The Company does not assume any obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date they
are made. !

FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS IS DEPENDENT UPCN GENERAL ECONOMIC, COMPETITIVE AND OTKER BUSINESS
COXDITIONS, INCLUDING THE UNITED STATES AND EUROPEAN FCONOMIES AND OTHER GENERAL CONDITIONS, SUCH
AS CUSTOMERS OFF-SHORING ACTIVITIES TO OTHER COUNTRIES, :

The demand for the Company’s services in all segments is dependent upon general economic conditions. Accordingly, the
Company’s business tends to suffer during economic downturns. In addition, in the past few years major United States com-
panies, many of which are customers of the Company, have increasingly outsourced business to foreign counntries with lower

that have more difficulty in moving off-shore, as well as expanding its retail customer base which generally affords higher mar-
gin opportunities. In addition, the Company’s other segments may be adversely affected if they are required to compete from
the Company’s United States based operations against competitors based in such other countries, Although the Company has
begun to expand its operations, in a limited manner and t6 serve existing eustomers, in such countries, and has established
subsidiaries in some foreign countries, there can be no assurance that this effort will be successful or that the Company can
successfully eompete with competitors based overseas or who have established foreign operations.

The Company’s business is dependent upon the continued financial strength of its customers. Some customers that experience
economic downturns or other negative factors are less likely to use the Company'’s services.

In the staffing services segment, a weakened economy results in decreased demand for temporary and permanent personnel.

less inclined to add to their costs, Since employees are reluctant to risk changing employers, there are fewer openings and
reduced activity in permanent placements as well. In addition, while in many fields there are ample applicants for available
positions, variations in the rate of unemployment and higher wages sought by temporary workers in certain technieal fields
with labor shortages could affect the Company’s ability to meet its customers’ demands in these fields and the Company’s
profit margins. The segment has also experienced margin erosion caused by increased competition, electronic auctions and
customers leveraging their buying power by consolidating the number of vendors with which they deal. Increased workers’
compensation costs and unemployment insurance, other payroll taxes and business taxes, some of which the Company is
unsble to pass on to customers, also place pressure on margins.

Customer use of the Company’s telecommunications services is similarly affected by a weakened economy in that some of the
Company’s customers reduce their use of outside services in order to provide work to their in-houge departments. Actions by
major long-distance telephone companies to reduce marketing of local residential service and consolidation in the telecommu-
nications industry could also negatively impact both sales and margins of the segment.,

Additionally, in all segments, the degree and timing of customer acceptance of systems and of obtaining new contracts and
the rate of renewals of existing contracts, as well as customers’ utilization of the Company’s services, could adversely affect
the Company’s businesses. ‘
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MANY OF THE COMPANY'S CONTRACTS EITHER PROVIDE NC MINIMUM PURCHASE REQUIREMENTS OR ARE
CANCELABLE DURING THE TERM, OR BOTH.

In all segments, many of the Company’s contracts, even those master service contracts whose duration spans a number of
vears, provide no assurance of any minimum amount of work that will actually be available under any contract. Most staffing
services contracts are not sole source, so the segrent must compete for each placement at the customer. Similarly, many tele-
communications master contracts require eompetition in order to obtain each individual work project. In addition, many of the
Company’s long-term contracts contain cancellation provisions under which the customer can cancel the contract, even if the
Company is not in default under the contract. Therefore, these contracts do not give the assurances that long-term contracts
often provide.

THE COMPANY'S STAFFING SERVICES BUSINESS AND ITS OTHERS SEGMENTS SUBJECT IT TO EMPLOYMENT-RELATED
AND OTHER CLAIMS.

The Company’s staffing services business employs individuals on a temporary basis and places them in a customer’s work-
place. The Company’s ability to control the customer workplace is often limited, and the Company risks ineurring liability to
its employees for injury (which results in inereased workers’ compensation costs) or other harm that they suffer at the cus-
tomer’s workplace. Increases in worker’s compensation costs adversely affect the Company’s competitive position and its abil-
ity to retain business and obtain new business. Although the Company has not historically suffered materially for such harm
suffered by its employees, other than increases in workers’ compensation costs, there can be no assurance that future claims
will not materially adversely affect the Company.

Additionally, the Company risks liability to its customers for the actions of the Company's employees that may result in harm
to the Company’s customers. Such actions may be the result of negligence or misconduct on the part of the Company’s tempo-
rary employees. These same factors apply to all of the Company’s business units, although the risk may be reduced where the
Company itself controls the employees and/or the workplace. Nevertheless, the risk is present in all segments.

The Company may incur fines or other losses and negative publicity with respect to any litigation in which it becomes
involved. Although the Company maintains insurance for many such actions, there can be no assurance that its insurance
will cover future actions or that the Company will continue to be able to obtain such insurance on acceptable terms, if at all,

NEW AND INCREASED GOVERNMENT REGULATION COULD HAYVE A MATERIAL ADVERSE EFFECT ON THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS, ESPECIALLY ITS CORTINGENT STAFFING BUSINESS,

Certain of the Company’s businesses are subject to licensing and regulation in many states and certain foreign jurisdictions.
Although the Company has not had any diffieulty complying with these requirements in the past, there can be no assurance
that the Company will continue to be able to do so, or that the cost of compliance will not become material. Additionally, the
Jjurisdictions in which we do or intend to do business may:

o create new or additional regulations that prohibit or restrict the types of services that we currently provide;

o impose new or additional employee benefit requirements, thereby increasing costs that may not be able to be passed on to
customers or which would eause customers to reduce their use of the Company’s services, especially in its staffing ser-
vices segment, which would adversely impact the Company’s ability to eonduct its business;

e require the Company to obtain additional licenses to provide its services; or

o increase taxes (especially payroll and other employment related taxes) or enact new or different taxes payable by the pro-
viders of services such as those offered by the Company, thereby increasing costs, some of which may not be able to be
passed on to customers or which would cause customers to reduce their use of the Company’s services, especially in its
staffing services segment, which would adversely impact the Company’s ahility to conduet its business.

In addition, certain private and governmental entities have focused on the contingent staffing industry in particular and, in
addition to their potential to impose additional requirements and costs, they and their supporters could cause changes in eus-
tomers’ attitudes toward the use of outsourcing and temporary personnel in general. This conld have an adverse effect on the
Company’s contingent staffing business,

Volt Infarmation Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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THE COMPANY IS DEFENDENT UPON ITS ABILITY YO A‘WRAW AND RETAIN CERTAIN TECHNOLOGICALLY
CUALIFIED PERSONNEL.

The Company’s future success is dependent upon its ability to attract and retain certain classifications of technologically
qualified personnel for its own use, particularly in the areas of research and development, implementation and upgrading of -
internal systems, as well as in its staffing services segment, The availability of such personnel is dependent upon a number of
economic and demographic conditions. The Company may’ in the future find it difficult or more costly to hire such personnel
in the face of competition from other companies. :

THE INDUSTRIES I WHICH THE COMPANY DOES @USHNESS ARE VERY COMPETITIVE.

The Company operates in very competitive industries with, in most cases, limited barriers to entry. Some of the Company’s
principal competitors are larger and have substantially greater financial resources than the Company. Accordingly, these
competitors may be better able than the Company to attract and retain qualified personnel and may be able to offer their cus-
tomers more favorable pricing terms than the Company. In many businesses, small competitors can offer similar services at
lower prices because of lower overheads. ‘

The Company, in all segments, has experienced intense price competition and pressure on margins and lower renewal mark-
ups for eustomers’ contracts than previously obtained. While the Company has and will continue to take action to meet com-
petition in its highly competitive markets with minimal impact on margins, there can be no assurance that the Company will
be able to do so.

The Company, in certain businesses in all segments, must obtain or produce products and systems, principally in the IT envi-
ronment, to satisfy customer requirerents and to remain competitive. While the Company has been able to do so in the past,
there ean be no assurance that in the future the Company will be able to foresee changes and to identify, develop and com-
mercialize innovative and competitive products and systems in a timely and cost effective manner and to achieve customer.
acceptance of its products and systems in markets characterized by rapidly changing technology and frequent new product
introductions. In addition, the Company’s products and systems are subject to risks inherent in new produet introductions, -
such as start-up delays, cost overruns and uncertainty of customer acceptance, the Company’s dependence on third parties
for some product components and in certain technical fields with labor shortages, the Company’s ability to hire and retain
such specialized employees, all of which could affect the Company’s ability to meet its customers’ demands in these fields
and the Company’s profit margins.

In addition to these general statements, the following information applies to the specific segments identified below.

The Company’s Staffing Services segment is in a very competitive industry with few significant barriers to entry. There are
many temporary service firms in the United States and Europe, many with only one or a few offices that service only a small
market and generally have lower overhead. On the other hand, some of this segment’s principal competitors are larger and
have substantially greater financial resources than the Company and service the multi-national accounts whose business the
Company solicits. Accordingly, these competitors may be better able than the Company to attract and retain qualified person-
nel and may be able to offer their customers more favorable pricing terms than the Company. Furthermore, all of the staffing
industry is subject to the fact that contingent workers are prcmded to customers and most customers are more protective of
their full-time workforce than contingent workers.

The results of the Company’s Computer Systems segment ‘are highly dependent on the volume of directory assistance calls to
this segment’s customers which are processed by the segmént under existing contraets, the segment’s ability to continue to
secure comprehensive listings from others at acceptable pricing, its ability to obtain additional customers for these services
and on its continued ability to sell products and services to new and existing customers. The volume of transactions with this
segment’s customers is subject to reduction as consumers utilize listings offered on the internet. This segment’s pasition in
its market depends largely upon its reputation, quality of serviee and ability to develop, maintain and implement information
systems on a cost competitive basis. Althongh Volt continues its investment in research and development, there is no assur-
ance that this segment’s present or future products will be competitive, that the segment will continue to develop new prod-
ucts or that present products or new products can be succe"ssfully marketed.

The Company’s Telecommunieations Serviees segment faees substantial competition with respect to all of its telecommunica-
tions services from other suppliers and from in-house capabmtles of present and potential customers. Since many of our cus-
tomers provide the same type of services as the segment, the segment faces competition from its own enstomers and potential
customers as well as from third parties. The telecommunications service segment performs much of its services outdoors, and
its business can be adversely affected by inclement weather. Some of this segment’s significant competitors are larger and
have substantially greater financial resources than the Company. There are relatively few significant barriers to entry into
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certain of the markets in which the segment operates, and many competitors are small, local companies that generally have
lower overhead. In August 2005, the Company restructured the Telecommunications Services segment which is expected to
result in a reduction of future overhead within the segment, including reduction of the headcount, consolidating two divisions
and closing and eonsolidating several of its leased locations. The Company’s ability to compete in this segment depends upon
its reputation, technical capabilities, pricing, quality of service and ability to meet custormer requirements in a timely manner,
as well as the economic health of the telecom industry. Volt believes that its competitive position in this segment is augmented
by its ability to draw upon the expertise and resources of other Volt segments.

THE COMPARY MUST SULCESSFULLY INTEGRATE THE PURCHASED VARETIS SOLUTIONS INTO THE COMPANY'S
COMPUTER SYSTEMS SEGMENT,

On December 30, 2005, Volt Delta Resources, LLC (“Volt Delta”), 2 now wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
varetis AG's Varetis Solutions subsidiary, which is engaged in the business of providing directory assistance solutions to cus-
tomers. Together with its subsidiaries, Volt Delia is reported as the Company’s Computer Systems Segment. In addition to
the factors described elsewhere herein, the Company’s results in this segment are dependent upon the Company’s ability to
successfully integrate the acquisition into Volt Delta’s business with minimal interference with the segment’s business.

THE COMPARY MUST STAY IN COMPLIANCE WITH ITS SECURITIZATION PROGRAM AND OTHER LOAN AGREEMENTS.

The Company is required to maintain a sufficient credit rating to enable it to continue its Securitization Program and maintain
its existing credit rating in order to avoid any increase in fees under other credit agreements. In addition, the Company must
also comply with the financial and other covenants applicable under the various agreements and other borrowing instruments.

While the Company was in compliance with all such requirements at the end of the fiseal year and believes it will remain in com-
pliance throughout the next twelve months, there can be no assurance that will be the case or that waivers may not be required.
THE COMPARY MUST STAY IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT.

The Company believes it is in compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, except for the single material weakness
described in Item 9A of this Form 10-K. The cost of compliance adversely affected the Company’s operating results for its
2005 fiscal year. The costs of continued compliance with the Aet will affect the Company’s operating results in the future,
but not to the extent of the Company’s 2005 first year compliance. While the Company expects to be in compliance with the .
Act, there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so.

THE COMPANY'S PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS QWN A SIGMIFICANT PERCENTAGE OF THE COMPANY AND WILL BE ABLE
70 EXERCISE SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE OVER THE COMPANY AND THEIR INTERESTS MAY DIFFER FROM THOSE OF
OTHER SHAREMOLDERS.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company’s principal shareholders and members of their family controlled in excess of 45% of the
Company’s outstanding common stock. Accordingly, these shareholders are able to control the composition of the Company’s
board of directors and many other matters requiring shareholder approval and will continue to have significant influence over
the Company’s affairs. This concentration of ownership also could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control
of the Company or otherwise diseouraging a potential acquirer from attempting to obtain control of the Company.

THE COMPANY'S STOCK PRICE COULD BE EXTREMELY VOLATILE AND, AS A RESULT, KNVEST@RS MAY NOT BE ABLE TO

RESELL THEIR SHARES AT OR ABQVE THE PRICE THEY PAID FOR THEM.

Among the factors that eould affect the Company’s stock price are:

o limited float and a low average daily trading volume, notwithstanding that the Company’s stock is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange;

o industry trends and the business success of the Company’s customers;

o loss of a key customer;

o fluctuations in the Company’s results of operations;

o the Company’s failure to meet the expectations of the investment community and changes in investment community
recommendations or estimates of the Company’s future results of operations;

o strategic moves by the Company’s competitors, such as product announcements or acquisitions;

o regulatory developments, including compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;

e litigation;

o general market conditions; and

o other domestic and international macroeconomic factors unrelated to the Company’s performanece.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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The stock market has and may in the future experience extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the aperating

performance of particular companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of the Company’s
common stock.

In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company’s securities, securities class action litigation has
often been instituted. If a securities class action suit is filed against the Company, it would incur substantial legal fees and
management’s attention and resources would be diverted from operating its business in order to respond to the litigation.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLYED STAFF COMMENTS
None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company occupies approximately 46,000 square feet of space at 560 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York under
leases that expire in 2009. The facility serves as the Company’s corporate headquarters, the headquarters for the Company’s
Computer Systems segment and a base for certain operations of the Company’s Staffing Services segment. The following
table sets forth certain information as to each of the Company’s other major facilities:

’ Approximate Sq. F't. If Leased, Year of

Location Business Segment ‘; Leased Or Owned Lease Expiration
Orange, West Region Headquarters 200,000 Owned (1)
California Accounting Center .

Staffing Services

Computer Systems
El Segundo, Staffing Services .‘ 20,000 QOwned
California :
San Diego, Staffing Services 20,000 Owned
California '
Montevideo, Telephone Directory , 36,000 2007
Uruguay
Blue Bell, Telephone Directory . 55,000 2007
Pennsylvania Computer Systems
Redmond, Staffing Services f 46,000 2010
‘Washington : 40,000 2007
Edison, Telecommunications Services 42,000 2010
New Jersey
Wallington, Computer Systems 32,000 2008

New Jersey
(1) See Note F of Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements for inforination regarding a term loan secured by a deed of trust on this property.

The Company leases space in approximately 250 other facilities worldwide (excluding month-to-month rentals), each of which
consists of less than 20,000 square feet. These leases expire at various times from 2006 until 2014.

At times, the Company leases space to others in the buildings that it owns or leases, if it does not require the space for its
own business. The Company believes that its facilities are adequate for its presently anticipated uses and that it is not depen-
dent upon any individually leased premises.

For additional information pertaining to lease commitments, see Note O of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, the Company is party to certain claims and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business,
including those discassed in Item 1 of this Report. There are no claims or legal proceedings pending against the Corpany or
its subsidiaries, which, in the opinion of management, would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s eonsolidated
financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A YOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

WILLIAM SHAW, 81, a founder of the Company, has been President, eo-Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Board of the Company since September 2005 and prior thereto served as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
of the Board of the Company since its inception in 1357. He has been employed in executive capacities by the Company and
its predecessors since 1950.

STEVEN A. SHAW, 46, has been Executive Vice President, co-Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company since September 2005 and prior thereto served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the
Company since March 2005, Senior Vice President of the Company from November 2000 until March 2005 and Vice
President of the Company from April 1997 until November 2000. He has been employed by the Company in executive
capacities since November 1995.

JEROME SHAW, 79, a founder of the Company, has been Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company since
its inception in 1957 and has been employed in executive capacities by the Company and its predecessors since 1950.

JAMES J. GROBERG, 77, has been a Senior Vice President and Principal Financial Officer of the Company since
September 1985 and was also employed in executive capacities by the Company from 1973 to 1981.

HOWARD B. WEINREICH, 63, has been General Counsel of the Company since Septerber 1985 and a Senior Vice
President of the Company since May 2001. He has been employed in executive capacities by the Company sinee 1381.

THOMAS DALEY, 51, has been Senior Vice President of the Company since March 2001 and has been employed in
executive capacities by the Company since 1980.

LUDWIG M. GUARING, 54, has been Treasurer of the Company since January 1994 and has been employed in executive
capacities by the Company since 1976.

JACK EGAN, 58, has been Vice President-—Corporate Accounting and Principal Accounting Officer since January 1992
and has been employed in executive capacities by the Company since 1979.

DANIEL G. HALLIHAN, 57, has been Vice President—Accounting Operations since Jannary 1992 and has been employed
in executive capacities by the Company since 1986.

RONALD KOCHMAN, 46, has been Vice President since March 2005 and has been employed by the Company in executive
capacities since 1987.

‘William Shaw and Jerome Shaw are brothers. Steven A. Shaw is the son of Jerome Shaw. Bruce @. Goodman, a director.of
the Company, is the son-in-law of William Shaw. There are no other family relationships among the executive officers or
directors of the Company. !
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PART 11

EQUITY SECURITIES

QOctober 30, 2005:

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF

The Company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE Symbol-VOL). The following table sets
forth the high and low prices of Volt’s common stock, as reported by the NYSE, during the Company’s two fiscal years ended

Fourth Quarter

4 December 29, 2005.

2005 2004
Fiscal Period High Low High Low
First Quarter $31.99 $24.57 $23.55 $17.70
Second Quarter 32.51 19.67 27.79 21.20
Third Quarter 27.21 19.10 31.98 23.03
27.69 17.52 31.23 22.28

As of January 6, 2006, there were approximately 341 holders of record of the Company’s common stock, exclusive of sharehold-
ers whose shares were held by brokerage firms, depositories and other institutional firms in “street name” for their customers.

Cash dividends have not been paid during the reported periods. The Company’s credit agreement contains financial covenants,
one of which limits dividends in any fiscal year to 50% of the prior year’s consolidated net income, as defined. Therefore, the
amount available for dividends at October 31, 2005 was $8.5 million. The Company does not currently anticipate the payment
of cash dividends in fiscal 2006 beyond Volt Delta’s distribution to Nortel Networks of $5.4 million, which was paid on

The following table sets forth certain information, as at Getober 30, 2005, with respect to the Company’s equity compensa-

i i tion plans: _

i Number of Securities to Weighted Average Number of Securities
M be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Remaining Avatlable for
= of Qutstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Fuature Issuance Under
l > Plan Category ‘Warrants and Rights ‘Warrants and Rights Equity Compensation Plans
= Equity compensation plans

= approved by security holders 440,898 (a) $20.94 — {(a)
-4 Equity compensation plans nat 1
approved by security holders — — -
i Total 440,898 $20.94 —

;m (a) The Company’s 1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, the Company s anly equity compensation plan, terminated on May 16, 2005 except for options
e previcusly granted under the plao. J
| id

No information of the type called for by Items 701 and 703 of Regulation S-X (relating to uaregistered sales of equity securi-
ties by the Company and purchases of equity securities by the Company and affiliated purchasers) is required to be included

in this Form 10-K.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Year Ended (Notes 1 and 2)

October 30, Oectober 31, November 2, November 3, November 4,

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands, except per share data)
Net Sales $2,177,619  $1,924777  $1,609,491  $1,468,093  $1,901,491
Income (loss) from continuing operations—
before items shown below—Note 3 $ 17,040 $ 24,196 $ 4205 $ (5,096) ¢ 7,296
Discontinued operations—Note 4 —_ 9,520 —_ 4,310 (814)
Cumulative effect of a change in aceounting— '
goodwill impairment—Note 3 — —_ — (81,927) —_
Net income (loss) $ 17040 $ 33716 $ 4205 $ (32,713) & 6,482
Per Share Data
Basie:
Income (loss) from continuing operations—
before iteras shown below $ 111 % 1.59 $ 028 & 0.33) 3% 0.48
Discontinued operations — 0.62 —_ 0.28 (0.06)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting —_ —_ —_ (2.10) —
Net income (loss) $ 111 8 2.21 $ 028 8 (2.15) $ 0.42
‘Weighted average number of shares 15,320 15,234 15,218 15,217 15,212
Diluted:
Income (loss) income from continuing
operations—before items shown below $ 1.11 % 158 $ 028 % (0.33) $ 0.48
Discontinued operations _— 0.62 _ 0.28 (0.06)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting — — — (2.10) —
Net income (loss) ¢ 1.11 8 220 ¢ 0.28 8 (2.15) 8 0.42
Weighted average number of shares 15,417 15,354 15,225 15,217 15,244
Total assets $ 688,712 ¢ 690,036 $ 540,483 $ 511,569 § 639,258
Long-term debt, net of eurrent portion $ 18297 ¢ 15588 % 14,098 ¢ 14469 ¢ 15993

Note 1-—Fisezl years 2001 through 2005 consisted of 52 weeks.

Note 2—Cash dividends were not paid during the five-year period ended Oetober 30, 2005.

Note 3—Fiscal 2004 included a gain from the sale of real estate of $3.3 million ($2.0 million, net of taxes, or $0.13 per share).

Fiseal 2002 inchaded a non-cash charge of $31.9 million, or $2.10 per share, recognized for goodwill impairment as of November 5, 2001 presented as a
curaulative effect of & change in accounting. Amortization of goodwill, included in continuing operations net of taxes, which was not permitted to be amor-
tized beginning in fiscal year 2002 under Statement of Finarcial Accounting Standards No. 142, is included in fiscal year 2001 as follows: $2.0 million,
or $0.13 per share.

Fiscal 2001 included a gain on the sale of the Company’s interest in a real estate partnership of $4.2 million ($2.5 million, net of taxes, or $0.16 per
share) and a gain on the sale of securities, net of a write-down of other securities, of $5.6 million ($3.4 million, net of taxes, or $0.22 per share).

Note 4—Fiscal 2004 included a gain from discontinued operations of $9.5 million (net of taxes of $4.6 million), or $0.62 per share, from the sale of real
estate previonsly leased to the Company’s former 59% owned subsidiary, Autologic International, Ine. (“Autologic”).

Fiscal 2002 included a net gain of $4.3 million, or $0.28 per share, including a tax benefit of $1.7 million (resulting from a taxable loss versus a gain
for financial statement purposes), from discontinued operations resulting from the Company’s sale of its 59% interest in Autologic. This amount
included a $4.5 million gain on the sale, partially offset by a $0.2 million loss on operations. Accordingly, the results of operations of Autologic have
also been elassified as diseontinued in the statements of income for fiscal year 2001,

Vot Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Management’s discussion and analysis of its financial position and results of operations are based upon the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments, assump-
tions and valuations that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures.
Future reported results of operations could be impacted if the Company’s estimates, judgments, assumptions or valuations
made in earlier periods prove to be wrong. Management believes the eritical accounting policies and areas that require the
most significant estimates, judgments, assumptions or valuations used in the preparation of the Company’s financial state-
ments are as follows:

Revenue Recognition: The Company derives its revenues from several sources. The revenue recognition methods, which are
consistent with those preseribed in Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 (“SAB 104”), “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements,”
are described below in more detail for the significant types of revenue within each of its segments.

- Staffing Services:

Staffing: Sales are dérived from the Company’s Staffing Solutions Group supplying its own temporary personnel to its
customers, for which the Company assumes the risk of acceptability of its employees to its customers, and has credit risk .
for collecting its billings after it has paid its employees. The Company reflects revenues for these services on a gross
basis in the period the services are rendered. In ﬁscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 75% of the

Company’s net sales.
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= HManaged Services: Sales are generated by the Company’s E-Procurement Solutions subsidiary, ProcureStaff, and for
-3 eertain contracts, sales are generated by the Compary’s Staffing Solutions Group’s managed services operations. The
pra Company receives an administrative fee for arranging for, billing for and collecting the billings related to staffing com-
. panies (“associate vendors”) who have supplied personunel to the Company’s customers. The administrative fee is either
23 charged to the customer or subtracted from the Company’s payment to the associate vendor. The customer is typically
v ’ responsible for assessing the work of the associate vendor, and has responsibility for the acceptability of its personnel,
= and in most instances the customer and associate vendor have agreed that the Company does not pay the associate ven-
dor until the customer pays the Company. Based upon the revenue recognition principles in Emerging Issues Task Force
{(“EITF™) 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent,” revenue for these services, where
the customer and the associate vendor have agreed that the Company is not at risk for payment, is recognized net of
associated costs in the period the services are renderéd. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 2% of the
Company’s net sales.

-,_3 Outsourced Projeces: Sales are derived from the Company’s Information Technology Solutions operation providing out-
e source services for a customer in the form of project work, for which the Company is responsible for deliverables. The

= Company’s employees perform the services and the Company has credit risk for collecting its billings. Revenue for these
services is recognized on a gross basis in the period the services are rendered when on a time and material basis, and
when the Company is responsible for project completion, revenue is recognized when the project is complete and the cus-
tomer has approved the work. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 5% of the Company’s net sales.

Telephone Directorys:

Directory Publishing: Sales are derived from the Company s sales of telephone directory advertising for books it pub-
lishes as an independent publisher in the United States and Uruguay. The Company’s employees perform the services
and the Company has credit risk for collecting its billings. Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in
the period the books are printed and distributed. In ﬁscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 3% of the

= Company’s net sales.

‘:%i :z“‘!i.&f.’,f;l?!!fl';igl;:;‘ﬂ :

N

Ad Production ond Other: Sales are generated when the Company performs design, production and printing services, and
database management for other publishers’ telephone directories. The Company’s employees perform the services and the
L Company has credit risk for collecting its billings. Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period
) the Company has completed its production work and upon customer aceeptance. In fiscal 2005, this revenme ecomprised
S approximately 1% of the Company’s net sales.
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Telecommunications Services:

Construction: Sales are derived from the Company supplying aerial and underground construction services. The Company’s
employees perform the services, and the Company takes title to all inventory and has credit risk for collecting its billings.
The Company relies upon the prineiples in AICPA Statement of Position (“SCP”) 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of
Construction-Type Contracts,” using the completed-contract method, to recognize revenue on a gross basis upon customer
acceptance of the project. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 4% of the Company’s net sales.

Non-Construction: Sales are derived from the Company performing design, engineering and business systems integra-
tions work. The Company’s employees perform the services and the Company has eredit risk for collecting its billings.
Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period in which services are performed, and if applicable,
any completed units are delivered and accepted by the customer. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately
2% of the Company’s net sales.

Computer Systems:

Database Access: Sales are derived from the Company granting access to its proprietary telephone listing databases to
telephone companies, inter-exchange carriers and non-telco enterprise customers. The Company uses its own databases
and has credit risk for collecting its billings. The Cormpany recognizes revenue on a gross basis in the period in which
the customers access the Company’s databases. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 5% of the
Company’s net sales.

IT Maintenance: Sales are derived from the Company providing hardware maintenance services to the general business
community, including customers who utilize the Company’s systems, on a time and material basis or a contract basis.
The Company uses its own employees and inventory in the performance of the services, and has credit risk for collecting
its billings. Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period in which the services are performed,
contingent upon customer acceptance when on a time and material basis, or over the life of the contract, as appropriate.
In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 2% of the Company’s net sales.

Telephone Systems: Sales are derived from the Company providing telephone operator services-related systems and
enhancements to existing systems, equipment and software to customers. The Company uses its own employees and has
credit risk for collecting its billings. The Company relies upon the principles in AICPA SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue
Recognition,” and EITF 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,” to recognize revenue on a gross
basis upon customer acceptance of each part of the system based upon its fair value. In fiscal 2005, this revenue com-
prised approximately 1% of the Company’s net sales.

The Company records provisions for estimated losses on contracts when losses become evident. Accumulated unbilled costs
on contracts are carried in inventory at the lower of actual cost or estimated realizable value.

Allowgnre for Uncoliectable Accounts: The establishment of an allowance requires the use of judgment and assumptions
regarding potential losses on receivable balances. Allowances for doubtful accounts receivable are maintained based upon his-
torical payment patterns, aging of accounts receivable and actual write-off history. The Company believes that its allowances
are adequate; however, changes in the financial condition of customers could have an effect on the allowance balance
required, resulting in a related charge or credit to earnings.

Goodwill: Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS"} No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
goodwill is no longer amortized, but is subject to annual impairment testing using fair value methodologies. The impairment
test for goodwill is a two-step process. Step one consists of a comparison of the equity value (“fair value”) of the reporting
unit with its book value (“carrying amount”), including the goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. Measurement of the fair
value of a reporting unit is based on one or more fair value measures inchuding present value techniques of estimated future
cash flows and estimated amounts at which the unit as a whole could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing
parties. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, step two requires the fair value of the reporting
unit to be allocated to the underlying assets and liabilities of that reporting unit, resulting in an implied fair valne of goodwill,
If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss equal
to the excess is recorded in earnings. The Company performs its impairment testing using comparable multiples of sales
and EBITDA and other valuation methods to assist the Company in the determination of the fair value of the reporting
units measured.
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Long-Lived Assets: Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost, and depreciation and amortization are provided on the
straight-line and accelerated methods at rates calculated to depreciate the cost of the assets over their estimated lives. Intangible
assets, other than goodwill, and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Under SFAS No. 144, these assets are tested for recover-
ability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Circurnstances
which could trigger a review include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price of the asset; significant
adverse changes in the business climate or legal factors; the aceumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount
originally expected for the acquisition of construction of the asset; current period cash flow or operating losses combined with
a history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and a current expectation that the
asset will more likely than not be sold or disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful life. Recoverability is
assessed based on the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the undiseounted cash flows expected to result from the
use and the eventual disposal of the asset or asset group: An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not
recoverable and exceeds the fair value of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss is measured as the amount by which
the carrying amount exceeds fair value.

Capitalized Softwere: The Company’s software technology personnel are involved in the development and acquisition of internal-
use software to be used in its Enterprise Resource Planning system and software used in its operating segments, some of
which are eustomer accessible. The Company accounts for the capitalization of software in accordance with AICPA Statement
of Position No. 98-1, “Aceounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Subsequent to
= the preliminary project planning and approval stage, all appropriate costs are capitalized until the point at which the software
o is ready for its intended use. Subsequent to the software being used in operations, the capitalized costs are transferred from
costs-in-process to completed property, plant and equipment, and are accounted for as such. All post-implementation costs,
e such as maintenance, training and minor upgrades that do not result in additional functionality, are expensed as incurred.

== Securitization Progrem: The Company accounts for the securitization of aceounts receivable in accordance with SFAS No. 140,
— “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” At the time a participation
g interest in the receivables is sold, that interest is removed from the consolidated balance sheet. The outstanding balance of
the undivided interest sold to Three Rivers Funding Corporation (“TRFCO”), an asset backed commercial paper conduit

:; sponsored by Mellon Bank, N.A., was $100 million at October 30, 2005 and $70 million at October 31, 2004, respectively.
5 Accordingly, the trade receivables included on the October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 balance sheets have been reduced to
:_ reflect the participation interest sold. TRFCO has no recourse to the Company (beyond its interest in the pool of receivables

owned by Volt Funding, a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of the Company) for any of the sold receivables.

Primary Casualty Insurance Program: The Company is insured with highly rated insurance companies under a program that
provides primary workers’ compensation, employer’s liability, general liability and automobile liability insurance under a loss
sensitive program. In certain mandated states, the Company purchases workers’ compensation insurance through participation
in state funds and the experience-rated premiums in these state plans relieve the Company of any additional liability. In the
loss sensitive program, initial premium aceruals are established based upon the underlying exposure, such as the amount and
type of labor utilized, number of vehicles, ete. The Company establishes aceruals utilizing actuarial methods to estimate the
future cash payments that will be made to satisfy the clairns, including an allowance for incurred-but-not-reported claims. This
process also includes establishing loss development factor§, based on the historical claims experience of the Company and the
w industry, and applying those factors to current claims information to derive an estimate of the.Company’s ultimate premium
liability. In preparing the estimates, the Company considers the nature and severity of the claims, analyses provided by third
party actuaries, as well as current legal, economic and regulatory factors. The insurance policies have various premium rating
plans that establish the ultimate premium to be paid. Prior to March 31, 2002, the amount of the additional or return premium
was finalized. Subsequent thereto, adjustments to premiums will be made based upon the level of claims incurred at a future
date up to three years after the end of the respective policy period. For the policy year ended March 31, 2003, a maximum
premium was predetermined and paid. For subsequent policy years, management evaluates the accrual, and the underlying
assumptions, regularly throughout the year and makes adjustments as needed. The ultimate premium cost may be greater or
less than the established acerual. While management believes that the recorded amounts are adequate, there can be no
assurance that changes to management’s estimates will not oceur due to limitations inherent in the estimation process. In the
event it is determined that a smaller or larger acerual is appropriate, the Company would record a credit or a charge to cost
of services in the period in which such determination is made.
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Hedical Insyrance Program: Beginning in April 2004, the Company became self-insured for the majority of its medical benefit
programs, The Company remains insured for a portion of its medical program (primarily HMOs) as well as the entire dental
program. The Company provides the self-insured medical benefits through an arrangement with a third party administrator.
However, the liability for the self-insured benefits is limited by the purchase of stop loss insurance. The contributed and
withheld funds and related liabilities for the self-insured program together with unpaid premiums for the insured programs,
other than the current provision, are held in a 501(c)(9) employee welfare benefit trust and do not appear on the balance
sheet of the Company. In order to establish the self-insurance reserves, the Company utilized actuarial estimates of expected
losses based on statistical analyses of historical data. The provision for future payments is initially adjusted by the enrollment
levels in the various plans. Periodically, the resulting liabilities are monitored and will be adjusted as warranted by changing
circamstances. Should the amount of claims oceurring exceed what was estimated or medical costs increase beyond what was
expected, accrued liabilities might not be sufficient, and additional expense may be recorded.

Fiscal 2005 Compared te Fiscal 2004

EXECUTIVE OVERYIEW

Volt Information Sciences, Ine. (“Volt”) is a leading national provider of staffing services and telecommunications and infor-
mation solutions with a material portion of its revenue coming from Fortune 100 customers. The Company operates in four
segments and the management discussion and analysis addresses each. A brief deseription of these segments and the predom-
inant source of their sales follows:

o Staffing Services: This segment is divided into three major functional areas and operates through a network of over 300
branch offices.

° Staffing Solutions fulfills IT and other technical, commercial and industrial placement requirements of its customers,
on both a temporary and permanent basis, together with managed staffing services.

° E-Procurement Solutions provides global vendor neutral procurement and management solutions for supplemental
staffing using web-based tools through the Company’s ProcureStaff subsidiary.

* Information Technology Solutions provides a wide range of information technology consulting and project management
services through the Company’s VMC Consulting subsidiary.

¢ Telephone Directory: This segment publishes independent telephone directories, provides telephone directory production
services, database management and printing.

o Telecommunicgtions Services: This segment provides a full spectrum of telecommunications econstruction, installation and
engineering services in the outside plant and central offices of telecommunications and cable companies as well as for
large commercial and governmental entities.

> Computer Systems: This segment provides directory and operator systems and services primarily for the telecommunica-
tions industry, and provides IT maintenance services.

Several historical seasonal factors usually affect the sales and profits of the Company. The Staffing Services segment’s sales
are always lowest in the Company’s first fiscal quarter due to the Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Year holidays, as well
as certain customer facilities closing for one to two weeks. During the third and fourth quarters of the fiscal year, this seg-
ment benefits from a reduction of payroll taxes when the annual tax contributions for higher salaried employees have been
met, and customers increase the use of the Company’s administrative and industrial labor during the summer vacation
period. In addition, the Telephone Directory segment’s DataNational division publishes more directories during the second
half of the fiscal year. "

Numerous non-seasonal factors impaeted sales and profits in the current fiscal year. In fiseal 2005, the sales of the Staffing
Services segment, in addition to the factors noted above, were positively impacted by a continued increase in the use of con-
tingent technical staffing. Operating profits for the year were lower than in fiscal 2004 due to decreased margins and higher
overhead costs incurred to enable the continuation of the growth in the Technical Placement division, including the VMC
Consulting business.

In fiscal 2005, the operating profit of the Telephone Directory segment was the highest in its history. The increase in operat-
ing profit from the prior year was predominantly due to sales increases, and reductions in overhead throughont the segment.
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The sales and operating results of the Telecommunications Services segment have improved in fiseal 2005. The decrease in
the operating loss was due to the sales increase and decreased overhead costs, partially offset by reduced segment margins
for the year. The Company continues to monitor the overhead within the segment in order to partially mitigate the effect of
the reduced margins.

As a result of recent losses in its Telecommunications Services segment, in August 2005, the Company restructured the
Telecommunications Services segment, which is expected to result in a reduction of future overhead within the segment of
approximately $3.9 million on an annual basis. The restructuring resulted in the segment reducing its overhead headeount,
eonsolidating two business units and closing and consolidating several of its leased loeations. The Company ineurred z charge
for employee severance and lease termination costs approximating $0.4 million in the fourth quarter.

In 2005, the Computer Systems segment’s sales and operating profit were the highest in its history. The sales growth continues
to be positively impacted by the increase in the segment’s ASP directory assistance outsoureing business, in which there contin-
ues to be a substantial inerease in transaction revenue, as well as revenue from the business acquired from Nortel Networks.

The Company has, and will continue to focus on aggressively increasing its market share, while attempting to maintain mar-
gins and minimize overhead increases in order to increase profits.

The Company continues its effort to streamline its processes to manage the business and protect its assets through the contin-
ued deployment of its Six Sigma initiatives, upgrading its financial reporting systerns, its compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, and the standardization and upgrading of I'T redundancy and business continuity for corporate systems and communica-
tions networks. To the extent possible, the Company has been utilizing, and will continue to utilize, internal resources supple-
mented with temporary staff and consultants to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act by the end of fiscal year 2005. To date,
outside costs of compliance with this Aect, including software licenses, temporary staff, consultants and professional fees
amounted to $3.1 million, and it is anticipated that an additional $1.8 million, excluding audit fees, will be expended in the
first quarter of fiscal 2008, related to compliance for fiscal 2005.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The information that appears below relates to prior periods. The results of operations for those periods are not necessarily
indicative of the results which may be expected for any subsequent period. The following discussion should be read in con-
Jjunction with the Operating Segment Data in Item 1 of this Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes
thereto which appear in Item 8 of this Report.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—SUMMARY

In fiscal 2005, consolidated net sales increased by $252.8vmi1]ion, or 13%, to $2.2 billion, from fiscal 2004. The increase in
fiscal 2005 net sales resulted from increases in Staffing Services of $189.7 million, Computer Systems of $53.1 million,
Telephone Directory of $10.1 million and Telecommunications Services of $3.6 million.

The net income for fiscal 2005 was $17.0 million compared to $33.7 million in the prior fiscal year. The consolidated results
for fiscal 2004 included income from discontinued operations of $9.5 million (net of taxes of $4.6 million) from the sale of
real estate previously leased to the Company’s former 53% owned subsidiary, Autologic International, Ine.

The Company’s fiscal 2005 income from continuing operations before income taxes was $29.3 million compared to $39.7 mil-
lion in fiscal 2004. The Company’s operating segments reported an operating profit of $79.4 million in fiscal 2005, an increase
of $4.6 million, or 6%, from the prior year. The change in operating profit was due to the increased operating profits of the
Telephone Directory segment of $4.8 million and the Computer Systems segment of $5.0 million, the reduced operating loss of
the Telecommunications segment of $0.4 million, partially offset by a reduction in the operating profit of the Staffing Services
segment of $5.5 milljon. ‘

(Feneral corporate expenses increased by $8.0 million due to costs incurred relating to compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act and to meet the disaster recovery requirements of redundaney and business continuity for corporate systems and commu-
nication networks, as well as salary and professional fee increases.




RESULTS QF QPERATIONS —BY SEGHMENT

STAFFING SERVICES
Year Ended
October 30, 2005  Qectober 31, 2004

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net {Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Staffing Services Dollars  Sales  Dollars  Sales $ Change % Change

(Dollars in Millions)

Staffing Sales (Gross) $1,765.8 $1,584.1 $181.7 11.5%
Managed Service Sales {Gross) $1,157.2 $1,148.1 $ 9.1 0.8%
Sales (Net)* $1,801.8 $1,612.1 $189.7 11.8%
Gross Profit $ 2763 153% $ 2564 15.9% $ 19.9 7.7%
Overhead $ 2451 13.6% ¢ 219.7 13.6% $(25.4) (11.5)%
Operating Profit $ 3812 1.7% $ 36.7 2.3% $ (5.5) (15.0)%

? Sales (Net) only includes the gross margin on managed service sales.

The sales increase of the Staffing Services segment in fiseal 2005 from the prior year was due to increased staffing business
in both the Technical Placement and the Administrative and Industrial divisions, and the VMC Consulting business of the
Technical Placement division.

The decrease in the operating profit of the segment in fiscal 2005 was due to decreased profits in the VMC Consulting opera-
tion within the Technical Placement division, increased losses in the Administrative and Industrial division, partially offset
by increased operating profits in the other staffing and managed service operations of the Technical Placement division.

Year Ended
Qetober 30, 2005  October 31, 2004

% of % of Favorable Favarable

Net Net {Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Technical Placement Division Dollars  Sales  Dollars Sales $ Change % Change

(Dollars in Millions)

Sales (Gross) $2,226.5 $2,072.4 $154.1 7.4%
Sales {Net) $1,129.1 $ 974.9 $154.2 15.8%
Gross Profit $ 1888 16.7% $ 1703 17.5% $ 185 10.9%
Overhead $ 1523 13.5% 8 1305 134% $(21.8) (16.7)%
Operating Profit $ 865 3.2% $ 398 41% $ (3.3) (8.4)%

The Technical Placement division’s inerease in net sales in fiscal 2005 from the prior year was due to 2 $135.0 million, or
16%, sales increase in traditional alternative staffing, a $12.0 million, or 11%, increase in VMC Consulting project manage-
ment and consulting sales, and a $7.3 million, or 28% increase in net managed service associate vendor sales. The decrease
in the operating profit was the result of the decrease in gross margin percentage and the inerease in overhead as a percent- -
age of net sales, partially offset by the increased sales. The decrease in gross margin percentage was due to higher payroll
taxes throughout the division and reduced markups within VMC Consulting. The increase in overhead dollars was principally
due to an increase in indirect labor and related payroll costs incurred to sustain the sales growth of the division, including
the VMC Consulting business.
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Year Ended
Qctober 30, 2005 Oectober 31, 2004

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net, (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Administrative & Industrial Division Dollars Sales Dollars Sales ¢ Change % Change

: (Dollars in Millions)

‘Sales (Gross) $696.5 $659.7 $36.8 5.8%
Sales (Net) $672.7- $637.2 $35.5 5.6%
Gross Profit $ 87.5 13.0% $ 86.1 13.5% $ 14 1.6%
Cverhead $ 928 13.8% $ 892 14.0% $(3.6) (4.0)%
Operating Loss $ (5.3) (0.8)% $ (3.1) (0.5)% $(2.2) (69.9)%

The Administrative and Industrial division’s increase in gross sales in fiscal 2005 resulted from revenue from both new
accounts and increased business from existing accounts. The increased operating loss was a result of the decreased gross
margin percentage, partially offset by the increased sales and the decrease in overhead as a percentage of sales. The decrease
in gross margin percentage was primarily due to higher payrol] taxes and the increase in overhead dollars was due to
increases in indirect labor.

Although the markets for the segment’s services include a broad range of industries throughout the United States, Europe
and Asia, general economic difficulties in specific geographic areas or industrial sectors have in the past and could in the
future affect the profitability of the segment. Much of the segment’s business is obtained through submission of competitive
proposals for staffing services and other contracts which are frequently re-bid after expiration. Many of this segment’s long-
term contracts contain cancellation provisions under which the customer can cancel the contract, even if the segment is not in
default under the contract, and generally do not provide for a minimum amount of work to be awarded to the segment. While
the Company has historically secured new contracts and believes it can secure renewals and/or extensions of most of these
contracts, some of which are material to this segment, and obtain new business, there can be no assurance that contracts will
be renewed or extended, or that additional or replacement contracts will be awarded to the Company on satisfactory terms.

TELEPHONE DIRECTORY

‘ Year Ended
October 30, 2005  October 31, 2004
% of % of Favorable Favorable

; Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Telephone Directory Dollars Sales Dollars  Sales $ Change % Change

’ {Dollars in Millions)
Sales (Net) $82.3 $72.2 $10.1 14.0%
Gross Profit $42.5 51.6% $39.4 54.6% $ 3.1 7.8%
Overhead $27.6 33.5% $29.3 40.6% $ 1.7 5.9%
Operating Profit $14.9 18.1% $10.1 14.0% $ 4.8 47.3%

The components of the Telephone Directory segment’s sales increase for fiseal 2005 from the prior year were increases of
$4.9 million in printing sales in Uruguay, $3.1 million in publishing sales, $2.8 million in systems sales, partially offset by a
$0.7 million decrease in other sales. The increase in publishing sales was comprised of a $2.2 million increase in the sales of
the DataNational community telephone directory operation and a $1.6 million inerease in the Uruguayan directory operation
due to the timing of the delivery of its directories, partially offset by a $0.7 million sales reduction related to the elimination
of a directory publication sold in fiscal 2004. The decrease in other sales was predominantly due to the sale of the ViewTech
division in the third quarter, resulting in a sales reduction in the current year of $1.3 million. The gain on the sale of the
division was $0.1 million in fiscal 2005. The DataNational and Uruguayan variances in sales were due to the changes in the
nunmber of directories printed and delivered. The increase in the segment’s operating profit from fiscal 2004 was the result of
the sales increase and the decrease in overhead, primarily due to $1.0 million of expenses incurred in fiscal 2004 in connec-
tion with an investigation in Uruguay, partially offset bv lower margins recognized on the Uruguayan telephone directories
published in the period.




Other than the DataNational division, which accounted for 65% of the segment’s fiscal 2005 sales, the segment’s business is
obtained through submission of competitive proposals for production and other contracts. These short- and long-term con-
tracts are re-bid after expiration. Many of this segment’s long-term contracts contain cancellation provisions under which the
customer can cancel the contract, even if the segment is not in default under the contract and generally do not provide for a
minimum amount of work to be awarded to the segment. While the Company has historically secured new contracts and
believes it can secure renewals and/or extensions of most of these contracts, some of which are material to this segment, and
obtain new business, there can be no assurance that contracts will be renewed or extended, or that additional or replacement
contracts will be awarded to the Company on satisfactory terms. In addition, this segment’s sales and profitability are highly
dependent on advertising revenue for DataNational’s directories, which could be affected by general economic conditions.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Year Ended
QOctober 30, 2005 October 31, 2004

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Telecommunications Dollars Sales Dollars Sales $ Change % Change

(Doliars wn Millions)

Sales (Net) $139.0 $135.4 $3.6 2.7%
Gross Profit $ 25.0 18.0% % 31.0 22.9% $(6.0) (19.4)%
Overhead $274 197% $ 33.8 25.0% $6.4 19.0%
Operating Loss $ (24 AND%H $ (2.8 (2.1)% $0.4 14.4%

The Telecommunications Services segment’s sales increase of $3.6 million, or 3%, in fisecal 2005 from the prior year was due
to a $24.5 million, or 40%, increase in sales for the Construction and Engineering division, partially offset by a sales redue-
tion in the other divisions within the segment of $20.9 million, or 28%. The decrease in the operating loss was due to the
sales increase, a decrease in overhead (which in fiseal 2004 included a previously reported $1.3 million charge related to a
domestie consulting contract for services), partially offset by a gross margin decrease. The sales increase in the Construction
and Engineering division in fiscal 2005 resulted from customer acceptance of several large construction jobs accounted for
using the completed-contract method. Despite an emphasis on cost controls, the results of the segment continue to be affected
by the deeline in capital spending by telephone companies caused by the depressed conditions within the segment’s telecorn-
munications industry customer base. This factor has also increased competition for available work, pressuring pricing and
gross margins throughout the segment. Actions by major long-distance telephone companies to reduce marketing of local
residential service have negatively impacted sales and continue to impact margins of the segment.

As a result of recent losses in its Telecommunications Services segment, in August 2005, the Company restructured the
Telecommunications Services segment which is expected to result in a reduction of future overhead within the segment of
approximately $3.9 million on an annual basis. The restructuring resulted in the segment reducing its overhead headeount,
consolidating two divisions and closing and consolidating several of its leased locations. In accordance with SFAS No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” the Company incurred a charge for employee severance
and lease termination costs of $0.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiseal 2005, which is when the liabilities were incurred.
It is not expected that substantial adjustments to the fourth quarter charge will oceur subsequent to fiscal year-end.

A substantial portion of the business in this segment is obtained through the submission of competitive proposals for contracts,
which typically expire within one to three years and are re-bid. Many of this segment’s long-term contracts contain cancella-
tion provisions under which the customer can cancel the contract, even if the segment is not in default under the contract and
generally do not provide for a minimum amount of work to be awarded to the segment. While the Company believes it can
secure renewals and/or extensions of most of these contracts, some of which are material to this segment, and obtain new busi-
ness, there can be no assurances that contracts will be renewed or extended or that additional or replacement contracts will be
awarded to the Company on satisfactory terms.
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COMPUTER SYSTEMS

Year Ended
October 30, 2005  Cctober 31, 2004

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Computer Systems Dollars  Sales Dollars  Sales $ Change % Change

! {Dollars in Millions)

Sales (Net) $173.1 $120.0 $ 53.1 44.3%
Gross Profit $518 530% $ 721 601% $ 19.7 27.4%
Overhead $560 324% $ 412 344% $(14.8) (35.6)%
Operating Profit $358 207% $ 309 257% $ 4.9 16.1%

The Computer Systems segment's sales inerease in fiscal 2005 over the prior year was due to improvements in the segment’s
= operator services business, including ASP directory assistance, which reflected a $31.8 million, or 48%, growth in sales dur-
= =3 ing the period, a sales increase of $2.9 million, or 36%, in DataServ’s data services which are provided to non-teleo enterprise

2 customers, a $5.5 million, or 14%, sales growth in the Maintech division’s IT maintenance services, and a $12.9 million, or
- 239%, increase in product revenue recognized. The sales for the year inchaded $31.1 million of the busiriess acquired from
Nortel Networks, which represented 18% of the segment’s sales for fiscal 2005, as compared to $8.1 million of sales included
in the prior year, representing 7% of the segment’s sales. The prior year results included only the fourth quarter results of
operation from the acquired business. The growth in operating profit from fiscal 2004 was the result of the increase in sales
and the decrease in overhead as a percentage of sales, partially offset by the decrease in gross margin percentage. The lower
gross margin percentage in fiscal 2005, as compared to fiscal 2004 was partially due to the favorable settlement of vendor
disputes and refunds in fiscal 2004 approximating $1.2 million, lower margins recognized in fiscal 2005 related to product
reventue recognition, and the increase in the Nortel-related business in fiscal 2005, the margins of which are lower than the
segment average. :

Volt Delta, the entity which operates the Computer Systems segment, acquired certain assets and liabilities of Nortel
Networks on Aagust 2, 2004 in exchange for a 24% equity interest in the segment (which was acquired on December 29,
2005). This acquisition permits Volt Delta to provide the combined customer base with new selutions and an expanded suite ‘
of produets, content and enhanced services.

This segment’s results are highly dependent on the volume of calls to the segment’s customers that are processed by the seg-
ment under existing contracts with telephone companies, the segment’s ability to continue to secure comprehensive telephone
listings from others, its ability to obtain additional customers for these services and its continued ability to sell products and
ES services to new and existing castomers. '

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—OTHER

2 ' Year Ended

o ) October 30, 2005 October 31, 2004

f;; e ?_ % of % of  Favorable Favorable
g .. Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
g Other Dollars Sales Dollars  Sales $ Change % Change
. ~5 ‘ (Dollars in Mitlions)

ﬁ Sales & Administrative $929 43% $83.1  4.3% $(9.8) (11.8)%
,,Ij Depreciation & Amortization $29.6 14%  $25.5 1.3% $(4.1) {15.8)%
i ll% Interest Income $ 2.6 0.1% $ 0.9 — $ 1.7 185.7%
Other Expense $(49) 02% $(4.4) 0.2% $(0.5) 11.0)%
E3 Gain on Sale of Real Estate — — $ 33 0.2% $(3.3) (100.0)%
E Foreign Exchange (Loss) Gain $ (0.3) — $ 0.1 _ $(0.4) (362.9)%
= Interest Expense $(1.80) 0.1% $(1.8) 01% — —
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Other items, discussed on & consolidated basis, affecting the results of operations for the fiscal years were:

The increase in selling and administrative expenses in fiscal 2005 from the prior year was a result of increased corporate
general and administrative expenses related to compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. In addition, the Company incurred
increased salaries, professional fees and costs to meet the disaster recovery requirements of redundaney and business conti-
nuity for corporate systems and communications networks.

The increase in depreciation and amortization for fiscal 2005 from the prior year was attributable to increases in fixed
assets, primarily in the Computer Systems and Staffing Services segments, and the increased amortization of intangible
assets in the Computer Systems segment.

Interest income increased due to higher interest rates together with additional funds available for investment.

Other expense in both fiscal years is primarily the charges related to the Company’s Securitization Program as well as busi-
ness taxes and sundry expenses.

The Company’s effective tax rate on its financial reporting pre-tax income from continuing operations was 33.7% in fiseal
2005 compared to 36.8% in fiscal 2004. The reduced effective tax rate in fiscal 2005 was due to federal and state income
taxes attributable to the minority interest treated as a partnership interest, higher general business credits, and lower taxes
on foreign earnings, partially offset by higher non-tax-deductible items.

Fiscal Year 2004 Compared to Fiscal Year 2003

RESULYS OF OPERATIONS—SUMMARY

In fiscal 2004, consolidated net sales increased by $315.3 million, or 19.6%, to $1.9 billion, from fiscal 2003. The primary
increase in fiscal 2004 net sales resulted from increases in Staffing Services of $266.7 million, Computer Systems of $26.4
million, Telecommunications Services of $22.6 million and Telephone Directory of $2.4 million.

The net income for fiscal 2004 was $33.7 million compared to $4.2 million in the prior fiseal year. The consolidated results
for fiseal 2004 included income from discontinued operations of $9.5 million (net of taxes of $4.6 million) from the sale of
real estate previously leased to the Company’s former 59% owned subsidiary, Autologic International, Inc.

The Company’s fiscal 2004 income from continuing operations before income taxes was $39.7 million compared to $7.1 million
in fiscal 2003. The Company’s operating segments reported an operating profit of $74.8 million in fiscal 2004, an increase of
$36.3 million, or 94%, from the prior year. Contributing to the $36.3 million increase were increases in the operating profit of
the Computer Systems segment of $16.2 million, the Staffing Services segment of $15.6 million, the Telephone Directory seg-
ment of $3.4 million and a reduction in the operating loss of the Telecommunications Services segment of $1.1 million.

General corporate expenses increased by $3.1 million due to costs incurred to meet the disaster recovery requirements of
redundancy and business continuity for corporate systems and communication networks, as well as salary and professional
fee increases. In addition, the Company incurred costs related to compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

RESULYS OF OPERATIONS—BY SEGMENT
STAFFING SERVICES

Year Ended
October 31, 2004  November 2, 2003

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Staffing Services Dollars  Sales  Dollars Sales 8 Change % Change

(Dollars in Milltons)

Staffing Sales (Gross) $1,584.0 $1,269.2 $314.8 24.8%
Managed Service Sales (Gross) $1,148.1 $1,043.6 $104.5 10.0%
Sales (Net)* ’ $1,612.1 $1,345.4 $266.7 19.8%
Gross Profit $ 2564 159% $ 2124 15.8% $ 44.0 20.8%
Overhead $ 2197 136% $ 191.3 142% $(28.4) (14.9)%
Operating Profit $ 367 23% $ 211 1.6% $ 15.6 74.3%

® Sales (Net) only includes the gross margin on managed service sales.
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The sales increase of the Staffing Services segment in ﬁscal 2004 from fiscal 2003 was due to increased staffing business in
both the Technical Placement and the Administrative and Industrial divisions, and the VMC Consulting business of the
Technical Placement division. :

The increase in operating profit in the segment was deriv:ed from the staffing and managed service operations of the Technical
Placement division, including VMC Consulting, together with reduced losses of the Administrative and Industrial division.

Year Ended
Cetober 31, 2004  November 2, 2003
i % of % of Favorable Favorable
Net Net (Unfavorable)  (Unfavorable)
Techuical Placement Division Dollars  Sales  Dollars Sales $ Change % Change
, (Dollars in Millions)
Sales (Gross) $2,072.4 $1,791.8 $280.6 15.7%
Sales (Net) $ 9749 $ 8345 $140.4 16.8%
Gross Profit $ 1703 175% $ 1431 17.1% $ 272 19.1%
Overhead $ 1305 134% ¢ 1142 13.7% $(16.3) (14.3)%
Operating Profit $ 3898 41% $ 289 35% $ 109 37.8%

The Technical Placement division’s inerease in gross sales in fiscal 2004 from fiscal 2003 was due to a 21% sales increase
with traditional staffing customers, a 16% increase in ProcureStaff volume due to new accounts and increased busiess from
existing accounts, and a 44% increase in higher margin VMC Consulting project management and consulting sales. However,
substantially all of the ProcureStaff billings are deducted in arriving at net sales due to the use of associate vendors who
have contractually agreed to be paid only upon receipt of the customers’ payment to the Company. The increase in net sales
was due to the increase in gross sales. The increase in operating profit for the year was the result of the increase in sales, the
increase in gross margin and the decrease in overhead costs as a percentage of sales. Partially offsetting the increases in fis-
cal 2004 was $1.2 million in accruals for potential losses and employee separation charges for Volt Europe.

‘ Year Ended
Qetober 31, 2004 November 2, 2003

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Administrative & Industrial Division Dollars Sales Dollars Sales $ Change % Change

(Dollars in Millions)

Sales (Gross) $659.7 $521.0 $138.7 26.6%
Sales (Net) $637.2 $510.9 $126.3 24.7%
Gross Profit $ 861 © 13.5% $ 69.3 13.6% $ 16.8 24.3%
QOverhead $ 892  14.0% $ 77.1 15.1% $(12.1) (15.7%
Operating Loss $ (81) . (05% $ (1.8) (1.5)% $ 4.7 60.0%

The Administrative and Industrial division’s increase in gross sales in fiscal 2004 resulted from both revenue from new
accounts and inereased business from existing accounts. The decrease in operating loss was the result of the sales increase,
a 1.1 percentage point decrease in overhead costs as related to net sales, partially offset by a decrease in gross margin of 0.1
percentage points due to higher payroll taxes, inereased competition and customers leveraging their buying power by eonsoli-
dating the number of vendors with whom they deal.
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TELEPHONE DIRECTORY

Year Ended
October 31, 2004  November 2, 2003

% of % of Favorable Favorable

Net Net  (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Telephone Directory Dollars  Sales  Dollars Sales $ Change % Change

. (Dollars in Millions)

Sales (Net) $72.2 $69.8 $24 3.4%
Gross Profit $39.4 54.6%  $35.0 50.1% $44 12.7%
Overhead $29.3 40.6%  $28.3 40.4% $(1.0) (3.9)%
Operating Profit . $10.1 140% ¢ 6.9 9.7% $ 34 49.9%

The Telephone Directory segment’s sales inerease for fiscal 2004 was due to an increase of $10.2 million, or 22%, in publish-
ing sales, partially offset by a decrease of $7.8 million, or 32% in production, printing and other operations. The publishing
increase was due to the community telephone directory operation of DataNational, whose sales increased by $10.8 million, or
26%, from the prior year due to an increase in advertising sold for the year and an increase in the number of directories
printed and delivered, The most significant cause of the revenue decrease in the production, printing and other operations
was the $3.2 million in production revenue related to the previously reported loss of a contract with a telecommunications
company in the third quarter of fiscal 2003, and a $1.8 million decrease in printing revenue in Uruguay. The segment’s
improvement in operating results was the result of the sales increase, the increase in gross margin, primarily due to the mix
of directories published by DataNational in the period, partially offset by the inerease in overhead as a percentage of sales.
The Company has incurred $1.0 million of expenses in connection with an investigation of a failure to comply with certain
Company policies at its operations in Uruguay, and possible litigation against certain former management personnel at such
operations. The operations in Uruguay are not significant to the Company.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Year Ended
Cetober 31, 2004 November2,2008 B
% of % of Favorable Favorable
Net Net {Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Telecommunications Dollars Sales Doliars Sales $ Change % Change
(Dollars tn Millions) W
Sales (Net) $135.4 $112.8 $22.6 20.0%
Gross Profit $ 310 22.9% % 310 27.5% — 0.1%
Qverhead $ 33.8 25.0% $ 35.0 31.0% $ 1.2 3.2%
Operating Loss $ (2.8) 21)% % (4.0 (3.5)% $12 28.8%

The Telecommunications Services segment’s sales increase in fiscal 2004 was due to increased business in the Business Systems
and Construction and Engineering divisions, partially offset by a decrease in the Central Office division. The decrease in
operating loss was due to the sales increase, the decrease in overhead as a percentage of sales of (including a previously
reported $1.3 million charge in the first quarter related to a domestic consulting contract for services), partially offset by
the decrease in gross margin, Despite an emphasis on cost controls, the results of the segment continue to be affected by the
decline in capital spending by telephone companies caused by the depressed conditions within the segment’s telecommunica-
tions industry customer base. This factor has also increased competition for available work, pressuring pricing and gross
margins throughout the segment. The division most affected by reduced sales and margins was Central Office, whose sales
and margins decreased by 47% and 16.8 percentage points, respectively. Sales in the Construction and Engineering division
of the segment increased by 12% over the prior year while margins decreased by 1.0 percentage point. The increase in sales
was attributable to the completion of several long-term contracts. Sales in the Business Systems division increased by 78%
due to revenue increases from two large customers, while margins decreased by 5.8 percentage points. Actions by major long-
distance telephone companies regarding local residential service could negatively impact sales and continue to impact margins
of the Business Systems division.
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COMPUTER SYSTEMS

Year Ended
October 31, 2004  November 2, 2003
% of % of Favorable Favorable

. Net Net (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Computer Systems Dollars  Sales  Dollars Sales $ Change % Change

.3 (Dollars in Millions)
Sales (Net) $120.0 $93.6 $26.4 28.2%
Gross Profit ¢ 72.1 60.1% $47.8 51.0% $24.3 50.8%
Overhead $ 412 34.4% $33.1 35.4% $(8.1) (24.5)%
Operating Profit $ 30.9 25.7% $14.7 15.7% $16.2 110.1%

The Computer Systems segment’s sales inerease in fiscal 2004 was primarily due to improvements in the segment’s operator
services business, including ASP directory assistance, which reflected a 47% growth in sales during the year, a sales increase
of 125% in DataServ’s directory assistance services which are provided to non-telco enterprise customers, a 13% sales growth
in the Maintech division's IT maintenance services, partially offset by a decrease in product revenue recognized of 64%.
The sales increase for the year also included $8.1 million of business acquired from Nortel Networks, which represented
7% of the segment’s sales for the year. The 2004 year results included only the fourth quarter results of operations from the
acquired business. The growth in operating profit from the prior fiscal year was the result of the increase in sales and gross
margins, partially due to $1.2 million for the settlement of a vendor dispute and vendor refunds related to prior periods,
together with the overhead decrease as a percentage of sales. Volt Delta, the principal business unit of the Computer Systems
segment, acquired certain assets and liabilities of the DOS Business of Nortel Networks on August 2, 2004. This acquisition
permits Vot Delta to provide the newly combined customer base with new solutions and an expanded suite of products, con-
tent and enhanced services. At October 31, 2004, the Company owned 76% of Volt Delta, the entity which operates the
Computer Systems segment. :

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—OQTHER

Year Ended
October 31,2004  November 2, 2003
% of % of Favorable Favorable

, Net Net {Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Other Dollars Sales Dollars  Sales $ Change % Change

ﬂ (Dollars in Millions)
Sales & Administrative $83.1 4.3% $71.7 4.4% $(11.4) (15.9%
Bepreciation & Amortization $25.§ 1.3% $24.3 1.5% $ (1.2) (5.0)%
Interest Income $ 09 — $ 0.7 — $ 02 30.9%
QOther Expense $(4.4) 0.2% $(2.7) 0.2% $ (1.7) (65.3)%
Gain on Sale of Real Estate $ 3.3 0.2% — — $ 33 100.0%
Foreign Exchange Gain $ 01 -_ $ 03 — $ (0.2) (67.6)%
Interest Expense $(1.8) 0.1% $(2.1) 0.1% g 0.3 12.2%

Other items, diseussed on a consolidated basis, affecting the results of operations for the fiscal years were:

The increase in selling and administrative expenses in fiscal 2004 from the prior year was a result of increased corporate
general and administrative expenses related to costs to meet the disaster recovery requirements of redundancy and business
continuity for corporate systems and communications networks, in addition to increased selling expenses to support the
increased sales levels throughout the Company. :

The inerease in depreciation and amortization for fiscal 2004 from the prior year was attributable to an increase in fixed
assets, primarily in the Computer Systems and Staffing Services segments.

Other expense in both fiscal years is primarily the charges related to the Company’s Securitization Program as well as
sundry expenses.
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The gain on sale of real estate is from the sale of land and a building in Anabeim, California for cash. The property was no
longer being used by the Company.

The decrease in interest expense in fiscal 2004 from the prior year was the result of lower borrowing levels and interest rates
in Urunguay.

The Company’s effective tax rate on its financial reporting pre-tax income from continuing operations was 36.8% in fiscal
2004, compared 1o an effective tax rate of 40.9% in fiscal 2003. In fiscal 2004, the effective tax rate was lower due to federal
and state income taxes attributable to the minority interest treated as a partnership interest, lower foreign losses for which
no tax benefit was provided and lower non-tax deductible items.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash held in escrow for ProcureStaff customers of $26,1 million, $43.7 million
and $18.9 million at Getober 30, 2005, October 31, 2004 and November 2, 2003, respectively, increased by $0.1 million to
$88.1 million in fiseal 2005, increased by $26.0 million to $88.0 million in fisecal 2004 and increased by $18.5 million to
$62.1 million in fiscal 2003, Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $17.7 million to $62.0 million in fiscal
2005, increased by $1.1 million to $44.3 million in fiscal 2004 and increased by $11.1 million to $48.2 million in fiseal 2003,

The cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations in fiscal 2005 was $27.5 million compared to $31.2 million
and $36.2 million in fiscal years 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2005, exclusive of changes in operating assets and liabilities, was $54.5
million, as the Company’s net income of $17.0 million included non-cash charges primarily for depreciation and amortization
of $29.6 million, aceounts receivable provisions of $3.8 million and income attributable to the minority interest of $7.0 mil-
lion, partially offset by a deferred income tax benefit of $3.0 million. The cash provided by operating activities in fiscal 2004,
exclusive of changes in operating assets and liabilities, was $52.2 million, as the Company’s net income of $33.7 million
included non-cash charges primarily for depreciation and amortization of $25.5 million, accounts receivable provisions of
$7.8 million and ineome attributable to the minority interest of $2.4 million, partially offset by income from discontinued
operations of $9.5 million, a gain from dispositions of property, plant and equipment of $3.4 million and a deferred income
tax benefit of $4.2 million. In fiscal 2003, operating activities, exclusive of changes in operating assets and liabilities, pro-
duced $35.0 million of cash, as the Company’s net income of $4.2 million included non-cash charges primarily for deprecia-
tion and amortization of $24.3 million and accounts receivable provisions of $6.2 million.

Changes in operating assets and liabilities in fiscal 2005 used $27.0 million of cash, net, principally due to increases in the
level of accounts receivable of $24.1 million, prepaid expenses and other assets of $5.1 million and inventories of $1.1 million,
decreases in the level of accounts payable of $19.1 million, deferred income and other liabilities of $5.2 million and income
tax liability of $2.5 million, partially offset by proceeds from the Securitization Program of $30.0 million. In fiscal 2004,
changes in operating assets and liabilities used $21.0 million of cash, net, principally due to an increase in the level of
accounts receivable of $101.7 million, partially offset by increases in accounts payable of $37.1 million, acerued expenses of
$24.7 million and deferred income and other liabilities of $6.1 million, and decreases in the level of inventories of $6.7 million,
recoverable income taxes of $2.8 million and prepaid expenses and other assets of $2.6 million. In fiscal 2003, changes in
operating assets and liabilities produced $1.2 million of cash, net, principally due to cash provided by increases in acerued
expenses of $14.6 million, proceeds from the Securitization Program of $10.0 million, increases in deferred income and other
liabilities of $8.9 million, and an increase in income taxes of $3.6 million, partially offset by an increase in the level of
accounts receivable of $28.6 million and inventory of $7.2 million.

Cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2005 was $26.4 million, principally due to purchases of property, plant and equip-
ment totaling $28.5 million, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of other assets of $1.9 million. In fiscal 2004, the cash
used in investing activities was $10.1 million, principally due to purchases of property, plant and equipment totaling $30.7
million and acquisitions of businesses of $1.9 million, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of real estate and other assets
of $22.4 million. In fiscal 2003, the cash used in investing activities was $17.4 million, principally due to purchases of prop-
erty, plant and equipment totaling $18.0 million.

The cash used in financing activities in fiscal 2005 of $0.6 million, primarily resulted from a $1.4 million decrease in bank
loans, partially offset by $1.2 million from employee exercises of stock options. In 2004, the cash provided by financing activ-
ities of $4.6 million, primarily resulted from a $3.6 million increase in bank loans and $1.4 million from employee exercises
of stock options. In 2003, the cash provided by financing activities of $0.1 million resulted primarily from a $1.5 million
increase in bank loans, offset by payments of long-term debt totaling $1.5 million.
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0ff-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has no off-balance sheet financing arrangements as that term is used in Item 303(a)4 of Regulation S-K.

Commitments

The Company has no material capital commitments. The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual cash obliga-
tions and other commercial commitments at October 30, 2005:

Contractual Cash Obligations . Payments Due By Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 After 5
Total 1 Year Years Years Years
! (In thousands)

Term Lioan $13,730 ¢ 433 $ 1,535 81,253 $10,509
Payable to Nortel Networks ; 1,871 1,971 — —_— —_
Notes Payable to Banks : 6,622 6,622 — — —_
Total Debt (a) : 22,323 9,026 1,636 1,253 10,509
Acerued Insurance (b) ' i 11,138 9,508 1,630 — —
Deferred Compensation (c) ' 4,936 4,935 — - —
Operating Leases (d) Z 48,812 19,378 22,358 6,662 414
Total Contractual Cash Chligations (e) $87,209  $42,848  $25,523 $7,915 $10,923

(a) Debt does not include interest.

(b) Includes $5.9 million for the Company’s Primary Insurance Casualty Program and $5.2 million for the Company’s Medieal Insurance Program.
See Note A of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(¢) Ineludes $4.2 million for the Company’s non-qualified deferred compensatwn and supplemental savings plan and $0.7 million for the Company’s other
deferred compensation plan. See Note M to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(d) See Note O of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
{¢) Amounts do not inchude amounts payable to Nortel Networks and Varetis AG for acquisitions made in December 2005.

Amount Expected by
Other Contingent Commitments ' Commitment Expiration Period
Less Than 1-3
Total 1 Year Years
. (In thousands)

Lines of Credit, available ‘ $ 7,122 $ 7,122
Revolving Credit Facility, available _ 37,587 — 837,587
Securitization Program, available 50,000 — 50,000
Payable to Nortel Networks ‘ 61,750 61,750 —_—
Standby Letters of Credit, outstanding | 744 744 —_

Total Commercial Commitments : $157,203  $69,616 $87,587

Securitization Program

In April 2005, the Company amended its $150.0 million accounts receivable securitization program (“Securitization
Program”) to provide that the expiration date be extended from April 2006 to April 2007. Under the Securitization Program,
receivables related to the United States operations of the staffing solutions business of the Company and its subsidiaries are
sold from time-to-time by the Company to Volt Funding Corp., a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of the Company
(“Volt Funding”). Volt Funding, in turn, sells to Three Rivers Funding Corporation (“TRFCQ”), an asset backed commercial
paper conduit sponsored by Mellon Bank, N.A., an undivided percentage ownership interest in the pool of receivables Volt
Funding acquires from the Company (subject to a maximum purchase by TRFCO in the aggregate of $150.0 million). The
Company retains the servicing responsibility for the aceounts receivable. At October 30, 2005, TRFCO had purchased from
Volt Funding a participation interest of $100.0 million out of a pool of approximately $283.3 million of receivables.




The Securitization Program is not an off-balance sheet arrangement as Volt Funding is a 100%-owned consolidated subsidiary
of the Company, with accounts receivable only reduced to reflect the fair value of receivables actually sold. The Company
entered into this arrangement as it provided a low-cost alternative to other forms of financing.

The Securitization Program is designed to enable the sale of receivables by the Company to Volt Funding to constitute true
sales of those receivables. As a result, the receivables are available to satisfy Volt Funding’s own obligations to its own credi-
tors before being available, through the Company’s residual equity interest in Volt Funding, to satisfy the Company’s creditors
{subject also, as deseribed above, to the security interest that the Company granted in the common stock of Volt Funding in
favor of the lenders under the Company’s Credit Facility). TRFCO has no recourse to the Company beyond its interest in the
pool of receivables owned by Volt Funding,

In the event of termination of the Securitization Program, new purchases of a participation interest in receivables by TRFCO
would cease and collections reflecting TRFCO’s interest would revert to it. The Company believes TRFCO’s aggregate collee-
tion amounts should not exceed the pro rata interests sold. There are no contingent liabilities or commitments associated with
the Securitization Program.

The Company accounts for the securitization of accounts receivable in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” At the time a participation interest in
the receivables is sold, the receivable representing that interest is removed from the consolidated balance sheet (no debt is
recorded) and the proceeds from the sale are reflected as cash provided by operating activities. Losses and expenses associ-
ated with the transactions, primarily related to discounts ineurred by TRFCO on the issuance of its commereial paper, are
charged to the consolidated statement of operations.

The Securitization Program is subject to termination at TRFCO’s option, under certain circumstances, including, among
other things, the default rate, as defined, on receivables exceeding a specified threshold, the rate of collections on receivables
failing to meet a specified threshold, the Company failing to maintain a long-term debt rating of “B” or better or the equiva-
lent thereof from a nationally recognized rating organization or a default oceurring and continuing on indebtedness for bor-
rowed money of at least $5.0 million. At October 30, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all requirements of its
Securitization Program.

The Company is in the process of finalizing an increase in the Securitization Program to $200.0 million but there ean be no
assurance that it will be finalized.

Credit Lines

In April 2005, the Company amended its secured, syndicated, revolving credit agreement (“Credit Agreement”) to, among
other things, extend the term for three years to April 2008 and increase the line from $30.0 million to $40.0 million.

The Credit Agreement established a secured eredit facility (“Credit Facility”) in favor of the Company and designated subsid-
iaries, of which up to $15.0 million may be used for letters of credit. Borrowings by subsidiaries are limited to $25.0 million in
the aggregate. The administrative agent for the Credit Facility is JPMorgan Chase Bank. The other banks participating in
the Credit Facility are Mellon Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Lloyds TSB Bank PLC and Bank of America, N.A.

Borrowings under the Credit Facility are to bear interest at various rate options selected by the Company at the time of each
borrowing. Certain rate options, together with a facility fee, are based on a leverage ratio, as defined. Additionally, interest
and the facility fees can be increased or decreased upon a change in the Company’s long:term debt rating provided by a
nationally recognized rating agency. As amended, in lieu of the previous borrowing base formulation, the Credit Agreement
now requires the maintenance of specified accounts receivable collateral in excess of any outstanding borrowings. Based upon
the Company’s leverage ratio and debt rating at October 30, 2005, if a three-month U.S. Dollar LIBO rate were the interest
rate option selected by the Company, borrowings would have borne interest at the rate of 4.9% per annum. At Getober 30,
2005, the facility fee was 0.3% per annum. ‘

The Credit Agreement provides for the maintenance of various financial ratios and covenants, including, among other things,
a requirement that the Company maintain a consolidated tangible net worth, as defined; a limitation on cash dividends, capital
stock purchases and redemptions by the Company in any one fiscal year to 50% of consolidated net income, as defined, for the
prior fiscal year; and a requirement that the Company maintain a ratio of EBIT, as defined, to interest expense, as defined,
of 1.25 to 1.0 for the twelve months ending as of the last day of each fiseal quarter. The Credit Agreement also imposes limi-
tations on, among other things, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the incurrence of additional liens, sales of assets,
the level of annual capital expenditures, and the amount of investments, ineluding business acquisitions and investments in
joint ventures, and loans that may be made by the Company and its subsidiaries. At October 30, 2005, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants in the Credit Agreement.
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The Company is liable on all loans made to it and all letters of eredit issued at its request, and is jointly and severally liable
as to loans made to subsidiary borrowers. However, unless also a guarantor of loans, a subsidiary borrower is not liable with
respect to loans made to the Company or letters of credit issued at the request of the Company, or with regard to loans made
to any other subsidiary borrower. Under the April 2005 amendment, five subsidiaries of the Company remain as guarantors
of all loans made to the Company or to subsidiary borrowers under the Credit Facility. At October 30, 2005, four of those
guarantors have pledged approximately $54.4 million of accounts receivable, other than those in the Securitization Program,
as collateral for the guarantee obligations. Under certain circumstances, other subsidiaries of the Company also may be
required to become guarantors under the Credit Facility,

At October 30, 2005, the Company had credit lines with domestic and foreign banks which provided for borrowings and let-
ters of credit up to an aggregate of $51.3 million, including $40.0 million under the Credit Agreement and the Company had
total outstanding foreign currency bank borrowings of $6.6 million, $2.4 million of which were under the Credit Agreement.
These bank borrowings provide a hedge against devaluation in foreign currency denominated assets.

In December 2005, the Credit Agreement was amended f,'o consent to the consummation of the acquisition by the Company
of the twenty-four (24%) percent interest in Volt Delta owned by Nortel Networks and to modify certain of the financial eove-
nants contained in the Credit Agreement and increase the amount of financing permitted under the Securitization Program.

In December 2005, the Company paid approximately $50.0 million, principally from eash on hand, for the Nortel Networks
and Varetis Solutions acquisitions. The remaining $36.8 million is due February 15, 2006.

Summary

The Company believes that its eurrent financial position, {vorking capital, future cash flows from operations, credit lines and
accounts receivable Securitization Program will be sufficient to fund its presently contemplated operations and satisfy its
obligations through, at least, the next twelve months.

New Accounting Proncuncements and Mew Llaws to Be Effective in Fiscal 2006

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs—an Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” which
clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage. This Statement
requires that these items be recognized as period costs even if the amounts are not considered to be abnormal. The provisions
of this Statement are effective for inventory costs incurred in fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company does
not believe that the adoption of this Statement in fiscal 2006 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial position or results of operations. '

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets—an Amendment of APB Opinion
No. 29,” to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replace it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005, with early application
permitted for exchanges beginning after November 2004. The adoption of this Statement has not had a material impaet on
the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which replaces the superseded SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” This Statement requires that all entities apply a fair-value-based measurement
method in aceounting for share-based payraent transactions with employees and suppliers when the entity acquires goods or
services. The provisions of this Statement are required to be adopted by the Company beginning October 31, 2005. The
Company is currently assessing the impact that the adoption will have on the Company’s consolidated financial position and
results of operations. It will require the Company to record an expense for share-based compensation.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, —a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.” This Statement establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as
the required method for reporting a change in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific
to the newly adopted accounting prineiple. The provisions'of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and correc-

- tions of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for accounting changes

and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after the date this Statement is issued. The Company does not
believe that the adoption of this Statement in fiscal 2006 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated finaneial
position or results of operations.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) provided for a special one-time tax deduction of 85% of certain foreign
earnings that are repatriated. The Company is eurrently assessing the impact the Act will have on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial position and results of operations.
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Related Party Tramsactions

During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company paid or accrued $0.8 million, $1.9 million and $0.5 million, respectively, to
the law firms of which Lloyd Frank, a director of the Company, is or was of counsel, for services rendered to the Company and
expenses reimbursed. During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company also paid $5,000, $13,000 and $47,700, respectively,
to the law firm of which Bruce Goodman, a director of the Company, is a partner, for services rendered to the Company.

The Company renders various payroll and related services to a corporation primarily owned by Steven A. Shaw, an officer
and director, for which the Company received approximately $5,000 in excess of its direct costs in fiscal 2005. Such services
are performed on a basis substantially similar to those performed by the Company for and at substantially similar rates as
charged by the Company to unaffiliated third parties. In addition, the Company rents approximately 2,600 square feet of
office space to that corporation in the Company’s El Segundo, California facility (which is located within the Company’s
facility and shares common areas), which the Company does not require for its own use, on a month-to-month basis at a
rental of $1,750 per month ($1,500 per month prior to March 1, 2004). Based on the nature of the premises and a report
from a real estate broker, the Company believes the rent is a fair and reasonable rate for the space.

In 2005, after an investigation conducted by independent counsel appointed by the Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors, the Audit Committee concluded that Mr. Thomas Daley, an executive officer of the Company, had, in July, 2005,
exercised options and sold the underlying shares of stock of the Company in violation of the Company’s Insider Trading
Policy. The Audit Committee required Mr. Daley to pay $31,500, representing the difference between the price at which
Mr. Daley sold the stock and the average market price of the Company’s stock over the three days following the Company’s
release of its 3rd quarter results, and pay a further penalty of $10,000. These moneys have been paid by Mr. Daley to the
Company’s Geeneral Counsel’s attorney escrow account. The matter was self-reported on behalf of the Company to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, and is under review by that agency. In connection with this matter, the Audit
Committee recommended that the Company advance Mr. Daley’s legal fees upon his entering into a written agreement to repay
such fees if it were ultimately determined that he was not entitled to be indemnified for legal expenses under applicable law.
The Company has advanced to date $35,800 directly to Mr. Daley’s attorneys in connection with such matter. The Company
has also paid to date legal fees of the independent counsel to the Audit Committee of approximately $260,000 associated
with this matter.

The brother of Daniel Hallihan, an executive officer of the Company, was employed during 2003, 2004 and 2005 in the
Company's Computer Systems segment in an inventory control position for a compensation that is less than specified in
Item 404 of Regulation S-K. The Company believes that he has been employed on the same terms that the Company would
employ a similarly situated unrelated individual.

From time to time the Company has employed, and will continue to employ, relatives of executive officers, as well as relatives
of other full-time employees, during the summer months and in its Staffing Solutions Group. The Company believes that it
has always employed, and will continue to employ, those individuals on the same terms that it employs unrelated individuals,

ITEM 7&. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the potential economic loss that may result from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments.
The Company’s earnings, cash flows and financial position are exposed to market risks relating to fluctuations in interest
rates and foreign curreney exchange rates. The Company has cash and cash equivalents on which interest income is earned at
variable rates. The Company also has credit lines with various domestic and foreign banks, which provide for borrowings and
letters of eredit, as well as a $150 million aceounts receivable securitization program to provide the Company with additional
liquidity to meet its short-term financing needs.

The interest rates on these borrowings and financing are variable and, therefore, interest and other expense and interest

income are affected by the general level of U.S. and foreign interest rates. Based upon the current levels of cash invested,
notes payable to banks and utilization of the securitization program, on a short-term basis, as noted below in the tables, a
hypothetical 100-basis-point (1%) increase or decrease in interest rates would increase or decrease its annual net interest

expense and securitization costs by $185,000, respectively.

The Company has a term loan, as noted in the table below, which consists of borrowings at fixed interest rates, and the
Company’s interest expense related to these borrowings is not affected by changes in interest rates in the near term. The fair
value of the fixed rate term loan was approximately $14.3 million at October 30, 2005, This fair value was calculated by
applying the appropriate fiscal year-end interest rate to the Company’s present stream of Joan payments.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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The Company holds short-term investments in mutual funds for the Company’s deferred compensation plan. At October 30, -
2005, the total market value of these investments was $4.2 million, all of which are being held for the benefit of participants
in a non-qualified deferred compensation plan with no risk to the Company.

The Company has a number of overseas subsidiaries and is, therefore, subject to exposure from the risk of eurrency fluetua- -
tions as the value of foreign currencies fluctuates against the dollar, which may impact reported earnings. As of Cetober 390,
2005, the total of the Company’s net investment in foreign operations was $1.5 million. The Company attempts to reduce
these risks by utilizing foreign currency option and exchange contracts, as well as borrowing in foreign currencies, to hedge
the adverse impact on foreign eurrency net assets when the dollar strengthens against the related foreign currency. As of
October 30, 2005, the total of the Company’s foreign ex¢hange contracts was $2.9 million, leaving a balance of net foreign
exposure of $1.4 million. The amount of risk and the use of foreign exchange instruments deseribed above are not material to
the Company’s financial position or results of operations and the Company does not use these instruments for trading or
other speculative purposes. Based upon the current levels of net foreign assets, a hypothetical weakening of the U.S. dollar
against these currencies at October 30, 2005 by 10% would result in a pre-tax gain of $0.2 million related to these positions.
Similarly, a hypothetical strengthening of the U.S. dollar against these currencies at Qctober 30, 2005 by 10% would result
in a pre-tax gain of $0.1 million related to these positions.

The tables below provide information about the Company’s financial instruments that are sensitive to either interest rates
or exchange rates at October 30, 2005. For cash and debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and related
weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. For foreign exchange agreements, the table presents the curren-
cies, notional amounts and weighted average exchange rates by contractual maturity dates. The information is presented in
U.S. dollar equivalents, which is the Company’s reporting currency.

Interest Rate Market Risk ‘ Payments Due by Period as of October 30, 2005
Less Than 1-3 3-5 After 5
Total 1 Year Years  Years Years

(Dollars in thousands of U.S. §)
Cash and Cash Equivalents ‘

Money Market and Cash Accounts $ 88,119 $ 88,119
Weighted Average Interest Rate ' 3.6% 3.6%
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents - $ 88,119 $ 88,119
Securitization Program :
Accounts Receivable Securitization : $100,000 $100,000
Finance Rate 3.8% 3.8%
Securitization Program . $100,000 $100,000
Debt _
Term Loan (1) T $ 13,730 $ 433 $1,535 $1,253 $10,509
Interest Rate 8.2% 8.2% 8.2% 8.2% 8.2%
Payable to Nortel Networks . 1,971 1,871 — — —
Weighted Average Interest Rate * 6.0% 6.0%
Notes Payable to Banks ‘ 6,622 6,622 — — —_
Weighted Average Interest Rate _ 4.1% 4.1%
Total Debt - $ 22,323 $ 9,026 $1,535 $1,253 $10,509
Forelgn Exchange Market Risk j Contract Values
' Contractual Less Fair Value
Exchange Than Option
Rate Total 1Year Premium (1}

{Dollars in thousands of U.S. §)
Option Contracts
Canadian $to U.S. $ 3 1.37 $2,920 $2,920 $18
(1) Represents the cost of the options purchased on October 28, 2005. °
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IYEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

ERNSY & YOUNG LLP

5 Times Square

New York, New York 10036
212-773-3000

REPORY OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Volt Information Sciences, Ine.

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Volt Information Sciences, Ine. and subsidiaries as of
October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 30, 2005. Our andits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Gur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of Volt Information Sciences, Ine. and subsidiaries at October 30, 2005 and Oectober 31, 2004, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended October 30, 2005, in confor-
mity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial staternents taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the informa-
tion set forth therein.

‘We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the effectiveness of Volt Information Seiences, Inc. and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of Cetober 30,
2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated January 16, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on
management’s assessment and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.

St & M&LP

New York, New York
January 16, 2006

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




EE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

# 2 : October 30, QCetober 31,

= 2005 2004
_u : {Dollars in thousands,
ASSETS ‘ except per share data)
CURRENT ASSETS |
Cash and cash equivalents including restricted cash of $26,131 (2005)
and $43,722 (2004) $ 88,119 $ 88,031
b Short-term investments f 4,213 4,248
=3 Trade accounts receivable less allowances of $7,527 (2005)
and $10,210 (2004) ‘ 399,677 409,130
Inventories ‘ 33,758 32,676
3 Deferred income taxes ' 10,246 9,385
Prepaid expenses and other assets ‘ 19,788 14,847
a3z TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS | 555,801 558,317
e Investment in securities 141 100
= Property, plant and equipment—net ' - 83,272 85,038
53 Deposits and other assets , 1,961 1,439
Goodwill . 32,623 29,144
Other intangible assets—net of accumulated amortization of
$1,396 (2005) and $288 (2004) 14,914 15,998
TOTAL ASSETS ‘ ﬁ $688,712 $690,036
LIABILITIES AND STOCKMNOLDERS' EQUITY |
- CURRENT LIABILITIES ‘
e Notes payable to banks . _ $ 6,622 $ 7,955
. Current portion of long-term debt ‘ 2,404 399
i Accounts payable : 172,788 192,163
:_ Acerued wages and commissions ; 55,081 54,200
P Accrued taxes other than income taxes 5 17,586 17,729
T Acerued insurance and other aceruals : 35,173 36,036
= Deferred income and other liabilities : 30,628 36,909
e Income taxes payable ‘ 1,686 4,270
_ : TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES \ 321,968 349,661
Ex Accrued insurance ! 1,630 86
| 2 Long-term debt 13,297 " 15,588

Deferred income taxes 13,358 11,764
Commitments and contingencies
Minority Interest 43,444 36,420

. *3*‘_ STOCKKXOLDERS EQUITY .
Preferred stock, par value $1.00; Authorized—500,000 shares; issued-—none

v Common stock, par value $.10; Authorized—30,000,000 shares; issued and
- Lt outstanding—15,339,255 shares (2005) and 15,282,625 shares (2004) 1,534 1,528
= Paid-in capital : 43,694 42 453
Retained earnings 249,754 232,714
Acceumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 5 33 (178)
TOTAL STOCKNOLDERS" EQUITY . 295,015 276,517

TQUAL LIABILITIES AND STQCKHOLDERS™ EQUITY ' $688,712 $690,036

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended
Qctober 30, October 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share data)
NET SALES $2,177,619  $1,924,777  $1,508,491
COSTS AND EXPENSES:
Cost of sales 2,014,551 1,772,087 1,502,622
Selling and administrative 92,858 83,124 71,693
Depreciation and amortization 29,603 25,537 24,331
2,137,012 1,880,748 1,598,646
OPERATING PROFIT 40,607 44,029 10,845
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income 2,648 927 708
Other expense—net (4,882) (4,398) (2,661)
Gain on sale of real estate — 3,295 —
Foreign exchange (loss) gain—net (255) 97 299
Interest expense (1,825) (1,817 (2,070)
Income from continuing operations before items shown below 36,293 42,133 7,121
Minority interest (7,024) (2,420) —_—
Income from continuing operations before taxes 29,269 39,713 7,121
Income tax provision (12,229) (15,517) (2,916)
Income from continuing operations 17,040 24,196 4,205
Discontinued operations, net of taxes — 9,520 —
NETY INCOME $ 17,040 $ 33,716 $ 4,205
Per Share Data
Basie:
Income from continning operations $ 111 3 1.59 $ 0.28
Discontinued operations — 0.62 —
Net income 3 111 ¢ 2.21 $ 0.28
‘Weighted average number of shares—basic 15,320 15,234 15,218
Diluted:
Income from continuing operations $ 111 8 1.58 $ 0.28
Discontinued operations —_ 0.62 _—
Net income $ L1l 8 2.20 $ 0.28
‘Weighted average number of shares—diluted 15,417 15,354 15,225

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS" EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Common Stock
$.10 Par Value Paid-In

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Foreign Unrealized
Currency  Gain (Lioss) On

Retained. Translation Marketable

Comprehensive

Shares ~ Amount Capital Earnings Adjustment Securities Income (Lioss)
(Dollars in thousands) .

Balance at November 3, 2002 15,217,415 $1,522 $41036 $194,793 $(490) $ 7
Stock options exercised—net of a

diminutive tax benefit 3,000 55
Unrealized foreign carrency

translation adjustment—net of

tax benefit of $8 (18) & (18
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities—net of taxes of $56 85 85
Net income for the year , 4,205 4,205
Balance at November 2, 2003 15,220,415 1,522 41,091 198,998 (508) 92 $ 4,272
Stock options exercised—net of a '

tax benefit of $214 62,210 8 1,362
Unrealized foreign currency translation

adjustment—net of taxes of $126 294 $ 294
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities—net of tax benefit of $37 {56) (56)
Net income for the year , 33,716 33,716
Balance at October 31, 2004 15,282,625 1,528 42,453 232,714 (214) 36 $33,954
Stock options exercised—net of a ‘

tax benefit of $199 56,630 6 1,241
Unrealized foreign currency translation |

adjustment—net of taxes of $80 186 $ 186
Unrealized gain on marketable

securities—net of taxes of $16 25 25
Net income for the year : 17,040 17,040
Balance at October 30, 2005 15,339,255 $l,534 $43,694 $249,754 $ (28) $ 61 $17,251
There were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding in any of the reported periods.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
QOctober 30, Qectober 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 17,040 $ 33,716 $ 4,205
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities
Discontinued operations — (9,520) —
Depreciation and amortization 29,603 25,537 24,331
Aceounts receivable provisions 3,838 7,784 5,227
Minority interest 7,024 2,420 —_
(ain on foreign currency translation (16) (43) (10)
(Gain) loss on dispositions of property, plant and equipment (9) (8,432) 151
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense (2,978) (4,240) 82
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of assets acquired:
Accounts receivable (24,084) (101,672) (28,612)
Proceeds from securitization program 30,000 — 10,000
Inventories (1,082) 6,662 (7,193)
Prepaid expenses and other assets (5,063) 2,553 59
Deposits and other assets (520) 667 687
Accounts payable (19,110) 37,149 (864)
Acerued expenses 478 24,748 14,599
Deferred income and other liabilities (5,193) 8,118 8,927
Income taxes (2,451) 2,754 3,586
MET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERAYING ACTIVITIES 27,477 31,202 36,175
{Continued)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Year Ended
October 30,  October 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
' (In thousands)
CASK PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales of investments ' 1,119 1,476 870
Purchases of investments (904) (1,419) (833)
Distributions from joint ventures — — 49
Acquisitions — (1,864) —
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment, net 1,885 3,933 469
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (28,511) {30,737) (17,990}
Proceeds from sale of real estate (discontinued operations) — 18,500 —_

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(26,411)  (10,111) (17,435)

CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of long-term debt (399) (340) (1,624)
Exercises of stock options 1,247 1,368 55
Payment, of notes payable—bank (84,750) (62,683) (30,194)
Proceeds from notes payable—bank 83,346 66,274 31,717
WET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (556) 4,619 54
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (422) 264 {357)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 88 25,974 18,437
Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted cash, beginning of year 88,031 §2,057 43,620

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, INCLUDING [RESFRHUED
CASH, END OF YEAR

$ 88,119 3 88,031 $ 62,057

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION {
Cash paid during the year: 1
Interest expense
Income taxes

The Company purchased certain assets and certain specified liabilities in
exchange for a 24% interest in Volt Delta. In conjunction with the
acquisition, liabilities were assumed as follows:

$ 1,868 $ 1,616 § 2,131
$ 17,694 $15934  $ 2,360

Fair value of assets acquired % 46,484
Fair value of 24% interest ; 34,000
Liabilities assumed ' $ 12,484

See Notes to Consolidated Pinancial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business: The Company operates in two major businesses, Staffing Services and Telecommunications and Information
Solutions, consisting of four operating segments: Staffing Services; Telephone Directory; Telecommunications Services and
Computer Systems.

Fiscal Year: The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest October 31, The 2003 through 2005 fiscal years each
consisted of 52 weeks.

Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany transactions have been eliminated upon consolidation. The Company accounts for the securitization of accounts
receivable in accordance with Finaneial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS") No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” (see
Note B).

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prineiples generally aceepted in the
United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stock-Based Compensation: The Company has elected to follow Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” to account for its stock options under which no compensation cost is recognized
because the option exercise price is equal to at least the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Had com-
pensation costs for these plans been determined at the grant dates for awards under the alternative acecounting method pro-
vided for in SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an amendment of
FASB Statement No. 123,” net income and earnings per share, on a pro forma basis, would have been:

2005 2004 2003

(In thousands, ezcept per share data)

Net income as reported $17,040 833,716 §4,205
Pro forma compensation expense, net of taxes (99 (130) (87)
Pro forma net income $16,941 $33,586 $4,138
Basie:
Net income as reported per share $ 111 ¢ 221 $ 0.28
Pro forma compensation expense, net of taxes per share (0.01) (0.01) (0.01)
Pro forma net income per share $ 110 $ 220 8 0.27
Diluted:
Net income as reported per share $ 111 $ 220 s 028
Pro forma compensation expense, net of taxes (0.01) (0.01) (0.01)
Pro forma net income per share $ 110 $ 219 S 027

The fair value of each option grant is estimated using the Multiple Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the following
weighted average assumptions used for grants in fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively: risk-free interest rates of 4.1% and
2.0%, respectively; expected volatility of .47 and .50, respectively; an expected life of the options of five years; and no divi-
dends. The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during fiscal years 2004 and 2003 was $14.62 and $6.59,
respectively. There were no options granted during fiscal 2605.

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,”
which replaces the superseded SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” This Statement requires that all
entities apply a fair-value-based measurement method in accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees
and suppliers when the entity acquires goods or services. The provisions of this Statement are required to be adopted by the
Company beginning October 31, 2005. The Company is currently assessing the impact that the adoption will have on the
Company’s consolidated financial position and results of operations. It will require the Company to record an expense for
share-based compensation.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




NOTE A—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenye Recognition: The Company derives its revenues from several sources. The revenue recognition methods, which are
consistent with those preseribed in Staff Accounting Bulletin 104 (“SAB 104"), entitled “Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements,” are described below in more detail for the significant types of revenue within each of its segments.

3.tiL

Staffing Servicess

Staffing: Sales are derived from the Company’s Staffing Solutions Group supplying its own temporary personnel to its
customers, for which the Company assumes the risk of aceeptability of its employees to its customers, and has credit risk
for collecting its billings after it has paid its employees. The Company reflects revenues for these services on a gross
basis in the period the services are rendered. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 75% of the
Company’s net sales. :
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Managed Services: Sales are generated by the Company’s E-Procurement Solutions subsidiary, ProcureStaff, and for
certain contracts, sales are generated by the Company's Staffing Solutions Group’s managed services operations. The
Company receives an administrative fee for arranging for, billing for and collecting the billings related to staffing corn-
panies (“associate vendors”) who have supplied personnel to the Company’s customers. The administrative fee is either
charged to the customer or subtracted from the Company’s payment to the associate vendor. The customer is typically
responsible for assessing the work of the associate vendor, and has responsibility for the acceptability of its personnel,
and in most instances the customer and associate veridor have agreed that the Company does not pay the associate ven-
dor until the customer pays the Company. Based upon the revenue recognition principles in Emerging Issnes Task Force
(“BITF”) 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent,” revenue for these services, where
the customer and the associate vendor have agreed that the Company is not at risk for payment, is recognized net of
associated costs in the period the services are rendered. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 2% of the
Company’s net sales. ;

ENININ:

;?l

Dutsourced Projects: Sales are derived from the Combany’s Information Technology Solutions operation providing out-
source services for & customer in the form of project work, for which the Company is responsible for deliverables. The
Company’s employees perform the services and the Company has credit risk for collecting its billings. Revenue for these
services is recognized on & gross basis in the period the services are rendered when on a time and material basis, and
when the Company is responsible for projeet completion, revenue is recognized when the project is complete and the cus-
tomer has approved the work. In fiseal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 5% of the Company’s net sales.

Telephone Directory:

Directory Publishing: Sales are derived from the Company’s sales of telephone directory advertising for books it publishes
as an independent publisher in the United States and Uruguay. The Company’s employees perform the services and the
Company has credit risk for collecting its billings. Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period .
the books are printed and distributed. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 3% of the Company’s net sales.

Ad Production and Other: Sales are generated when the Company performs design, production and printing services, and
database management for other publishers’ telephone directories. The Company’s employees perform the services and the
N Company has credit risk for collecting its billings. Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period
the Company has completed its production work and upon customer acceptance. In fiseal 2005, this revenue comprised
approximately 1% of the Company’s net sales. '

Telecommunications Services:

Construction: Sales are derived from the Company supplying aerial and underground construction services. The Company’s
employees perform the services, and the Company takes title to all inventory and has credit risk for collecting its billings.
The Company relies upon the principles in AICPA Statement of Position (“SOP”) 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of
Construction-Type Contracts,” using the completed-contract method, to recognize revenue on a gross basis upon customer
aceeptance of the project. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 4% of the Company’s net sales.

Non-Construction: Sales are derived from the Company performing design, engineering and business systems integra-
tions work. The Company’s employees perform the services and the Company has eredit risk for collecting its billings.
Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period in which services are performed, and if applicable,
any completed units are delivered and accepted by the customer. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately
2% of the Company’s net sales. ‘
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Computer Systems: ,
Datadase Access: Sales are derived from the Company granting access to its proprietary telephone listing databases to
telephone companies, inter-exchange carriers and non-telco enterprise customers. The Company uses its own databases
and has credit risk for collecting its billings. The Company recognizes revenue on a gross basis in the period in which
the customers access the Company’s databases. In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 5% of the
Company’s net sales.

IT Maintenance: Sales are derived from the Company providing hardware maintenance services to the general business
community, including customers who have the Company’s systems, on a time and material basis or a contract basis.
The Company uses its own employees and inventory in the performanee of the services, and has credit risk for collecting
its billings. Revenue for these services is recognized on a gross basis in the period in which the services are performed,
contingent upon customer acceptance when on a time and material basis, or over the life of the contract, as appropriate.
In fiscal 2005, this revenue comprised approximately 2% of the Company’s net sales.

Telephone Systems: Sales are derived from the Company providing telephone operator services-related systems and
enhancements to existing systems, equipment and software to customers. The Company uses its own employees and has
eredit risk for collecting its billings. The Company relies upon the principles in AICPA SOP 97-2, “Software Revenue
Recognition” and BITK 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables” to recognize revenue on a gross
basis upon customer acceptance of each part of the system based upon its fair value. In fiscal 2005, this revenue com-
prised approximately 1% of the Company’s net sales.

The Company records provisions for estimated losses on contracts when losses become evident. Accumulated unbilled costs on
contracts are carried in inventory at the lower of actual cost or estimated realizable value.

Cash Eguivalents: Cash equivalents consist of investrents in short-term, highly liquid securities having an initial maturity of
three months or less.

Invesements: The Company determines the appropriate classification of marketable equity and debt securities at the time of
purchase and re-evaluates its designation as of each balance sheet date. Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Company has the positive intent and ability to bold the securities to maturity. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated at amortized cost. Marketable equity securities and debt securities not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as
available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported
as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Liosses considered to be other than temporary are charged to earnings.

Inyentories: Accumulated unbilled costs on contraets related to performing services are carried at the lower of actual cost or
realizable value (see Note D).

Goodwill: Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”
goodwill is no longer amortized, but is subject to annual impairment testing using fair value methodologies. The impairment
test for goodwill is a two-step process. Step one consists of a comparison of the equity value (“fair value”) of a reporting unit
with its book value (“carrying amount”), including the goodwill allocated to the reporting unit. Measurement of the fair value
of a reporting unit is based on one or more fair value measures including present value techniques of estimated future cash
flows and estimated amounts at whieh the unit as a whole could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing
parties. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, step two requires the fair value of the reporting
unit to be allocated to the underlying assets and liabilities of that reporting unit, resulting in an implied fair value of good-
will. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that gaodwill, an impairment loss
equal to the excess is recorded in net earnings (loss). The Company performs its impairment testing using comparable multi-
ples of sales and EBITDA and other valuation methods to-assist the Company in the determination of the fair value of the
reporting units measured.

Long-Lived Assets: Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost, and depreciation and amortization are provided on the
straight-line and accelerated methods at rates ealeulated to depreciate the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, and property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Under SFAS No. 144, these assets are
tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recov-
erable. Circumstances which ecould trigger a review include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price
of the asset; significant adverse changes in the business climate or legal factors; the accumulation of costs significantly in
excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or construction of the asset; current period cash flow or operating
losses combined with a history of losses or a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and a current
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NMOTE A—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continved)

expectation that the asset will more likely than not be sold or disposed of significantly before the end of its estimated useful
life. Recoverability is assessed based on the carrying amount of the asset and the sum of the undiscounted eash flows
expected to result from the use and the eventual disposal of the asset or asset group. An impairment loss is recognized when
the carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds the fair value of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss is mea-
sured as the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds fair value.

The weighted average amortization period for other intangible assets in fiscal 2005 and 2004 was 15 years.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation aceounts until they are removed from service. In the case
of disposals, assets and related depreciation are removed from the accounts, and the net amounts less proceeds from disposal,
are included in income. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over
the following periods: :

Buildings ' 25 to 31'%4 years

Machinery and equipment ; 3 to 15 years

Leasehold improvements length of lease or life of the asset, whichever is shorter
Enterprise Resource Planning system ' 5 to 7 years

October 30, October 31,

Property, plant and equipment consisted of: _ 2005 2004
‘ (In thousands)

Liand and buildings _f $ 23,120 $ 22,807

Machinery and equipment ‘ 157,601 141,765

Leasehold improvements : 12,021 10,460

Enterprise Resouree Planning system : 35,823 34,896
; 228,565 209,928

Less allowances for depreciation and amortization f 145,293 124,890

$ 83,272  $ 85,038

A term loan is secured by a deed of trust on land and builaings with a carrying amount at October 30, 2005 of $10.2 million
(see Note F). '

In fiscal year 2004, the Company sold land and buildings in California. One property was previously leased to the Company’s
formerly 59% owned subsidiary, Autologic Information International, Ine. and the other property was no longer being used by
the Company. The gain on the sale of the building, leased to the former subsidiary, was classified as a discontinued operation.

Primary Insurance Casualty Program: The Company is insured with highly rated insurance companies under a program that
provides primary workers' compensation, employer's liability, general liability and automobile liability insurance under a loss
sensitive program. In certain mandated states, the Company purchases workers’ compensation insurance through participa-
tion in state funds and the experience-rated preminms in these state plans relieve the Company of any additional liability.
In the loss sensitive program, initial premium accruals are established based upon the underlying exposure, such as the
amount and type of labor utilized, number of vehicles, etc. The Company establishes accruals utilizing actuarial methods to
estimate the future cash payments that will be made to satisfy the claims, including an allowance for incurred-but-not-reported
claims. This process also includes establishing loss development factors, based on the historical claims experience of the
Company and the industry, and applying those factors to current claims information to derive an estimate of the Company’s
ultimate preminm Mability. In preparing the estimates, the Company considers the nature and severity of the claims, analyses
provided by third party actuaries, as well as current legal, ‘economic and regulatory factors. The insurance policies have vari-
ous premium rating plans that establish the ultimate premium to be paid. Adjustments to premiums are made based upon
the level of claims incurred at a future date up to three yedrs after the end of the respective policy period. For the policy year
ended March 31, 2003, a maximum premium was predetermined and paid. For subsequent policy years, management evalu-
ates the accrual and the underlying assumptions regularly throughout the year and makes adjustments as needed. The ulti-
mate premium cost may be greater or less than the established acernal. While management believes that the recorded amounts
are adequate, there can be no assurances that changes to management’s estimates will not occur due to limitations inherent in
the estimation process. In the event it is determined that a smaller or larger acerual is appropriate, the Company would record
a credit or a charge to cost of sales in the period in which such determination is made.




At Qctober 30, 2005, the Company’s net prepaid for the outstanding policy years was $1.6 million compared to a net lability
of $8.3 million at Qctaber 31, 2004.

Medical Insuronce Program: Beginning in April 2004, the Company became self-insured for the majority of its medical benefit e
programs. The Company remains insured for a portion of its medical program (primarily HMOs) as well as the entire dental .
program. The Company provides the self-insured medical benefits through an arrangement with a third-party administrator.
However, the liability for the self-insured benefits is limited by the purchase of stop loss insurance. Contributed and withheld
funds and related liabilities for the self-insured program together with unpaid premiums for the insured programs, other
than the current provision, are held in a 501(¢)(3) employee welfare benefit trust and do not appear on the balance sheet of
the Company. In order to establish the self-insurance reserves, the Company utilizes actuarial estimates of expected losses
based on statistical analyses of historical data. The provision for future payments is initially adjusted by the enrollment lev-
els in the various plans. Periodically, the resulting liabilities are monitored and adjusted as warranted by changing circum-
stances. Should the amount of claims occurring exceed what was estimated or medical costs inerease beyond what was
expected, liabilities might not be sufficient, and additional expense may be recorded.

Capitalized Software: The Company’s software technology personnel are involved in the development and acquisition of i
internal-use software to be used in its Enterprise Resource Planning system and software used in its operating segments, ¥
some of which are customer accessible. The Company accounts for the capitalization of software in accordance with AICPA

SOP No. 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Subsequent to the
preliminary project planning and approval stage, all appropriate costs are capitalized until the point at which the software is

ready for its intended use. Subsequent to the software being used in operations, the capitalized costs are transferred from
costs-in-process to completed property, plant and equipment, and are accounted for as such. All post-implementation costs,

such as maintenance, training and minor upgrades that do not result in additional functionality, are expensed as incurred.

Securitization Program: The Company accounts for the securitization of accounts receivable in accordance with SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities,” At the time a participation

interest in the receivables is sold, that interest is removed from the consolidated balance sheet. The outstanding balance of the
undivided interest sold to Three Rivers Funding Corporation (“TRFCO”), an asset backed commercial paper conduit spon-

sored by Mellon Bank, N.A., was $100.0 million at October 30, 2005 and $70.0 million at October 31, 2004. Accordingly, the ;
trade receivables included on the Getober 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 balance sheets have been reduced to reflect the par-
ticipation interest sold. TRFCO has no recourse to the Company (beyond its interest in the pool of receivables owned by Volt .
Funding Corp., a wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of the Company) for any of the sold receivables.

Income Taxes: Income taxes are provided using the liability method. Deferred taxes reflect the tax consequences on future
years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts. The carrying value
of the Company's deferred tax assets is dependent upon the Company’s ability to generate sufficient future taxable income in
certain tax jurisdictions. Should the Company determine that it would not be able to realize all or part of its deferred tax
assets in the future, a valuation allowance to the deferred tax assets would be established in the period such determination
was made (see Note Q).

Transietion of Foreign Currencies: The U.S. dollar is the Company’s functional currency throughout the world, except for cer-
tain European and Canadian subsidiaries. Where the U.S. dollar is used as the functional currency, foreign currency gains

and losses are included in operations. The translation adjustments recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity
result from changes in exchange rates affecting the reported assets and liabilities of the European subsidiaries whose func-
tional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

farnings Per Shore: Basie earnings per share is caleulated by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of com-
mon shares outstanding during the period. The diluted earnings per share computation includes the effect, if any, of shares
that would be issuable upon the exercise of outstanding stock options, reduced by the number of shares which are assumed to
be purchased by the Company from the resulting proceeds at the average market price during the period (see Note I).

Lomprehensive Income: Coraprehensive income is the net income of the Company combined with ather changes in stockholders’
equity not involving ownership interest changes. For the Company, such other changes include foreign currency translation
and mark-to-market adjustments related to held-for-sale securities.

Derivatives and NHedging Activities: Gains and losses on foreign currency option and forward contracts designated as hedges
of existing assets and liabilities and of identifiable firm commmitments are deferred and included in the measurement of the
related foreign currency transaction. The Company enters into derivative financial instrument contracts only for hedging
purposes and accounts for them in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities,” as amended (see Note N).
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NOTE A—Summary of Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Neyr Accounting Proncuncements: In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs—an Amendment of
ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,” which clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs
and spoilage. This Statement requires that these items be recognized as period costs even if the amounts are not considered
to be abnormal. The provisions of this Statement are effective for inventory costs incurred in fiseal years beginning after
June 15, 2005. The Company does not believe that the adoption of this Statement in fiscal 2006 will have a material impaet
on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets—an Amendment of APB Opinion
No. 29,” to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replace it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. The provisions of this Statement are
effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005, with early application
permitted for exchanges beginning after November 2004{ The adoption of this Statement has not had a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which replaces the superseded SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” This Statement requires that all entities apply a fair-value-based measurement
method in accounting for share-based payment transactions with employees and suppliers when the entity acquires goods or
services. The provisions of this Statement are required to' be adopted by the Company beginning October 31, 2005. The
Company is currently assessing the impact that the adoption will have on the Company’s consolidated financial position and
results of operations. It will require the Company to record an expense for share-based compensation.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, —a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.” This Statement establishes, unless impracticable, retrospective application as
the required method for reporting a change in accounting principle in the absence of explicit transition requirements specific
to the newly adopted accounting principle. The provisions of this Statement are effective for accounting changes and corree-
tions of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted for accounting changes
and corrections of errors made in fiseal years beginning after the date this Statement is issued. The Company does not
believe that the adoption of this Statement in fiscal 2006 will have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) provided for a special one-time tax deduction of 85% of certain foreign
earnings that are repatriated. The Company is currently assessing the impact the Act will have on the Company's consoli-
dated financial position and results of operations.

NOTE B—Securitization Program

In April 2005, the Company amended its $150.0 million accounts receivable securitization program (“Securitization
Program”) to provide that the expiration date be extended from April 2006 to April 2007. Under the Securitization
Program, receivables related to the United States operations of the staffing solutions business of the Company and its subsid-
iaries are sold from time-to-time by the Company to Volt Funding Corp., & wholly-owned special purpose subsidiary of the
Company (“Volt Funding”). Volt Funding, in turn, sells to Three Rivers Funding Corporation (“TRFCQO”), an asset backed
commercial paper conduit sponsored by Mellon Bank, N.A. and unaffiliated with the Company, an undivided percentage own-
ership interest in the pool of receivables Volt Funding acquires from the Company (subject to a maximum purchase by
TRFCO in the aggregate of $150.0 million). The Company retains the servicing responsibility for the accounts receivable.
At October 30, 2005, TRFCC had purchased from Volt Funding a participation interest of $100.0 million out of a pocl of
approximately $283.3 million of receivables.

The Securitization Program is not an off-balance sheet arrangement as Volt Funding is a 100%-owned consolidated subsid-
iary of the Company. Accounts receivable are only reduced to reflect the fair value of receivables actually sold. The Company
entered into this arrangement as it provided a low-cost alternative to other financing.

The Securitization Program is designed to enable the sale of receivables by the Company to Volt Funding to constitute true
sales of those receivables. As a resunlt, the receivables are available to satisfy Volt Funding’s own obligations to its own credi-
tors before being available, through the Company’s residual equity interest in Volt Funding, to satisfy the Company’s ereditors.
TRECO has no recourse to the Company beyond its interest in the pool of receivables owned by Volt Funding.
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In the event of termination of the Securitization Program, new purchases of a participation interest in receivables by TRECO
would cease and collections reflecting TRFCO’s interest would revert to it. The Company believes TRFCO’s aggregate collee-
tion amounts should not exceed the pro rata interests sold. There are no contingent liabilities or commitments associated with
the Securitization Program.

The Company accounts for the securitization of accounts receivable in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” At the time a participation interest in the
receivables is sold, the receivable representing that interest is removed from the condensed consolidated balance sheet (no
debt ig recorded) and the proceeds from the sale are reflected as cash provided by operating activities. Losses and expenses
associated with the transactions, primarily related to discounts incurred by TRFCO on the issuance of its commercial paper,
are charged to the consolidated statement of operations.

The Company incurred charges, in connection with the sale of receivables under the Securitization Program, of $3.4 million
in the fiscal year ended October 30, 2005 compared to $1.7 million and $1.6 million in the fiscal years ended October 31,
2004 and November 2, 2003, respectively, which are included in Other Expense on the consolidated statement of operations.
The equivalent cost of funds in the Securitization Program was 4.2%, 2.7% and 2.6% per annum in the fiscal years 2005,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company’s carrying retained interest in the receivables approximated fair value due to the
relatively short-term nature of the receivable collection period. In addition, the Company performed a sensitivity analysis,
changing various key assumptions, which also indicated the retained interest in receivables approximated fair value.

At October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004, the Company’s carrying retained interest in a revolving pool of receivables was
approximately $182.5 million and $178.2 million, respectively, net of a service fee liability, out of a total pool of approxi-
mately $283.3 million and $248.7 million, respectively. The outstanding balance of the undivided interest sold to TRFCO
was $100.0 million and $70.0 million at Getober 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004, respectively. Accordingly, the trade
accounts receivable included on the October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 balance sheets have been reduced to reflect the
participation interest sold of $100.0 million and $70.0 million, respectively.

The Securitization Program is subject to termination at TRFCO’s option, under certain circumstances, ineluding the defanlt
rate, as defined, on receivables exceeding a specified threshold, the rate of collections on receivables failing to meet a speci-
fied threshold or the Company failing to maintain a long-term debt rating of “B” or better, or the equivalent thereof, from a
nationally recognized rating organization. At October 30, 2005, the Company was in compliance with all requirements of the
Securitization Program.

NOTE C—Short-Term Investments and Investments in Securities
At October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 short-term investments consisted of $4.2 million and $4.2 million, respectively,
invested in mutual funds for the Company’s deferred compensation plan (see Note N).

At October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004, the Company had an available-for-sale investment in equity securities of $141,000
and $100,000, respectively. The gross unrealized gains of $101,500 and $60,500 at Getober 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004,
respectively, were included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

MOTE D—~Inventories

Inventories of accumulated unbilled costs and materials by segment are as follows:
October 30, Oectober 31,

2005 2004

(In thousands)
Telephone Directory $10,508 $11,313
Telecommunications Services 17,734 14,505
Computer Systems 5,516 6,858
Total $33,758 $32,676

The cumulative amounts billed under service contraets at October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 of $9.6 million and $13.9
million, respectively, are credited against the related costs in inventory.
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NQTE E~—Short-Term Borrewings

In April 2005, the Company amended its secured, syndicated, revolving credit agreement (“Credit Agreement”) to, among
other things, extend the term for three years to April 2008 and increase the line from $30.0 million to $40.0 million.

The Credit Agreement established a secured credit facility (“Credit Facility”) in favor of the Company and designated
subsidiaries, of which up to $15.0 million may be used for letters of credit. Borrowings by subsidiaries are limited to
$25.0 million in the aggregate. The administrative agent for the Credit Faeility is JP Morgan Chase Bank. The other
banks participating in the Credit Facility are Mellon Bank, N.A., Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Lloyds TSB Bank PLC apd
Bank of America, N.A.

4 = Borrowings under the Credit Facility are to bear interest at various rate options selected by the Company at the time of each
P borrowing. Certain rate options, together with a facility fee, are based on a leverage ratio, as defined. Additionally, interest
e and the facility fees can be increased or decreased upon a change in the Company’s long-term debt rating provided by a

- nationally recognized rating agency. As amended, in lieu of the previous borrowing base formulation, the Credit Agreement
now requires the maintenance of specified acecounts receivable collateral in excess of any outstanding borrowings. Based upon
the Company’s leverage ratio and debt rating at October 30, 2005, if a three-month U.S. Dollar LIBO rate were the interest
rate option selected by the Company, borrowings would have borne interest at the rate of 4.9% per annum. At Qctober 30,
2005, the facility fee was 0.3% per anoum.,

The Credit Agreement provides for the maintenance of various financial ratios and covenants, including, among other things,
a requirement that the Corapany maintain a consolidated tangible net worth, as defined; a limitation on cash dividends, capi-

';_'_ tal stock purchases and redemptions by the Company in any one fiscal year to 50% of consolidated net income, as defined,
4 for the prior fiscal year; and a requirement that the Company maintain a ratio of EBIT, as defined, to interest expense, as
= defined, of 1.25 to 1.0 for the twelve months ended as of the last day of each fisecal quarter. The Credit Agreement also

w imposes limitations on, among other things, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the incurrence of additional liens,

4 sales of assets, the level of annual capital expenditures, and the amount of investments, including business acquisitions and
investments in joint ventures, and loans that may be made by the Company and its subsidiaries. At October 30, 2005, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants in the Credit Agreement.

The Company is liable on all loans made to it and all letters of credit issued at its request, and is jointly and severally liable
as to loans made to subsidiary borrowers. However, unless also a guarantor of loans, a subsidiary borrower is not liable with
respect to loans made to the Company or letters of credit issued at the request of the Company, or with regard to loans made
to any other subsidiary borrower. Under the April 2005 amendment, five subsidiaries of the Company remain as guarantors
e of all loans made to the Company or to subsidiary borrowers under the Credit Facility. At October 30, 2005, four of those

E guarantors have pledged approximately $54.4 million of accounts receivable, other than those in the Securitization Program,
as collateral for the guarantee obligations. Under certain circumstances, other subsidiaries of the Company also may be
reguired to become guarantors under the Credit Facility.

“.L‘i; At October 30, 2005, the Company bad credit lines with domestic and foreign banks which provided for borrowings and let-

‘ *, A ters of eredit up to an aggregate of $51.3 million, including $40.0 million under the Credit Agreement and the Company had
g total ontstanding foreign currency bank borrowings of $6.6 million, $2.4 million of which were under the Credit Agreement.
= These bank borrowings provide a hedge against devaluation in foreign currency denominated assets.
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NOTE F—Long-Term Debt and Financing Arrangements

Long-term debt consists of the following:
QOctober 30, Oectober 31,

2005 2004

{In thousands)
8.2% term loan (a) $13,730 $14,130
Payable to Nortel Networks (b) ‘ 1,971 1,857
15,701 15,987
Less amounts due within one year 2,404 359
Total long-term debt $13,297 $15,588

(8) In September 2001, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a $15.1 million loan agreement with General Blectric Capital Business Asset Funding
Corporation. Principal payments have reduced the loan to $13.7 million at October 30, 2005. The fair value of the loar was approximately $14.3 mil-
lion at October 30, 2005, The 20-year loan, which bears interest at 8.2% per annum and requires prineipal and interest payments of $0.4 million per
quarter, is secured by a deed of trust on certsin land and buildings that had a carrying amount at October 30, 2005 of $10.2 million. The obligation is
guaranteed by the Company.

{b) Represents the present value of a $2.0 million payment due to Nortel Networks in February 2006, discounted at 6% per annum, as required in an
agreement closed on August 2, 2004 (see Note J).

Principal payment maturities on long-term debt cutstanding at Getober 30, 2005 are:

PFiscal Year Amount
(In thousands)

2006 $ 2,404
2007 470
2008 511
2009 554
2010 601
Thereafter 11,161

$15,701

NOTE G—Income Taxes

The components of the Company’s income from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest by location,
and the related income tax provision are as follows:

Year Ended
QOctober 30, October 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003

(In thousands)

The components of income from continuing operations before income taxes and
minority interest, based on the location of operations, consist of the following:

Domestie $30,318 $36,530 $3,523
Foreign 5,975 5,603 3,598
$36,293 $42,133 $7,121

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




NOTE G—Income Taxes (Continved)

Year Ended
Qctober 30, October 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
. (In thousands)
- = The components of the income tax provision inchude:
= Current: :
- =4 ) : '
R Federal (a) : $ 9,880 $13,040 $ 518
Foreign 1,508 2,608 1,716
State and local : 3,818 4,109 600
Total current ‘ 15,207 18,757 2,834
Deferred:
Federal : . $(2,711) $(3,450) $ 232
Foreign : 201 (19) (202)
State and local ,. (468) (771) 52
Total deferred (2,978) (4,240) 82
Total income tax provision $12,229 $15,517 $2,916

{a) Reduced in 2005, 2004 and 2003 by benefits of $1.4 million, $0.9 million and $0.8 million, respectively, from general business credits.

The consolidated effective tax rates are different than the U.S. Federal statutory rate. The differences result from the following:

Year Ended
October 30,  Qctober 31,  November 2,
2005 - 2004 2003
. ) . ' (In thousands)
Statutory rate : ' 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local taxes, net of federal tax benefit ‘ 8.0 6.3 6.4
Tax effect of foreign operations ’ ! — 2.4 3.8
Goodwill 0.7y (1.3) (3.3)
General business credits . C ' (3.9) (2.2) (4.5)
Minority interest ' (7.5) (2.2) —
Other—net, principally non deductible items . 2.8 (1.2) 3.5

Effective tax rate ': ' 33.7% 36.8% 40.8%




Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for finaneial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes, and also include foreign operating loss carry-
forwards. Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

October 30, Cetober 31,

2005 2004
(In thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts ' $ 2,688 $ 3,573
Inventory valuation : 1,679 . 526
Foreign loss carryforwards . 2,746 1,692 y
Goodwill A : 2,740 2,256
Compensation aceruals and deferrals 4,803 4551
Warranty aceruals 105 75
Foreign asset bases 133 377
Other——net . ‘ 578 878
Total deferred tax assets : . _ 15,472 13,929
Less valuation allowance for deferred tax assets ‘ 4,760 3,948
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance 10,712 9,981
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Software development costs ' 3,324 4,526
Earnings not currently taxable 53 146
Accelerated book depreciation 5,872 7,688
Intangible assets ‘ 4,575 —
Total deferred tax liabilities 13,824 12,360
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (3,112) $ (2,379)
Balanee sheet classification:
Current assets $ 10,246 $ 9,385
Non-current liabilities {13,358) (11,764)
Net deferred tax liabilities , _ $ (3,112) $ (2,379

At October 3¢, 2005, deferred tax assets included $2.8 million related to foreign loss carryforwards, with no limitation on
the carryforward period and $2.0 million related to goodwill written off as impaired. For financial statement purposes, a full
valuation allowance of $4.8 million has been recognized due to the uncertainty of the realization of the foreign loss earryfor-
wards and future tax deductions related to goodwill. The valuation allowance increased during 2005 by $0.8 million.

Substantially all of the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries of $12.6 million at Cctober 30, 2005 are considered
permapently invested and, accordingly, no federal income tazes thereon have been provided. Should these earnings be distrib-
uted, foreign tax credits would reduce the additional federal income tax that would be payable. Availability of eredits is sub-
jeet to limitations; accordingly, it is not practicable to estimate the amount of the ultimate deferred tax liability, if any, on
accumulated earnings.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”) provided for a special one-time tax deduction of 85% of certain foreign
earnings that are repatriated. The Company is eurrently assessing the impact the Act will have on the Company’s consoli-
dated financial position or results of operations. The Company does not anticipate a material benefit upon completion of its
evaluation of the Act in fiscal 2006 due to the relative high tax rates in those countries with undistributed earnings.

NOYE H—CGoodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives are no longer amortized, but are subject to annual testing using fair value
methodology. An impairment charge is recognized for the amount, if any, by which the carrying value of an indefinite-life
intangible asset exceeds its fair value. The test for goodwill, which is performed in the Company’s second fiscal quarter, pri-
marily uses eomparable multiples of sales and EBITDA and other valuation methods to assist the Company in the determina-
tion of the fair value of the goodwill and the reporting units measured.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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MOTE H—Goodwill and Intangible Assets (Continued)

The following table represents the balance of intangible assets subject to amortization as of the end of fiscal 2005 and the
amortization expense for the vear: ‘
QOctober 30, October 31,

2005 2004

. (In thousands)
Intangible assets $16,310 $16,286
Acceumnulated amortization ‘ 1,396 288
Net Carrying Value _ $14,914 $15,998
Annual amortization expense : $ 1,108 $ 288

In each of the succeeding five years, the amount of amortization expense for other intangible assets is estimated to be as follows:

Fiscal Year ‘ Amount
2006 ‘; $1,109
2007 : $1,109
2008 $1,101
2009 . $1,069
2010 7' $1,024

In fiseal 2005, the total other intangible assets acquired ";was $24,000. In fiseal 2004, the total other intangible assets
acquired was $16.3 million, as noted in Note J. Amortization expense in fiscal 2003 was $92,000.

The following table represents the change in the carrying: amount of goodwill (see Note J) for each segment during each
fiscal year.

Carrying Vaiue Carrying Value Carrying Value

Novernber 2, Additions Qctober 31, Additions October 30,

Segment 2003 2004 2004 2005 2005
- . (In thousands)

Staffing Services $8,340 $ 8,340 $ 8,340

Computer Systems 642  $20,162 20,804 $3,479 (a) 24,283

Total $8,982  $20,152 $29,144 $3,479 $32,623

{a) Adjustments to the purchase price alloeation of the Nortel acquisiﬁ@n.

NOTE I—Per Share Data

In caleulating basic earnings per share, the effect of dilutive securities is excluded. Diluted earnings per share are computed
on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding and the assumed exercise of dilutive ont-
standing stock options based on the treasury stock method.

Year Ended
5 Qctober 30, October 31, November 2,
: 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands)
Denominator for basic earnings per share— :
Weighted average number of shares _ 15,320 15,234 15,218
Effect of dilutive securities: f
Employee stock options _ 97 120 7
Denominator for diluted earnings per share—
Adjusted weighted average number of shares , 15,417 15,354 15,225

Options to purchase 163,700, 45,400 and 582,539 shares of the Company’s common stock were outstanding at Getober 30,
2005, October 31, 2004 and November 2, 2003, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share because the effeet of inclusion would have been antidilutive.
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NOTE J—Acquisition of Businesses

On August 2, 2004, Volt Delta, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, closed a Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution
Agreement”) with Nortel Networks under which Nortel Networks contributed certain of the assets (consisting prineipally of a
customer base and contracts, intellectual property and inventory) and certain specified Liabilities of its directory and operator
services (“DOS”) business to Volt Delta in exchange for a 24% minority equity interest in Volt Delta. Together with its sub-
sidiaries, Volt Delta is reported as the Company’s Computer Systems segment. Volt Delta is using the assets acquired from
Nortel Networks to enhance the operation of its DOS business.

In addition, the companies entered into a ten-year relationship agreement to maintain the compatibility and interoperability
between future releases of Nortel Networks’ Traffiec Operator Position System (“TOPS”) switching platform and Volt Delta’s
TWS/MWS operator workstations and associated produets. Nortel Networks and Volt Delta will work together developing fea-
ture content and release schedules for, and to ensure compatibility between, any TOPS changes that require a change in Volt
Delta’s products or workstations.

Also, on August 2, 2004, the Company and certain subsidiaries entered into a Members’ Agreement (the “Members’
Agreement”) with Nortel Networks which defined the management of Volt Delta and the respective rights and obligations of
the equity owners thereof. The Members’ Agreement provides that, commenecing two years from the date thereof, Nortel
Networks may exereise a put option or Volt Delta may exercise a call option, in each case to affect the purchase by Voit Delta
of Nortel Networks’ minority interest in Volt Delta (“Contingent Liability”). The option was cancelled by an amendment to
the Members’ Agreement on December 29, 2005 (See Note Q—=Subsequent Events).

The Company engaged an independent valuation firm to assist in the determination of the purchase price (the value of the
24% equity interest in Volt Delta) of the acquisition and its allocation. The allocation was completed at the end of fiscal 2005,

The assets and liabilities of the acquired business are accounted for under the purchase method of accounting at the date of
acquisition, recorded at their fair values, with the recognition of a minority interest to reflect Nortel Networks’ 24% invest-
ment in Volt Delta, The results of operations have been included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations since the
acquisition date.
Purchase Allocation
Fair Value of Assets Aequired and Liabilities Assumed and Established

(In thousands)

Cash $ 3,491
Inventories 1,551
Deferred taxes 1,497
Deposit and other assets 404
Goodwill 23,641
Intangible assets 15,900
Total assets $46,484
Acerued wages and commissions $ 700
QOther accrued expenses 2,189
Other liabilities 2,791
Long-term debt 1,828
Deferred taxes 4,976
Minority interest 34,000
Total liabilities $46,484

The intangible assets represent the fair value of customer relationships ($15.1 million) and product technology ($0.8 million),
and are being amortized over 16 years and 10 years, respectively. Since the members’ interests in Volt Delta are treated as
partnership interests, the tax deduction for amortization will not commence until the Contingent Liability is final and
determined.

The following unaudited pro forma information combines the consolidated results of operations of the Company with those of
the DOS business as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2003. This pro forma financial information is
presented for comparative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the operating results that actually would have
occurred had this acquisition been consummated at the start of fiscal 2003. In addition, these results are not intended to be
a projection of future results and do not refleet any synergies that might be achieved from the combined operations.
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NOTE J—Acquisition of Businesses (Continued)
Pro Forma Results (Unaudited)

Year Ended

QOctober 31, November 2,
2004 2003

(In thousands of dollars,

except per share data)
Net sales : $1,953,842 $1,649,939
Operating income $ 51,326 $ 18512
Net income $ 34,678 $ 5,922
Earnings per share:

Basic ‘ $ 2.27 $ 0.39
Diluted $ 2.25 $ 0.38

In May 2004, DataNational, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, purchased certain of the assets of an independent
telephone directory publisher for $0.4 million. The assets consisted of the rights to produce and sell certain independent tele-
phone directories in the state of Georgia. The entire purchase price represents the fair value of the acquired customer list-
ings, prospeet listings and documentation, whieh is reflected in other intangible assets, and is being amortized over 5 years.

NOTE K—Stock Option Plan

The Non-Qualified Option Plan adopted by the Company in fiscal 1995 terminated on May 16, 2005 except for options previ-
ously granted under the plan. Unexercised options expire ten years after grant. Outstanding options at Cetober 30, 2005
were granted at 100% of the market price on the date of grant and become fully vested within one to five years after the
grant date.

Transactions involving outstanding stock options under the plan were:
: Number of Weighted Average

X Shares Exercise Price
Qutstanding—November 3, 2002 566,359 $21.08
Granted 38,750 12.02
Exercised (3,000) 18.08
Forfeited {(19,570) 21.43
Outstanding—November 2, 2003 : 582,539 20.48
Granted 13,800 25.39
Exercised ' (62,210) 18.55
Forfeited (6,376) 25.67
Cutstanding—October 31, 2004 : 527,753 20.77
Exercised . (56,5630) 18.49
Forfeited . (30,225) 22.59
Qutstanding—OQetober 30, 2005 , 440,898 $20.94

Price ranges of outstanding and exercisable options as of October 30, 2005 are summarized below:

Qutstanding Options Exercisable Options
Average
Range of Number Remaining Weighted Average Number Weighted Average
Exercise Prices of Shares Life (Years) Exercise Price of Shares Exercise Price
$10.67-$17.50 58,330 59 $13.39 37,180 $14.62
$18.08-%18.08 175,568 0.5 $18.08 175,968 $18.08
$18.13-4$22.31 89,720 44 $20.256 80,690 $20.43
$22.47-$33.94 88,680 2.9 . $26.00 77,880 $26.07
$35.56-$50.56 28,200 22 ¢ $40.70 28,200 $40.70
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NOTE L—Segment Disclosures

Financial data concerning the Company’s sales, segment profit (loss) and identifiable assets by reportable operating segment
for fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 are presented in tables below.

Total sales include both sales to unaffiliated customers, as reported in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations,
and intersegment sales. Sales between segments are generally priced at fair market value. The Company evaluates perfor-
mance based on segment profit or loss from operations before general corporate expenses, interest income and other expense,
interest expense, foreign exchange gains and losses and income taxes.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. Therefore, the Company’s operating profit is the total segment profit less general corporate expenses. Identifiable
assets are thase assets that are used in the Company’s operations in the particular operating segment. Corporate assets con-
sist principally of cash and cash equivalents, investments and an Enterprise Resource Planning system.

The Company operates in two major businesses, which are primarily focused on the markets they serve: staffing services and
telecornmunications and information solutions. The Company’s internal reporting structure is based on the services and prod-
ucts provided to customers which results in the following four reportable operating segments:

Staffing Services—This segment provides a broad range of employee staffing services to a wide range of customers through-
out the United States, Canada and Europe and has commenced operations in Asia. These services fall within three major
functional areas: Staffing Solutions, Information Technology Solutions and E-Procurement Solutions. Staffing Solutions
provides a full spectrum of managed staffing and temporary/alternative personnel employment and direct hire placement.
Information Technology Solutions provides a wide range of information technology services, including consulting, turnkey
project management in the product development lifecycle, IT and customer contact arenas. E-Procurement Solutions provides
global vendor neutral procurement and human capital management solutions by combining web-based tools and business
process outsourcing services.

Telephone Directory—This segment publishes independent telephone directories in the United States and publishes telephone
directories in Uruguay; provides telephone directory production, commercial printing, database management, sales and
marketing services and licenses directory production and contract management software systems to directory publishers
and others.

Telecommunications Services—This segment provides telecommunications services, including design, engineering, construc-
tion, installation, maintenance and removals in the outside plant and central office of telecommunications and cable companies,
and within their customers’ premises, as well as for both large commercial and governmental entities requiring telecommunica-
tions services; and also provides complete turnkey services for wireless and wireline telecommunications companies.

Computer Systems—This segment provides directory assistance services, both traditional and enhanced, to wireline and wire-
less telecommunications companies; provides directory assistance content; designs, develops, integrates, markets, sells and
maintains computer-based directory assistance systems and other database management and telecommunications systems,
primarily for the telecommunications industry; and provides IT services to the Company’s other businesses and third parties.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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NOTE L—Segment Disclosures (Continued)

Sales, operating profit and identifiable assets by the Company’s reportable operating segment are as follows:

Qctober 30, Qetober 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands)
Net Sales
Staffing Services:
Staffing $ 1,759,683 $ 1,580,225  $1,266,875
Managed Services 1,157,168 1,148,116 1,043,572
Total gross sales 2,916,851 2,728,341 2,310,447
Less Non-recourse Managed Services (1,121,196)  (1,120,079) (967,379)
Intersegment sales 8,155 3,839 2,367
1,801,810 1,612,101 1,345,435
Telephone Directory:
Sales to unaffiliated customers 82,298 72,194 69,750
Intersegment sales — 1 43
82,298 72,195 69,793
Telecommunications Services:
Sales to unaffiliated customers 137,799 134,266 112,201
Intersegment sales 1,212 1,132 638
139,011 135,398 112,939
Computer Systems:
Sales to unaffiliated customers 161,867 110,055 84,472
Intersegment sales 11,252 9,962 9,167
173,119 120,017 93,639
Elimination of intersegment sales {18,619) (14,934) (12,215)
Total Net Sales $ 2,177,619 $ 1,924,777  $1,609,491
Segment Profit (Loss) '
Staffing Services $ 31,179 ¢ 36,718 8§ 21,072
Telephone Directory 14,895 10,115 6,748
Telecommunications Services (2,429) (2,838) (3,986)
Computer Systems 35,801 30,848 14,879
Total segment profit 79,446 74,841 38,513
General corporate expenses (38,839) (30,812) (27,668)
Total Operating Profit $ 40,607 $ 44,029 $ 10,845
Qctober 36, Cetober 31,
2005 2004
(In thousands)
Assets:
Staffing Services $446,930 $422,658
Telephone Directory 55,238 55,740
Telecommunications Services 53,173 52,770
Computer Systems 103,720 102,487
659,121 833,655
Cash, investments and other corporate assets 29,591 56,381
Total assets $688,712 $630,036
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Sales to external customers and assets of the Company by geographic area are as follows:

Year Ended
October 30, October 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
(Inthowusandy 1IN
Sales:
Domestic $2,058,661 $1,822,544  $1,484,720
International, principally Europe : 118,958 102,233 124,771
$2,177,619  $1,924,777 41,609,491
Year Ended @ = m
October 30,  Qctober 31,
2005 2004
(In thousands)
Assets:
Domestic $633,381 $634,454
International, principally Europe 55,331 55,582
$688,712 $690,036 -]
In fiscal 2005, the Telecommunications Services segment’s sales to two customers accounted for approximately 30% and
14% respectively, of the total sales of that segment; the Computer Systems segment’s sales to two customers accounted for &
approximately 31% and 13% of the total sales of that segment; the Staffing Services segment’s sales to one customer
accounted for approximately 13% of the total sales of that segment. In fiscal 2005, the sales to seven operating units of one
customer, Microsoft Corporation, accounted for 11% of the Company’s net sales.
In figeal 2004, the Telecommunications Services segment’s sales to four customers accounted for approximately 17%, 15%,
12% and 11% respectively, of the total sales of that segment; the Computer Systems segment’s sales to one customer :

accounted for approximately 28% of the total sales of that segment; the Staffing Services segment’s sales to one customer
accounted for approximately 14% of the total sales of that segment; and the Telephone Directory segment’s sales to one cus-
tomer accounted for approximately 10% of the total sales of that segment. In fiscal 2004, the sales to seven operating units
of one customer, Microsoft Corporation, accounted for 12% of the Company’s net sales.

In fiscal 2003, the Telecommunications Services segment’s sales to three customers accounted for approximately 23%, 18%
and 12%, respectively, of the total sales of that segment; the Computer Systems segment’s sales to two customers accounted
for approximately 27% and 13% of the total sales of that segment; the Staffing Services segment’s sales to one customer
accounted for approximately 13% of the total sales of that segment; and the Telephone Directory segment’s sales to one cus-
tomer accounted for approximately 10% of the total sales of that segment. In fiscal 2003, the sales to seven operating units
of one customer, Microsoft Corporation, aceounted for 10.6% of the Company’s net sales.

The loss of one or more of these customers, unless the business is replaced by the segment, could result in an adverse effect
on the results for that segment’s business.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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MNOTE L—Segment Disclosures (Continued)
Capital expenditures and depreciation and amortization by the Company’s operating segments are as follows:

Year Ended
October 30, October 31, November 2,
2005 2004 2003
{In thousands)
Capital Expenditures: .
Staffing Services : $17,061 $ 9,270 $ 8,026
Telephone Directory 151 391 2,104
Telecommunications Services 2,973 1,803 1,766
Computer Systems ‘ 6,620 17,491 4,768
Total segments 26,705 28,955 16,664
Corporate 1,806 1,782 1,326
$28,611 $30,737 $17,990
Depreciation and Amortization (a):
Staffing Services . $10,399 $ 9,365 % 8,942
Telephone Directory 1,848 2,067 2,024
Telecommunications Services 1,771 2,862 3,870
Computer Systems _ 9,840 5,744 3,770
Total segments 23,858 20,038 18,606
Corporate : 5,745 5,499 5,725
$29,603 $25,537 $24,331
{a) Inchides depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment for fiseal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 of $28.5 million, $25.2 million and
$24.2 million, respectively.
NOTE M—Employee Benefits
The Company has various savings plans that permit eligible employees to make contributions on a pre-tax salary reduction

basis in aceordance with the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. In January 2000, the Company
amended the savings plan for permanent employees to pravide a Company contribution in the form of a 50% match of the first
3% of salary contributed by eligible participants. For participants with less than five years of service, the Company’s matching
contributions vest at 20% per year over a five-year period; Company contributions to the plan are made semi-annually. Under
the plan, the Company’s contributions of $1.7 million, $1.4 million and $1.3 million in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003,
respectively, were accrued and charged to compensation expense.

The Company has a non-qualified deferred compensation-and supplemental savings plan, which permits eligible employees-to
defer a portion of their salary. This plan consists solely of participant deferrals and earnings thereon, which are reflected as
a current liability under accrued wages and commissions. The Company invests the assets of the plan in mutual funds based
upon investment preferences of the participants. :

NOTE N—Derivative Financial Instruments, Hedging and Restricted Cash

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments only for hedging purposes. All derivative financial instruments,
such as interest rate swap contracts, foreign currency options and exchange contracts, are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding the instrument, Changes in the fair value
of derivative financial instruments are either recognized periodically in income or in stockholders’ equity as a component of
comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedge accounting, and if so,
whether it qualifies as a fair value hedge or cash flow hedge. Generally, changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as
fair value hedges are recorded in income along with the portions of the changes in the fair values of the hedged items that
relate to the hedged risks. Changes in fair values of derivatives accounted for as cash flow hedges, to the extent they are
effective as hedges, are recorded in other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes. Changes in fair values of derivatives
not qualifying as hedges are reported in the results of operations. At October 30, 2005, the Company had outstanding foreign
currency option contracts in the aggregate notional amount equivalent to $2.9 million, which approximated its net investment
in foreign operations and is accounted for as a hedge under SFAS No. 52. ‘
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Included in cash and cash equivalents at October 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 was approximately $26.1 million and $43.7
million, respectively, that was restricted to cover obligations that were reflected in accounts payable at that date. These
amounts primarily related to certain contracts with customers, for whom the Company manages the customers’ alternative
staffing requirements, including the payment of associate vendors.

NOTE 0~Lleases
The future minimum rental commitments as of October 30, 2005 for all non-cancelable operating leases were as follows:

Fiscal Year Total Office Space Equipment
(In thousands)
2006 $19,378 $18,380 $ 998
2007 14,857 14,315 542
2008 7,501 7,423 78
2009 3,929 3,929 —_—
2010 ‘ 2,733 2,733 —_
Thereafter 414 414 —_
$48,812 $47,194 $1,618

Many of the leases also require the Company to pay and contribute to property taxes, insurance and ordinary repairs and
maintenance.

Rental expense for all operating leases for fiseal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 was $29.9 million, $25.6 million and $24.0
million, respectively.

NOTE P—Related Party Transactions

During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company paid or acerued $0.8 million, $1.9 million and $0.5 million, respectively,
to the law firms of which Lloyd Frank, a director of the Company, is or was of counsel, for services rendered to the Company
and expenses reimbursed. During fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, the Company also paid $5,000, $13,000 and $47,700, respec-
tively, to the law firm of which Bruce Goodman, a director of the Company, is a partner, for services rendered to the Company.

The Cormpany renders various payroll and related services to a eorporation primarily owned by Steven A. Shaw, an officer
and director, for which the Company received approximately $5,000 in excess of its direct costs in fiscal 2005, Such services
are performed on a basis substantially similar to those performed by the Company for and at substantially similar rates as
charged by the Company to unaffiliated third parties. In addition, the Company rents approximately 2,600 square feet of
office space to that corporation in the Company’s El Segundo, California facility (which is located within the Company’s
facility and shares common areas), which the Company does not require for its own use, on a month-to-month basis at a
rental of $1,750 per month ($1,500 per month prior to March 31, 2004). Based on the nature of the premises and a report
from a real estate broker, the Company believes the rent is a fair and reasonable rate for the space.

In 2005, after an investigation conducted by independent counsel appointed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors,
the Audit Committee concluded that Mr. Thomas Daley, an executive officer of the Company, had, in July, 2005, exercised
options and sold the underlying shares of stock of the Company in violation of the Company’s Insider Trading Policy. The Audit
Committee required Mr. Daley to pay $31,500, representing the difference between the price at which Mr. Daley sold the
stock and the average market price of the Company’s stock over the three days following the Company’s release of its 3rd quar-
ter results, and pay a further penalty of $10,000. These moneys have been paid by Mr. Daley to the Company’s General
Counsel’s attorney eserow account. The matter was self-reported on behalf of the Company to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and is under review by that agency. In connection with this matter, the Audit Committee recommended that the
Company advance Mr. Daley’s legal fees upon his entering into a written agreement to repay such fees if it were ultimately
determined that he was not entitled to be indemnified for legal expenses under applicable law., The Company has advanced to
date $95,800 directly to Mr. Daley's attorneys in connection with such matter. The Corapany has also paid to date legal fees
of the independent counsel to the Audit Committee of approximately $260,000 associated with this matter.

NOTE Q—Subseguent Events

On December 29, 2005, Volt Delta purchased from Nortel Networks its 24% minority interest in Volt Delta. Under the
terms of the agreement, Voit Delta is required to pay Nortel Networks approximately $56.4 million for its minority interest
in the LLC, and an excess cash distribution of approximately $5.4 million. Under the terms of the agreement, Volt Delta

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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NOTE Q—Subsequent Events (Continued) . .

paid $25.0 million on December 29, 2005 with the remaining $36.8 million due February 15, 2006. The transaction is
expected to result in an increase of approximately $18.0'million in goodwill and intangible assets and elimination of the
minority interest. '

On December 30, 2005, Volt Delta acquired Varetis AG’s Varetis Solutions GmbH subsidiary for $24.8 million. The acquisi-
tion of Varetis Solutions, GmbH allows the two companies to combine resources to focus on the evolving global market for
directory information systems and services. Varetis Solutions adds technology in the area of wireless and wireline database
management, directory assistance/enquiry automation, and wireless handset information delivery to Volt Delta’s significant
technology portfolic. The acquisition is expeeted to result in an increase of approximately $20.0 million in goodwill and
intangible assets.

The Company will engage an independent valuation firm to assist in the allocation of the purchase price of the acquisitions.

In December 2005, the credit agreement was amended 10 consent to the consummation of the acquisition by the Company of
the twenty-four (24%) percent interest in Volt Delta owned by Nortel Networks and to modify certain of the financial eove-
nants contained in the Credit Agreement and increase the amount of finaneing permitted under the Securitization Program.

NOTE R—Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudﬁte’&)

The following is a summary of unandited quarterly results of operations for the fiscal years ended October 30, 2005 and
October 31, 2004. Each quarter contained thirteen weeks.
: Fiscal 2005 Quarter

First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands, except per share dato)

Net sales ; $497,835 $546,045 $543515 $590,224
Gross profit - $ 29662 $ 39,722 $ 40,943 $ 52,741
Net (loss) income ' $ (808) $ 4,527 $ 4,966 $ 8,355
Net (loss) income—basie $ (005 ¢ 030 ¢ 032 8 054

$ 029 $ 032 $ 054

Net (loss) income~—diluted : $ (0.05)

Fiscal 2004 Quarter (Note 1)
First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands, except per share daia)

Net sales | $413,959 $478,479 $500,732 $531,607
Gross profit , $ 24,111 $ 34,240 §$ 43,738 $ 50,601
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (1,153) & 4,608 $ 9,239 $ 11,502
Discontinued operations, net of taxes ‘ —_ 9,520 —_ —
Net (loss) income ; $ (1,153) $ 14,128 $ 9,238 $ 11,502
Per share data: '
Income (loss) from continuing operations—basie ¢ (00% $ 031 $ 061 $ 0.7
Income (loss) from continuing operations—diluted $ (008 ¢ 030 ¢ 060 $ 075
Net (loss) income—basic ‘ $ (008 ¢ 093 ¢ 061 & 0.5
Net (loss) income—diluted $ (008) $ 092 s 060 $ 0.5

Note 1—In the fourth quarter of fiseal 2004, the Company recognized a gain on sale of rea) estate from the sale of lapd and a building in Anaheim,
California for cash. The property was no longer used by the Company.

Historically, the Company’s results of operations have been lowest in its first fiscal quarter as a result of reduced require-
ments for the Staffing Services segment’s personnel due to the Thanksgiving, Christmas and New Year holidays as well

as certain customer facilities closing for one to two weeks. In addition, the Telephone Directory segment’s DataNational
division publishes more directories during the second half of the fiscal year. During the third and fourth quarter of the fis-
cal year, the Staffing Services segment benefits from a reéduction of payroll taxes and increased use of Administrative and
Industrial services during the summer vacation period.
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ITEM O, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.

ITEM 2A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting.

The Company carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its “diselosure controls and proce-
dures,” as defined in, and pursuant to, Rule 13a-15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of October 30, 2005 under the
supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chairman of the Board,
President and Co-Principal Executive Officer, its Executive Vice President and Co-Principal Executive Officer and its Senior
Vice President and Principal Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation and the events described below, management con-
cluded that, as of their evaluation the Company did not maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting as of
October 30, 2005, because of the effect of a material weakness in the Company’s system of internal controls, based on crite-
ria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO0 eriteria), at a single subsidiary. The subsidiary did not appropriately caleulate and recon-
cile its fixed assets and related depreciation detail records to the amounts recorded in its financial statements and did not
properly reconcile the deferred tax liability recorded in its financial statements relating to depreeiation timing differences to
the supporting documentation. These findings resulted in material adjustments to the consolidated financial statements.

On January 16, 2006, Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, issued an unquali-
fied opinion on the Company’s financial statements for the fiseal year ended October 30, 2005.

Remediation Efforts Related to the Material Weakness in Internal Controls

The Company’s management reviewed and evaluated the design of the eontrol procedure relating to depreciation of assets and
reconciliation of the deferred tax liability, and is taking the following actions to remediate the reported material weakness in
internal controls over financial reporting by:

o The creation of additional positions within the affected subsidiary, including an accounting and finance compliance
officer, to review and coordinate with the subsidiary controller, the implementation and maintenance of its internal
controls over financial reporting.

°  Requiring certain changes to the fixed asset sub-ledgers be reviewed and approved in writing by the subsidiary
controller.

o Adhering to the Company’s financial statement closing process monitoring controls and documentation procedures
related to the Company’s fixed asset and income tax provision policies.

After the completion of the evaluation, the Company began its remediation program to correct the material weakness in its
processes reported above. The Company’s management has discussed this material weakness and initial corrective actions
and future plans with the Audit Committee and the Company’s Board of Directors who concurred with management.

Nanagement's Annual Report on Internal Controf Over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate “internal contro] over financial report-
ing” (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)). Management, under the supervision and with the participa-
tion of the Company’s Co-Chief Executive Officers and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting using the COSO criteria as of October 30, 2005.

In management’s assessment the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, as of Qctober 30,
2005, based on the COSO criteria, because of the effect of the material weakness described above.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, had audited the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal eontrol over financial reporting and management’s assessment of the effectiveness of such controls as of
October 30, 2005, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Volt Information Sciences, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control
QOver Financial Reporting, that Volt Information Sciences, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of Qctober 30, 2005, because of the effect of a material weakness in the Company’s system of internal control,
at a subsidiary, as discussed below, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponscring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Volt Information Sciences’ man-
agement is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effec-
tiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in aceordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an under-
standing of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the cir-
cumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a’'process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal eontrol over financial reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in acecordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s agsets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over ﬁnancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in econditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficieney, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likeli-
hood that & material misstatement of the ananal or interir’p financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The follow-
ing material weakness has been identified and included in management’s assessment. The Company’s subsidiary did not
appropriately caleulate and reconcile its fixed assets and related depreciation detail records to the amounts recorded in its
financial statemeunts. In addition, the Company did not appropriately reconcile the deferred tax lability recorded in its finan-
cial statements relating to depreciation timing differences at this subsidiary to the supporting documentation. These findings
resulted in material adjustments to the consolidated financial statements. This material weakness was considered in deter-
mining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the fiscal 2005 financial statements, and this
report does not affect our report dated Jannary 16, 2006 on those financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Volt Information Sciences, Ine. did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of Qctober 30, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our
opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness deseribed above on the achievement of the objectives of the control eri-
teria, Volt Information Sciences, Ine. has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of Qctober 30,

2005, based on the COSO eriteria.
W ¢ MLL?

New York, New York
January 16, 2006
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART IIT

The information called for by Part III (Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14) of Form 10-K will be included in the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Company’s 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which the Company intends to file within 120 days after
the close of its fiscal year ended Cctober 30, 2005 and is hereby incorporated by reference to such Proxy Statement, except
that the information as to the Company's executive officers which follows Item 4 in this Report and the information as to the
Company’s equity compensation plans contained in the last paragraph of Item 5 in this Report are incorporated by reference
into Items 10 and 12, respectively, of this Report.

PART IV

EYEM 15, EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
15{a)(1). Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of Volt Information Sciences, Inc.
and subsidiaries are included in Item 8 of this Report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets—OQctober 30, 2005 and October 31, 2004 46

Consolidated Statements of Operations—Years ended October 30, 2005, Cetober 31, 2004
and November 2, 2003 47

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity—Years ended October 30, 2005,
October 31, 2004 and November 2, 2003 48

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—TYears ended QOctober 30, 2005, October 31, 2004
and November 2, 2003 49

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 51

15{a}{2). Financial Statement Schedule
The following consolidated financial statement schedule of Volt Information Sciences, Ine.
and subsidiaries is included in response to Item 15(d):
Schedule JI—Valuation and qualifying aceounts 8.1

Other schedules {Nos. I, IT, IV and V) for which provision is made in the applicable accounting
regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions
or are not applicable and, therefore, have been omitted.
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15(A){3). EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Description

3.1

4.1(c)

4.1(d)

4 1(e)

4.1(f)*

4.1(g)

10.1+

10.2(a)+

10.2(b)+

10.3(a)+

10.3(b)+

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as filed with the Department of State of New York on
January 29, 1997. (Exhibit 3.1 to the Compan) s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
Noverber 1, 1996).

By-Laws of the Company.

Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 12, 2002 among Volt Funding Corp., Three Rivers Funding
Corporation and Velt Information Sciences, Ine. (Exhibit 99.1(b) to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated April 22, 2002, File No. 1-9232).

Second Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of March 31, 2004 among Volt Funding Corp.,
Three Rivers Funding and Volt Information Sciences, Ine. (Exhibit 4.02 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 2, 2004, File No. 1-9232).

Third Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of April 8, 2005 among Volt Funding Corp.,
Three Rivers Funding and Volt Information Sciences, Ine. (Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K dated April 14, 2005, File No. 1-9232).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement datéd as of April 12, 2004 among Volt Information Sciences, Inc.,
Gatton Volt Consulting Group Limited, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders party thereto, and JP Morgan
Chase Bank, as administrative agent. (Exhibit 4.01 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended May 2, 1004, File No. 1-9232).'

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of April 14, 2005 among Volt Information Sciences,
Ine. and Gatton Volt Consulting Group Limited, the guarantor’s party thereto, the lenders party thereto and JP
Morgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent. (Exhibit 99.1 to the Company is Current Report on Form 8-K
dated April 13, 2005 File No. 1-9232).

Consent and First Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of November 15,
2005, among Voit Information Sciences, Ine. and Gatton Volt Consulting Group Limited, the guarantors party
thereto, the lenders party thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, as administrative agent.

Consent and Second Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December
27, 2005, among Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Gatton Volt Consulting Group Limited, the guarantors
party thereto, the lenders party thereto and JP Morgan Chase, as administrative agent (Exhibit 99.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2008, File No. 1-9232).

1995 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan, as amended. (Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended October 30, 1998, File No. 1-9232).

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1987, between the Company and William Shaw. (Exhibit 19.01 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 1, 1987, File No. 1-9232).

Amendment, dated January 3, 1989, to Employment Agreement between the Company and William Shaw.
{Exhibit 19.01(b) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended October 28, 1988,

File No. 1-9232).

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1987, between the Company and Jerome Shaw (Exhibit 18.02 to the
Corapany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 1, 1987, File No. 1-9232).

Amendment, dated January 3, 1989, to Employment Agreement between the Company and Jerome Shaw
(Exhibit 19.02(b) to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 28, 1988,
File No. 1-9232). i
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15(A){3). EXNIBITS

Exhibit  Description

10.4(a)+* Employment Agreement entered into on or about August 25, 2004 between the Company and Thomas Daley.

10.4(b)+* Undertaking dated August 5, 2005 from Thomas Daley to the Company.

10.5+ Form of Indemuification Agreement (Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended July 31, 2005, File No. 1-9232).

10.6* Sale and Purchase Agreement dated as of November 12, 2005 among Blitz 05-282 GmbH (now known as Volt
Delta GmbH), Varetis AG and Varetis Solutions GmbH.

10.7 Letter of Agreement dated December 28, 2005 among Volt Delta Resources, LLC, Volt Information Sciences,
Inc. Volt Delta Resources Holdings, Ine. Nuco I, Ltd. and Nortel Networks, Ine. (Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 4, 2006, File No. 1-9232).

10.8 Promissory Note and Security Agreement dated December 28, 2005 from Volt Delta Resources, ILLC to Nortel
Networks. {Exhibit 89.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 2, 2008, File No. 1-9232).

14. Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries Code of Ethical Conduct for Financial Managers.

21.* Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.* Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1* Certification of Co-Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

31.2* Certification of Co-Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

31.3* Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32.1* Certification of Co-Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2* Certification of Co-Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.3* Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

+ Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.

* Filed herewith. All other exhibits are incorporated herein by reference to the exhibit indicated in the
parenthetical references.

UNDERTAKING

The Company hereby undertakes to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission, upon request, all constituent
instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries not filed
herewith, Such instruments have not been filed since none are, nor are being, registered under Section 12 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and the total amount of securities authorized under any such instruments does not exceed 10% of
the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused
this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

VOLT INFORMATION SCIENCES, INC.
Dated: New York, New York By: /s/William Shaw

Janumary 16, 2006 William Shaw

Chairman of the Board, President
and Co-Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchangé Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following
persons on bebalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title : Date

/s/William Shaw Chairman of the Board, President and January 16, 2006
William Shaw Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director

/s/Steven A. Shaw Executive Vice President, and January 16, 2006
Steven A. Shaw Co-Chief Executive Officer and Director

/s/James J. Groberg Senior Vice President January 16, 2006
James J. Groberg {Principal Financial Officer)

/s/Jack Egan Viee President, Corporate Accounting January 18, 2008
Jack Egan (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/Lloyd Frank Director Jammary 16, 2008
Lloyd Frank

/8/Theresa A. Havell Director . January 16, 2006

Theresa A, Havell

fs/Mark N. Kaplan Director : Januvary 16, 2006
Mark N. Kaplan '

/s/Bruce G. Goodman Director January 16, 2006
Bruee G, Goodman

/s/William H. Turner Director : January 16, 2006
William H. Turner
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A ColumnB  Column C ColumnD  Column E
Additions
Balance at Charged to  Charged to Balance at
Beginning  Costs and Gther End of
of Period Expenses Aceounts Deductions Period
(In thousands)
Year ended QCctaber 30, 2005
Deducted from asset aceounts:
Allowance for uncollectable accounts $10,210 $3,838 $6,521 (a,b) $ 7,527
Allowance for deferred tax assets 3,948 $ 812 (e) 4,760
Unrealized gain on marketable securities (60) (41)(d) (101)
Year ended October 31, 2004
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for uncollectable accounts $10,498 $ 7,784 $8,072 (a,b) $10,210
Allowance for deferred tax assets 3,635 $ 313 (e) 3,948
Unrealized gain on marketable securities (153) 93 (d) (80)
Year ended November 2, 2003
Deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for uncollectable accounts $10,994 $6,227 $6,723 (a,b) $10,498
Allowance for deferred tax assets 3,756 $(121)(e) 3,635
Unrealized (gain) on marketable securities (12) (141)(d) (153)

(a) Includes write-off of uncollectable accounts.

(b) Includes foreign currency translation gains of $91 in 2005, $117 in 2004 and $22 in 2003.

(¢} Charge to income tax provision.
(d) Charge (credit) to stockholders’ equity.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries S-1




EXHIBIT 21—SUBSIDIARIES CF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a list of the subsidiaries and joint ventures of Volt as of January 7, 2006 (exclusive of certain subsidiaries
which, if considered in the aggregate, would not, as of October 30, 2005, constitute a significant subsidiary within the mean-
ing of Rule 1-02(v) of Regulation 8-X). All of such subsidiaries, to the extent they were active and owned by the Company
during fiscal 2005, are included as consclidated subsidiaries in the Registrant’s consolidated financial statements as of

October 30, 2005.

Jurisdietion of;

Jurisdiction of

Name (1) Incorporation ' Name (1) Incorporation
Volt Delta Resources, LLC. Nevada Volt Delta Company Canada
Volt Real Estate Corporation Delaware | Volt Delta Resources of Mexico,
Volt Directories S.A., Ltd. Delaware 3. deR.L.de CV. Mexico
Volt Helding Corp. Nevada Volt Delta B.V. Netherlands
Volt Realty Two, Inc. Nevada Volt Delta Burope, Limited United Kingdom
500 South Douglas Realty Corp. Delaware Volt Delta GmbH Germany
14011 So. Normandie Ave. Realty Corp. Nevada Volt Resource Management Limited United Kingdom
Volt Orangeca Real Estate Corp. Delaware Tainol, S.A. Uruguay
Shaw & Shaw, Inc. Delaware Volt Human Resources (VHRI), Ine. Canada
: Volt. Technical Resources, LLC. Delaware Volt Services Group (Netherlands) B.V. Netherlands
p Volt ATRD Corp. Delaware Volt Directory Marketing, Ltd. (2) Delaware
? Sierra Technology Corporation California ©  Volt Europe Limited (formerly Gatton Volt
= Volt Opportunity Road Realty Corp. Delaware Computing Group Limited) United Kingdom
Nueo II, Ltd. Delawsre Gatton Volt Consulting Group Limited United Kingdom
Volt Management Corp. Delaware Gatton Volt Computastaff Limited United Kingdom
Volt Technical Corp. Delaware Volt Burope (Belgium) SPRL Belgium
Fidelity National Credit Services Litd. California Volt Europe (Espana) S.A. Spain
Nuco I, Litd. Nevada . Volt Europe Temporary Services Limited United Kingdom
Volt Information Sciences Funding, Ine. Delaware VMC Consulting Europe Limited United Kingdom
Volt Viewtech, Inc. Delaware Volt Enrope (France) SARL France
Z Volt Asia Enterprises, Ltd. Delaware Volt Europe (Italia) SRL Italy
3 Volt STL Holdings, Ine. Delaware Volt Europe (Deutsechiand) GmbH Germany
- DataNational of Georgia, Inc. Georgia Volt Netherlands Holding BV Netherlands
= DataNational, Inec. Delaware Volt Telecom BV Netherlands
Volt Road Boring Corp. Florida Volt Europe (Nederland) BV Netherlands
Volt Telecommunications Group, Ine. Delaware ProcureStaff Pty Limited Australia
Volt Publications, Inc. Delaware ProcureStaff Canada, Litd. Canada
Volt Gatton Holding, Ine. Delaware Volt Service K.K. Japan
‘ Maintech, Incorporated Delaware Volt Service Corporation PTE, Ltd. Singapore
B Volt SRS Limited Delaware Volt Asia Enterprises (Malaysia)

: Information Management Associates, Inc. Delaware SDN. BHD, Malaysia
ProcureStaff, Ltd. Delaware Volt Europe Slovakia s.r.o. Slovakia
PCureSys, Ltd. Delaware Volt Information Technology & Staffing
PS Payrolling, L44d. Delaware | Solutions (India) Private Limited India
VMC Consulting Corporation Delaware |  Varetis Solutions GmbH Germany
Volt Funding Corp. Delaware ' Varetis Communications Ltd. United Kingdom
Volt Delta Resources Holding, Ine. Nevada Varetis Asia Pte. Ltd. Singapore
Volt Delta Canada Holdings, LLC. Nevada VMC Consulting Germany GmbH Germany

(2) 80% owned subsidiary.

(1) Except as noted, each named subsidiary is wholly-owned, directly or indirectly, by Volt Information Sciences, Inc., except that, in the case of certain
foreign subsidiaries, qualifying shares may be registered in the name of directors.
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- EXHIBIT 23
t .
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGUISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement No. 333-13369 on Form S-8 dated Oetober 3,
1996, Registration Statement No. 333-45903 on Form 3-8 dated February 9, 1998 and Registration Statement No. 333+
106245 on Form S-8 dated June 18, 2003 of Volt Information Seiences, Ine. of our reports dated January 16, 2006, with
respect to the consolidated financial statements and schedule of Volt Information Sciences, Ine., Volt Information Sciences,
Ine. management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness of inter-
nal contro) over financial reporting of Volt Information Sciences, Inc., included in the Annual Report {Form 10-K) for the

year ended October 30, 2005.
M ¢ W&L?

New York, New York
January 16, 2006

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Willtam Shaw, certify that:

1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Volt Information Sciences, Ine,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condxtlon results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or cansed such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its censolidated sub-
sidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual
report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or cansed such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles; _

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conchlisions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this annual report based on such evalunation; and .

d) disclosed in this annual report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over finaneial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter. (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or per-
sons performing the equivalent funetions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report finaneial information; and

b) any frand, whether or not material, that involves management or.other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal eontrol over financial reporting.

Jaruary 16, 2006 ", Js) William Shaw

‘William Shaw
Co-Principal Executive Officer
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EXHEBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Steven A. Shaw, certify that:

1
2.

T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Volt Information Seiences, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the eircumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the finaneial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annus! report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed sueh disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures te be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated sub-
sidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual
report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

e} evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure eontrols and procedures aud presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this annual report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or per-
sons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over finanecial reporting.

January 16, 2006 /s/ Steven A. Shaw

Steven A. Shaw
Executive Vice President and
Co-Prineipal Exzecutive Officer

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries




EXHIBIT 31.3

CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL FIMANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, James J. Groberg, certify that:

1.

2

&,

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Volt Information Sciences, Ine.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not_:contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the eircumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other finaneial information included in this annual report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining diselosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15_(e) and 15d-15(e) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and we have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated sub-
sidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual
report is being prepared; ‘

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles; :

¢) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this annual report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this anmmal report any changes in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiseal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annnal
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the andit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or per-
sons performing the equivalent functions): !

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely:affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and (

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

January 16, 2006 . /s/ James J. Groberg

James J. Groberg
Senior Vice President and
Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TG
SECTION 206 OF THE SARBANES-DXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Volt Information Sciences, Ine. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
October 30, 2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William Shaw,
Co-Principal Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

January 16, 2006 /s/ William Shaw

‘William Shaw
Co-Principal Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Volt Information Services, Ine. and
will be retained by Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff
upon regquest.

EXHIBEY 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAMES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Volt Information Sciences, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
October 30, 2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), 1, Steven A,
Shaw, Co-Principal Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Seetion 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

January 16, 2006 /s/ Steven A, Shaw

Steven A. Shaw
Co-Principal Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Volt Information Services, Ine. and
will be retained by Volt Information Sciences, Ine. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff

upon request.

Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and Subsidiaries
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EXHIBIT 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 90C OF THE SARBANES-CXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Volt Information Sciences, Ine. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
QOctober 30, 2005, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, James J.
Groberg, Principal Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and '

(2) The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

January 16, 2006 _: /s/ James J. Groberg

James J. Groberg
Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Volt Information Services, Inc. and
will be retained by Volt Information Sciences, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cormmission or its staff
upon reguest.
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Corporate Information

ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting of Share-
holders will be held on Thursday,
April 6, 2006 at 10am Pacific
time in the 1st floor Atrium,
Volt Corporate Park

2401 N. Glassell Street

Orange, CA 92865

REGISTRAR AND

TRANSFER AGENT

for Common Stock

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, NJ 07016

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP

5 Times Square

New York, NY 10036-6530

COMPANY INFORMATION

A copy of the Company’s Annuat
Report on Form 10-K for Fiscal
Year 2005 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange
Commission is available without
charge upon written request to:

Vice President

Corporate Accounting

Velt Information Sciences, Inc.
560 Lexington Avenue

New York, NY 10022

A copy of the Form 10-K and
information about Volt, including
corporate governance policies,
can be found on the Internet at:
www.volt.com

EXECUTIVE OFFICES
560 Lexington Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Tel: 212.704.2400

WEST REGION
CORPORATE OFFICES
2401 N, Glassell Street
Orange, CA 92865

Tel: 714.921.8800

DIVISION NEADQUARTERS

Volt Services Group
www.volt.com

West Region

240172411 N, Glassell Street
Orange, CA 92865

Tel: 800.654.2624

Northwest Region
701 Pike Street
Suite 1150
Seattle, WA 58101
Tel: 206.292.4399

East Region

477 Madison Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Tel: 212.719.7800

VMC Consulting
www.ymec.com

11611 Wiltows Road, N.E.
Redmond, WA 98052
Tel: 425.558.770¢

ProcureStaff
www.procurestaff.com
560 Lexington Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Tel; 212.704.2400

Volt Telecommunications Group
www.volt-telecom.com

415 North Smith Avenue

Corona, CA 92880

Tel: 951.520.8658

Volt Directory Systems
and Services
www.voltdirectory.com
One Sentry Parkway
Blue Bell, PA 19422 -
Tel: 610.825.7720

DataMational
www,.communitybook.com
3800 Concorde Parkway
Chantilly, VA 20151

Tel: 703.818.0120

Volt Delta Resources
www.voltdelta.com
560 Lexington Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Tel: 212.827.2600

Maintech
www.maintech.com
39 Patterson Avenue
Wallington, NJ 07057
Tel: 973.614.1700

INTERNATIONAL OFFICES
United Kingdom

VoltDelta International
www.voltdelta.com
Dolphin House

Windmill Road

Sunbury on Thames
Middlesex TW16 7HT
England

Tel: 44.1932.755555

VMC Consulting Europe Ltd.

www.vme.com
110 Buckingham Avenue
Stough, Berkshire SL1 4PF
England

Tel: 44,1753.849732

Volt Europe Limited
www.volteurope.com
Gatton Place

St. Matthews Road
Redhill, Surrey RH1 1TA
England

Tel: 44.1737.774100

ProcureStaff
www.procurestaff.com
Gatton Place

St. Matthews Road
Redhill, Surrey RH1 17A
England ‘
Tel: 44.1732.774100

The Wetherlands

VoltDelta International
www.voltdelta.com

Olof Palmestraat 24
2616 LS DELFT
Netherlands

Tel: 31.15.2150915

Germany

VoltDelta International
www.voltdelta.com
Landsberger Str, 110
80339 Munich

Germany

Tel: 49.89.455660

Uruguay

Volt Directories S.A. Ltd.
www,volt.com.uy

Luis Albertc de Herrera 3255
CP 11600

Montevideo

Uruguay

Tel: 598.2.4808181

Volt, the Volt logo, VoltDelts, VoitSaurce, Volt Temporary Services, Volt VOM—Volt Directory Marketing, VIS, DatoNationa!, DirectDA,
Mointech, The Companion, Directory One, Time to Return to Business and ProcureStaff are registerad trademarks and/or service marks of
Vott Information Sciences, Inc. Other trademarks, trade names, service marks and logos used in this Annval Report are also the property

of Voit Information Sciences, Inc.

Copyright ®2005 Volt Information Sciences, Inc. All Rights Reserved.
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Dean, (ollege of Business
Stony Brook University
Theresa A, Havell

President

Havel! Capital Management LLC
Ltoyd Frank

Counsel

Troutman Sanders LLP

(a law firm)




D
o
RN
=3
= e e
- — U, SEp e
e e 3
3
2
o~
(]
S
()
nv. i
- g 5
£ Z
17 -
@ =
o o
o >
ar
2 3
w Y
c = '
e o :
- 2
o o
E g
S <
K=
| et c
- o
n 8
=y
] £
»
L7
@ 2 -
o
> 8
[Ta]
L3
) i TN TR T
il £ ) el ohn sam i e i Al e T JEJ




